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Summary of Financial Information
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Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—-HLEE

RESULTS E 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

ZE-hE | ZE-N\F ZT—+F ZE—RX “T-HF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET AT FAT FTAET FTET

Revenue gy 461,909 410858 368,832 363,806 40107

Loss before income tax BRAEHAEE (56,038) (23279) (55,307) (51,859) (5,773)

Income tax expense FBHAY (3,783) (1966) (879) (1,987) (205)

Loss for the year REREAR (59,821) (25,245) (56,186) (53,846) (5978)

As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

ZB-hE | ZE-\F ZZT—+F ZT-x¥ ZT-nf¥

HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FET TET FTAEL FET

Current assets MEEE 293,457 167,854 260,363 334,748 60,887

Non-current assets ERHEE 384,901 403,645 191,541 105493 118541

Total assets BEE 678,358 571,499 451,904 440241 179,428

Current liabilities REaE 279,998 357,561 283,743 393,536 79,969

Non-current liabilities e EE=R 71,470 50,870 37,200 14019 12874

Total liabilities BaE 351,468 408431 320943 407,555 92,843

Net assets BEFE 326,890 163,068 130961 32686 86,585
Equity attributable to ARAEEA

owners of the Company i 260,474 104,986 130961 32,686 86,585

Non-controlling interests FEkRER 66,416 58,082 = = =

326,890 163,068 130961 32686 86,585

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
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Chairman’s Statement

FTR|S

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of U Banquet Group
Holding Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Restaurant Operations

The Group has been operating four restaurants under the brands, namely “U
Banquet” (including “U Banquet « The StarView"), as at 31 December 2019.
During the year 2019, the general economy and the business environment of
catering industry in Hong Kong remained under pressure. China-US trade war
as well as the social incidents since June 2019 affecting the Group restaurants
operation. The performance of restaurant operation for both wedding
banquet and dining services did not reach the management expectation, the
Group had closed five restaurants and sold two restaurants.
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We position ourselves entirely different from traditional, single service-
focused Chinese restaurants in Hong Kong. For our dining services, our
target customers are having high demand on fresh and high standard of
Cantonese dishes, quality servicing standards in hygienic and modernly
designed restaurant venues to accommodate family and friend gatherings
and corporate functions. For wedding banquet services, we provide
streamlined wedding planning and preparation process by offering one-
stop wedding solutions and the choices of creatively-designed venues to
cater our customers with high expectations on their wedding banquet.
The management resolved to improve the operating efficiency and control
expenditures of the Group. The Group reviewed the work allocation of
the staff from time to time to enhance labour efficiency. The Group also
entered into long-term tenancy agreements to maintain the operating lease
payments at reasonable level.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED 9

Chairman’s Statement

FTREKS

BTN TRARE BT EEREIR
BB - RERMPOABREMES &
R EEEE AU REFERRAERARE
BEAREMPEES UL ARESAEE
SHEAFERSIZEEYE BELREIZE
BRHRNER -REEREmS BE8
RE—INIEEER AR RAIERFEAT
TS RGAIEBERENEERIE UERRK
MNEFYIEEN =L - TR EHERT
REBMLBRERITFIFAY - AEE TR
BEIWIENR LWRAE T MR AE
EMEIRAHEE R AFEEHERIE
R A ERIKT

ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Chairman’s Statement = [E 5

Environmental Maintenance Business

The Group's environmental maintenance business is based on Chengdu, the
PRC and expands to other region including Xinjiang Autonomous Region,
Hebei Province, Yunnan Province and Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region.
During the year of 2019, it has already generated significant service income
and segment profit for our Group.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a turnover of
HK$461,909,000, representing an increase of 124% from HK$410,858,000
as compared to last year. It is mainly due to the revenue contribution of
new segment from environmental maintenance business accounted for
approximately HK$226,331,000 for the year 2019, representing an increase
of 608.7% from HK$31,938,000 as compared to last year. With the effect of
increase of operating cost and impairment loss during the year 2019, loss for
the year increased from HK$25,245,000 for the year 2018 to HK$59,821,000 for
the year 2019. Basic loss per share was HK$12 cents (2018: HKS5 cents).

PROSPECTS

Apart from continuing to enhance its core business, the Group will explore
business opportunities to strengthen its revenue base. Apart from this, the
Group will also explore business opportunities to strengthen its revenue
base, such as acquiring other environmental maintenance business and/
or potential properties in Hong Kong and/or China which is expected to
generate a stable and constant stream of service and rental income to the
Group.

ES2REERERA 10
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Chairman’s Statement F[F i &

The Company believes that the environmental maintenance industry in
the PRC will enjoy a sustainable growth in the future and thus enhance the
business development and financial prospect of the Group.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | wish to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, customers
and business partners for their ongoing support and trust. Also, | would like
to express my appreciation to my fellow Directors and the staff of the Group
for their solid contribution and unwavering dedication to the Group. Based
on our success, we remain optimistic about the prospects of the Group's
future business development. We intend to execute our well-established
business strategies to enhance the Group's value and to bring a desirable
return to our shareholders.

Sang Kanggiao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SPEIERE )Nl

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was principally engaged
in four operating segments (i) Chinese restaurant and wedding business,
(i) environmental maintenance business in the PRC, (iii) property leasing
business, and (iv) securities trading business.

Restaurant Operation

As at 31 December 2019, the Group operated a total of four restaurants
which were all under “U Banquet (&) " brand (including "U Banquet -
The Starview (= . £/ ) "). During the year 2019, the Group had closed
five restaurants in Causeway Bay, Wong Tai Sin and North Point, sold two
restaurants in Causeway Bay and Kwun Tong and opened a restaurant in Sha
Tin.

We position ourselves entirely different from traditional, single service-
focused Chinese restaurants in Hong Kong. For our dining services, our
target customers are having high demand on fresh and high standard of
Cantonese dishes, quality servicing standards in hygienic and modernly
designed restaurant venues to accommodate family and friend gatherings
and corporate functions. For wedding banquet services, we provide
streamlined wedding planning and preparation process by offering one-
stop wedding solutions and the choices of creatively-designed venues to
cater our customers with high expectations on their wedding banquet.
The management resolved to improve the operating efficiency and control
expenditures of the Group. The Group reviewed the work allocation of
the staff from time to time to enhance labour efficiency. The Group also
entered into long-term tenancy agreements to maintain the operating lease
payments at reasonable level.

We believe that high product quality, service reliability and management of
operations are key success factors in business growth and sustainability. We
have a reliable management team to oversee daily restaurant operations and
wedding banquet services, to maintain quality control standards, to monitor
workforce performance and to implement expansion strategies. Our senior
management and management at restaurant-level consist of members with
solid experience in the Chinese restaurant and wedding service industry and
they are familiar with different aspects of operations of these industries.

E2REHERBERLT
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Management Discussion and Analysis &12 [E 51 5@ & 53 iifr

Environmental maintenance business

The Group started engaging in environmental maintenance business in
the PRC after the completion of acquisition of BYL on 22 October 2018. The
scope of services mainly include (i) janitorial services on streets, in green belts
zones, gullies and other public areas, such as street cleaning, mechanical
cleaning and dust removal; (i) waste management, such as disposal and
recycling of solid waste, bulky garbage, construction waste and food waste;
and (iii) facility maintenance management, such as provision of cleaning and
maintenance services (including minor repair and maintenance) for public
facilities, containers and refuse collection points. The Group deploys sufficient
cleaning staff and supervisors, specialised vehicles and cleaning equipment
in carrying out such specialised cleaning services such as dust removal with
the use of mist cannon trucks to reduce haze pollution.

The Group's environmental maintenance business is based in Chengdu,
the PRC, and reaches nationwide. Except the business in Chengdu, the PRC,
the Group wins the bidding and operates environmental maintenance
projects in areas including Xinjiang Autonomous Region, Hebei Province,
Yunnan Province and Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region. All environmental
maintenance projects are contracts with the government divisions via
tendering.

Property Leasing Business

During the year 2019, the Group recorded rental income in the amount of
HK$3,134,000 for the leasing of a Beijing office (2018: HK$4,228,000).

Securities Trading Business

During the year 2019, the Group recorded no dividend income from held for
trading investment (2018: HK$19,000).

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis &1 8575 K S 1

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The table below sets forth the revenue breakdown of the Group's for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018:

51 % 151
i 78
TRESIFEERBE-FT-AF+-A

=t+—ARZE-NF+ZA=+—HIF
JE 2 YR BA A -

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FHET
Chinese restaurant and wedding business: X EE R IBE £
Revenue from Chinese restaurant operations PR LS EB IR 232,444 374,673
Property leasing business: YIEEEER:
Rental income HEaBA 3,134 4,208
Securities trading business: EHREEEK:
Dividend income fig 2 M A - 19
Environmental maintenance business: RIBEBER:
Services income for provision of IRALR I A E A RS A
environmental maintenance 226,331 31,938
Total revenue B 461,909 410,858

Chinese restaurant and wedding business accounted for around 50.3%
of total revenue during the year (2018: 91.2%), while environmental
maintenance business account for around 49.0% of total revenue during the
year (2018: 7.8%).

During the year 2019, the Group reported a total revenue of approximately
HK$461,909,000 (2018: approximately HK$410,858,000), representing an
increase of approximately 12.4% as compared to the year of 2018. The
increase was primarily due to the increase of revenue from environmental
maintenance business, acquired in October 2018, which contributed revenue
of approximately HK$31,938,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018
and HK$226,331,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019, representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 608.7%. Revenue from the Chinese
restaurant business was approximately HK$232,444,000, representing
approximately 50.3% by total revenue. The revenue of Chinese restaurants
decreased by HK$142,229,000, decreased of 38.0% as compared to the year
of 2018. It is mainly due to the closure of five restaurants and the disposal of
two restaurants during the year 2019.

ES2REERERA
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Operating Performance by Restaurant

The table below sets forth the seat turnover rate, average spending per
customer and average daily revenue generated by each of the Group's
restaurants for the two years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December

2018:

ERZEBRRA
TERIBIAKESEERBE_F—NF
TZA=+—RER=F - \F+ZA=1+—

HIEMESFESFELZ EEREEX 8

BEFURRRTHEAME:

Year ended 31 December

Year ended 31 December

Year ended 31 December

HEt-A=1-H HEt-A=1-H HEt-A=t-H
LEE LEE LEE
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NE ZZ)N\F ZE-NE —E-0\% ZE-nEF ZT)\F
Seat turnover rate (\oze /) Average spending per customer Average daily revenue
BRESEE (Mit) BUEFTIHE FgAKE
Wedding Wedding
Dining banquet Dining banquet
customer customer customer customer
REEF BEEF REEFP B2EP
Times Times HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
=¥ ot Az B Vv B V-4 B
U Banquet (Mong Kok) (1) and 22 (BA) \REZ
U Banguet (Mong Kok) (2) (E5) Q) 284 336 94 632 100 621 162,299 203,102
U Banquet - The StarView (Kwun Tong) 2E. 2§ (B38)
(Note 6) (Hits) 416 424 100 614 101 619 138,281 143,968
U Banquet (Causeway Bay)/U Banquet B E ($i#1) /
+The StarView (Causeway Bay) 2525 (REE)
(Note 2) (Note &) (W) (Hists) 0.80 218 143 720 108 641 50,452 98553
U Kitchen (North Point) and EE (LA RER(LA)
U Pot (North Point) (Vote /) (Hit7) 2.44 266 92 528 95 533 123,048 138511
U-Kitchen (Wong Tai Sin) and 25 (BA) RBH N/A
U« Pot (Wong Tai Sin) (Note 3) (BRI (M) 148 301 66 TiEA 81 541 68,281 170922
U Banquet (Sino Plaza) (Note 4) B2 (ENES) (Wit 238 241 169 540 137 589 89,326 78487
U Banquet - The StarView (The One) ~ ZE. 2§ (The One) 118 127 29 809 270 785 177,598 192952
UBanquet - The StarView (ShaTin) 2. 2§ (WH) (#25) N/A N/A N/A N/A
(Note 3) 0.67 TR 207 737 TR TR 42,847 TR

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
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Note:

The seat turnover rate was calculated by dividing the total number of diners
(including wedding banquet diners) by the total number of seats available
for regular dining service in the relevant restaurant then divided by the total
number of operation days for the relevant period.

U Banquet (Causeway Bay) was renamed U Banquet - The StarView (Causeway
Bay) in mid-May 2019, the restaurant mainly focuses on banquet business.

U « Kitchen (Wong Tai Sin) and U - Pot (Wong Tai Sin)'s business were closed
on 2 January 2019.

U Banquet (Sino Plaza)'s business was closed on 1 April 2019.

U Banquet - The StarView (Sha Tin) is mainly focuses on banquet business and
opened in mid-May 2019.

These two restaurants were sold to an independent third party on 7

November 2019.

U - Kitchen (North Point) and U - Pot (North Point)’s business were closed on
15 September 2019.

Analysis of Chinese restaurant operations for the Two Years Ended 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018

Revenue from all Chinese restaurant operations decreased by approximately
38.0% from approximately HK$374.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately HK$232.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. It was mainly due to the closure of five restaurants and the disposal of
two restaurants during the year 2019. The revenue from these five restaurants
decreased by approximately HK$131.6 million as compared to the year 2018.
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The seat turnover rate of all comparable restaurants decreased for the year
ended 31 December 2019 as compared to that in 2018 as the total numbers
of wedding banquet customers and dining customers have decreased for
all these restaurants. The directors believed that the decrease in the seat
turnover rate was a result of 1) the accelerated downtrend of the Hong Kong
economy resulting from various uncertainties in the current environment,
including the sharp decline in inbound visitors starting from June 2019,
and gloominess of the situation of the US-China trade tension; and 2) the
weakened consumer sentiment caused by the social unrest in Hong Kong
which occurred since June 2019. The seat turnover rate of U Banquet « The
StarView (The One) and newly opened U Banquet - The StarView (Sha Tin)
were comparatively lower than other restaurants while the average spending
per customer for both wedding banquets and dining were higher than other
restaurants. The wedding banquet revenue from U Banquet - The StarView
(The One) & (Sha Tin) contributed to approximately 75% of the total revenue
of the restaurants, whilst the average wedding banquet revenue generation
ratio is approximately 19% for the rest of the restaurants in 2019.

Environmental maintenance business

The Group started engaging in the environmental maintenance business
in the PRC after the completion of acquisition of BYL on 22 October 2018.
During the year 2019, it has generated approximately HK$226,331,000 (2018:
HK$31,938,000) service income and HK$28,564,000 (2018: HK$4,654,000)
segment profit to the Group after deducting relevant expense in
amortisation of intangible asset of HK$19,594,000 (2018: HK$3,190,000).

Cost of Revenue

The cost of revenue is mainly comprised of cost of materials consumed
for Chinese restaurant business and environmental maintenance business.
Cost of revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$89,813,000 (2018: HK$107,257,000), representing a
decrease of approximately 16.3% as compared to last year. The decrease was
in line with the decrease of revenue from Chinese restaurant business as
certain restaurants were closed and sold during the year ended 31 December
2019 despite an increase in cost of revenue arising from the environmental
maintenance business from HK$2,992,000 in 2018 to HK$32,051,000 in 2019.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
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Employee Benefits Expenses

The Group had 1,383 employees as at 31 December 2019 (31 December
2018: 1,128 employees). The increase in the number of employees was
mainly due to the expansion of the environmental maintenance business
in 2019. Employee benefits expenses for the year ended 31 December
2019 amounted to approximately HK$193,821,000 (2018: HK$135,138,000),
representing an increase of approximately 43.4% compared to last year. The
Group would regularly review the work allocation of the staff to improve and
maintain a high quality of service.

Operating Lease Payments

Operating lease payments for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted
to approximately HK$19,444,000, representing a decrease of approximately
74.7% as compared to last year. Such significant decrease was mainly
attributable to the initial adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 16 ("HKFRS 16") as at 1 January 2019. Under the Group's accounting
policies in compliance with HKFRS 16, only the lease payments under short-
term leases (namely, leases with term of 12 months or less) or leases of low-
value assets and variable rents that do not depend on index or rate are
included in operating lease payments. For other lease payments (namely,
long-term leases), they are reflected on the consolidated balance sheet as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. As most of our premises are leases
that are classified as long term leases, the adoption of HKFRS 16 resulted in
a significant decrease in operating lease payments and a related significant
increase in depreciation expenses from the right-of-use assets and interest
expenses from lease liabilities.
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Year ended 31 December

BEZE+t=-H=t+—8H

tHFEE

2019 2018
—E-hE ZZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET

Depreciation charges of property, plant and M HMEMEEBITEER
equipment 20,833 15,524
Depreciation charges of right-of-use assets FRAEEENEER 40,066 =
Total depreciation rERRE 60,899 15,524
Depreciation charge of right-of-use asset TRREENEEHR 40,066 =
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAEMEMX 3,827 =
Operation lease payments LEHERNR 19,444 77,005
Total #mEt 63,337 77,005

Utilities Expenses

Utilities expenses for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$25,155,000, representing a decrease of approximately
25.8% as compared to last year. The decrease was in line with the decrease of
revenue from Chinese restaurant business as certain restaurants were closed
and sold during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use
assets

Considering the unfavourable sales performance of the remaining Chinese
restaurants, the management of the Group has consequently determined to
impair the property, plant and equipment (including the right-of-use assets)
pertaining to the Chinese restaurant business amounting to approximately
HK$23,172,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: one restaurant
HK$2,831,000).
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Amortisation expenses in intangible assets

As a result of the acquisition of the BYL Group in 2018, the Group has
carrying amount of intangible assets of approximately HK$57,402,000 as
at 31 December 2019. The intangible assets consist of customer backlogs
and customer relationship amounting to approximately HK$28,893,000
and approximately HK$28,509,000 respectively as at 31 December 2019.
Customer backlogs represent the total estimated customer contract sum
secured at the acquisition date which will be amortised over a period of 3
years. Customer relationship represents the long-time business relationship
and history with its key customers in Chengdu and is to be amortised over a
period of 10 years.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, amortisation of intangible assets
amounts to approximately HK$19,594,000 (2018: HK$3,190,000).

Fair value loss of investment properties and impairment of goodwill

As a result of the acquisition of New Fortune Group which holds an
investment property and engages in property leasing business, the Group
recognised goodwill of approximately HK$20,920,000 as at completion on
30 June 2017. The Group tests annually or whenever events or changes in
circumstances result in indicator of impairment of goodwill arising from
business combinations.

After considering the valuation of investment property as at 31 December
2019 performed by an independent professional valuer, the Group
recognised a fair value loss on investment properties amounted to
approximately HK$11,184,000 (2018: fair value gain of HKS$4,565,000). The
Group considered the revaluation downward of the investment properties
was an impairment indicator. Accordingly, an impairment of goodwill in the
amount of approximately HK$2,104,000 (2018: Nil) was recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Other Expenses

Other expenses mainly represent expenses incurred for the Group's
operation, consisting of service fee to workers, kitchen consumables, laundry,
cleaning, repair and maintenance, advertising and promotion, legal and
professional, etc. For the year ended 31 December 2019, other expenses
amounted to approximately HK$66,421,000, representing an increase of
approximately 2.1% as compared to last year. The increase mainly arose from
the full year operation of environmental maintenance business during the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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Loss Before Tax and Loss For The Year

With the effect of increasing operating cost, impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, amortisation expenses in
intangible assets and fair value loss of investment properties mentioned
above, the Group's loss before tax and loss for the year increased significantly
from approximately HK$23,279,000 and HK$25,245,000, respectively for
the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately HK$56,038,000 and
HK$59,821,000, respectively for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Resources
Capital Structure

The Group's objectives for managing capital are to safeguard its ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
its capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The Group's strategy, which was
unchanged during the year ended 31 December 2019, was to lower the
gearing ratio to an acceptable level.

Cash Position and Pledged Bank Deposit

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's cash and cash equivalents were
approximately HK$230,498,000, representing an increase of 95.9% as
compared to approximately HK$117,635,000 as at 31 December 2018.
The increase mainly arose from the net proceeds of approximately
HK$177,000,000 for the subscription of new shares under general mandate.
The Company received the proceeds before the completion of subscription.

There were no pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).
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Loans from a director of certain subsidiaries

On 9 May 2017, the Group entered into a loan facility agreement with a
director of certain subsidiaries of which the director has agreed to make
available to the Group, from time to time an unsecured loan facility
amounted to HK$60,000,000 with an interest rate of 4.5% per annum for a
term of 2.5 years. The loan facility agreement was renewed on 9 November
2019 for a further period up to 8 April 2020, all other terms and conditions
remained the same as the original loan facility agreement. As at 31 December
2019, a total of HK$41,000,000 (2018: HK$19,000,000) of this loan was drawn
down. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, in March 2020, the Group
further drew down a loan of HK$3,000,000 for daily operation.

Trade Receivables

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's trade receivables were approximately
HK$36,020,000, representing an increase of approximately 199.6% as
compared to last year. The trade receivables were mainly from the
environmental maintenance business. The increase of trade receivables
mainly arose from the environmental maintenance business which increased
from HK$11,200,000 for the year 2018 to HK$35,652,000 for the year 2019.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt
is calculated as consideration payables, loans from a director of certain
subsidiaries, loans from a shareholder, borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity” as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet plus net debt. As at 31 December 2019, the Group is at a net
cash position, hence, no gearing ratio is disclosed. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group's gearing ratio was 40%.
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Dividends

The directors do not recommend payment of final dividends in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

Significant Investment Held, Material Acquisition or Disposal
of Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies and Plans for Material
Investment or Capital Assets

Subscription of New Shares Under General Mandate

On 29 March 2019, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with China Aerospace Environmental Holdings Group Limited ( F7 Bl K
RIRIEREBERAA]), a limited company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, (“China Aerospace”), pursuant to which China Aerospace
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for (or procure the subscription by
its nominee(s)) the Company has agreed to allot and issue 30,000,000
new Shares at the subscription price of HK$1.70 per subscription share to
China Aerospace (or its nominee(s)). All the conditions precedent under
the subscription agreement have been fulfilled and completion of the
subscription took place on 24 April 2019 (the “2019 Subscription”). For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 29 March 2019
and 24 April 2019.

On 16 December 2019, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with Goldpalm Offshore Limited (£ R /B INEBR A7), a limited
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, (“Goldpalm”), pursuant
to which Goldpalm has conditionally agreed to subscribe for (or procure
the subscription by its nominee(s)) and the Company has agreed to allot
and issue 117,000,000 new Shares at the subscription price of HK$1.53 per
subscription share to Goldpalm or its nominee(s)) (“the New Subscription
Agreement”). All the conditions precedent under the New Subscription
Agreement have been fulfilled and completion of the subscription took place
on 7 January 2020 (the “2020 Subscription”). For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 16 December 2019, 19 December
2019 and 7 January 2020.
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Potential future investment

On 24 April 2019, the Company entered into a memorandum of
understanding agreement (“the MOU") with Hui Tian Network Technology
Co, Ltd. (BRI AR A7), a company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability (the “Target Company”) and Ms. Yang Meiling (“Ms. Yang")
in respect of the proposed capital injection into the Target Company. As
the negotiation on certain conditions had not been completed prior to the
expiry of the priority period on 29 October 2019, no formal agreement was
entered into between the parties. The MOU has lapsed and ceased to have
any effect. For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 24 April 2019 and 24 October 2019.

Save as disclosed above, there is no plan for material investments or capital
assets as at 31 December 2019.

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 29 October 2019, Choi Fook Holdings Limited (“Choi Fook”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a disposal
agreement with Mr. Chow Ka Chun Simon (“Mr. Chow"), pursuant to which
Choi Fook conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser conditionally
agreed to purchase the entire equity interest in Elite Rainbow Corporation
Limited (“Elite Rainbow”) and Vast Rainbow Limited (“Vast Rainbow") at a
consideration of HK$200,000 and the Group recorded a gain on disposal
of approximately HK$5.1 million which was recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within “other gain, net”. Elite Rainbow
is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company principally engaged
in the operation of a Chinese restaurant located at 2nd Floor of Crocodile
Center, No. 79 Hoi Yuen Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Vast
Rainbow is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company principally
engaged in the operation of a Chinese restaurant located at the whole of 5th
Floor and 5th Mezzanine Floor, Lee Theatre Plaza, 99 Percival Street, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong. Upon the completion of disposal, the Company will cease to
have any equity interest in the disposed companies and they will cease to be
subsidiaries of the Company. All the conditions precedent under the disposal
agreement have been fulfilled and completion of the disposal took place
on 7 November 2019. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 29 October 2019 and 7 November 2019.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company has conducted the following equity fund raising activities
during the year and subsequently after 31 December 2019.

Use of Proceeds from the 2019 Subscription

The net proceeds from the 2019 Subscription are approximately
HK$49,600,000 which were all applied for the repayment of a shareholder’s
loan.

Use of Proceeds from the 2020 Subscription

The net proceeds from the 2020 Subscription are approximately
HK$177,000,000 and the Company intends to apply the net proceeds in (i)
the settlement of outstanding consideration payable for the acquisition of
BYL Property Holdings Group Limited in 2018 amounting to approximately
HK$74,571,000; and (i) general working capital as to the remaining balance.
No further repayment has been made to the consideration payable from 31
December 2019 up to the date of this report.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (2018: Nil).

Share Option

On 17 May 2017, the Company has granted share options (the “Options”)
under its share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) adopted on 19
November 2013 to certain eligible grantees (the “Grantees”), which, subject
to acceptance by the Grantees, will enable the Grantees to subscribe for an
aggregate of 11,600,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each
in the share capital of the Company as stated in the announcement of the
Company dated 17 May 2017. No option had been exercised during the year.
As at 31 December 2019, there were 10,400,000 options outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme.
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Fulfillment of profit guarantee in relation to the acquisition

Reference was made to the announcements of the Company dated 9
February 2018 in respect of the acquisition of BYL Property Holdings Group
Limited (“Target Company”). Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement
signed between Wild South Limited (“the Purchaser”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Mr. Wan Zhong (“the Vendor”), the Vendor
irrevocably and unconditionally warrants and guarantees the Purchaser that
the aggregated consolidated net profit after tax (the “Audited Profit”) of the
Target Company together with its subsidiaries (the “Target Group) for the
three financial years ending 31 December 2020 (the “Relevant Period”) as
stated in the audited consolidated financial statements of the Target Group
for the Relevant Period (the “Audited Accounts”) to be prepared by a Hong
Kong certified public accountants’ firm (as approved by the Purchaser) shall
not be less than the total sum of RMB94,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKS$118,125,000) (the “Guaranteed Amount”). If the Audited Profit is less than
the Guaranteed Amount, the Vendor will pay the Purchaser a compensation
based on the formula prescribed in the sales and purchase agreement.

According to the unaudited financial statement of the Target Group,
the consolidated net profit after tax in the amount of approximately
RMB22,553,000 and RMB32,704,000 has been achieved for the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2019 respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the contingent consideration
receivable was determined by a professional independent valuer at
RMB6,036,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6,878,000). As at 31
December 2019, fair value loss on contingent consideration receivables in the
amount of HK$6,395,000 (2018: Nil) was determined by the same valuer.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &I €515 K 2 i

Prospects

Looking back at the year 2019, the general economy and the business
environment of catering industry in Hong Kong was severely affected by
the uncertain development of the China-US trade war as well as the social
incidents since June 2019. The situation became even worse due to the
outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia (COVID-19) epidemic (the
“Epidemic”) in the PRC since January 2020, severely affecting the operating
environment in retail and food and beverage business. To avoid the spread
of the Epidemic, the Hong Kong government has executed several policies
which has led to the decline of both local customers and tourists, seriously
affecting the people traffic and the consumers’ spending sentiment. The
management expects that the Chinese restaurant operations of the Group
during 2020 would be even more challenging. To cope with this, the
management will keep monitoring the market conditions to adjust the
operation strategies on a timely basis. The management had decided not
to renew the lease contract of U Banquet (Mong Kok) (1) and U Banquet
(Mong Kok) (2) which expired since February 2020 due to the continuing
poor performance of these two restaurants. Also, the Group would actively
negotiate with business partners including suppliers and landlords of the
Chinese restaurant operation on mitigative measures during such unabated
difficult period.

With the foreseeable worsening business environment, the Group will
continuously evaluate and adopt different cost control and cut-loss measures
in order to maintain competitiveness and to return to profitability. The Group
will pay close attention to the development of the Epidemic outbreak and
evaluate its impact on the overall financial position and operating results of
the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Group was not aware of any material adverse
effects to its environmental maintenance, property leasing and security
trading business.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to utilise its available resources to
engage in and develop its current business. Apart from this, the Group will
also explore business opportunities to strengthen its revenue base, such
as acquiring other environmental maintenance business and/or potential
properties in Hong Kong and/or China which is expected to generate a stable
and constant stream of service and rental income to the Group.
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Biographical Details Of Directors
And Senior Management
ESNESREEEBREFIE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sang Kangqiao (&), aged 44, was appointed as executive
director of the Company on 27 October 2016 and is the Chairman of
the board of directors of the Company. He is also the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Sang obtained a bachelor's degree in electrical engineering from Beijing
Institute of Technology. Mr. Sang has over 16 years of experience in the
securities investment industry in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Sang Kanggiao
is also appointed as an executive director by Starlight Culture Entertainment
Group Limited (Stock Code: 1159), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Xu Wenze (FF30UE) |, aged 56, was appointed as executive director
of the Company on 27 October 2016. Mr. Xu obtained a master's degree
in business administration from Tsinghua School of Economics and
Management. Mr. Xu has been the president of Guorun Construction Group
Limited since 1996 and the general manager of Beijing Rixing Property
Development Limited since 2004. From 2014 to present, Mr. Xu has been
employed as the president of Guorun Holdings Group Limited. He is also the
director of Asia Pacific Aviation Leasing Group from 2016,

Mr. Cui Peng (B M5) , aged 46, was appointed as executive director of
the Company on 27 October 2016. Mr. Cui obtained a bachelor's degree
in money and banking from Beijing Business School in 1997. Mr. Cui was
employed as the assistant general manager of Sinotrans & CSC Holdings
Co., Ltd's finance department from 1997 to 2012. From 2012 to 2014, Mr. Cui
was the managing director of capital operations of ABCI China Investment
Corporation Limited. Mr. Cui has over 20 years of experience in the securities
investment industry in PRC and over 10 years of experience in Hong Kong's
securities industry.
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Biographical Details Of Directors And Senior Management 2L S EI12EEFEF1E

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. XU Zhihao (# &%) , aged 48, was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 27 October 2016. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr Xu graduated with
a bachelor's degree in laws from Guangzhou Jinan University in 1994 and
obtained a master of laws from the graduate school of China University of
Political Science and Law in 2004. Mr. XU Zhihao was employed by a real
estate company prior to working at Huabang (Guangdong) Century law firm.
From 2001 to 2003, Mr. XU Zhihao worked in Guang Dong Rong Guan law
firm. Mr. XU Zhihao is currently a senior partner in Jincheng Tongda & Neal
(Shenzhen) and has extensive experience in the operation of banks and non-
bank financial institutions, including trusts, securities and financing leasing
institutions. Mr. XU Zhihao is skilled in various real estate financing, including
trust support and equity financing.

Mr. LAM Ka Tak (#E &), aged 38, was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company on 27 October 2016. He is also
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Lam graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a bachelor's degree in accounting in 2003 and obtained a master of
business administration from the Hong Kong University in 2013. Mr. LAM
Ka Tak was employed by RSM Nelson Wheeler (currently known as RSM
Hong Kong) before working as an audit manager at KPMG. Mr. LAM Ka Tak
currently serves as the chief financial officer and company secretary of Beijing
Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited (Stock Code: 2389), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. LAM Ka Tak is
also appointed as an executive director by Beijing Sports and Entertainment
Industry Group Limited (Stock Code: 1803), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. LAM Ka Tak has over 15 years of experience
in accounting and financial matters.
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Biographical Details Of Directors And Senior Management E= NS EIREEEFE

Mr. WONG Sincere (ZE & 8 ), aged 55, was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company on 27 September 2018. He is
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s
degree of social science from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in Hong
Kong in December 1986. Mr. Wong was admitted as a solicitor of Hong Kong
and England and Wales in October 1993 and February 1994, respectively. Mr.
Wong is the founder and currently a partner of Wong Heung Sum & Lawyers
(formerly known as Sincere Wong & Co.). He is also a non-executive director
of MOS House Group Limited (Stock code: 1653) and an independent non-
executive director of Bank of Gansu Co., Limited (Stock code: 2139).

He was an in-house counsel for Hutchison Whampoa Group from September
1996 to January 2005 and China Resources Enterprise, Limited (Stock code:
291), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (now known
as China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited) from February 2005
to November 2006, chief legal officer of Shui On Construction and Materials
Limited (now known as SOCAM Development Limited) (Stock code: 983), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from November
2006 to June 2010, as well as the head of the legal department and company
secretary of Sateri Holdings Limited (a company previously listed on the
Stock Exchange, the name of which was later changed to Bracell Limited but
has subsequently been privatized) from July 2010 to May 2011. He worked
at the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from August 2011 to April 2016, and was
a vice president of Listing & Regulatory Affairs Division at the time of his
departure from the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, primarily responsible for
reviewing listing applications and providing recommendations to the Listing
Committee of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange regarding listing applications.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Kin Man Duncan (Rf3) , aged 47, was appointed as the
Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer of the Company on 19
December 2016. Mr. Yu holds a master degree in Professional Accounting
and Corporate Governance in The City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Yu has
over twenty years of experience in accounting, financial management and
corporate finance. He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.

E2REHERBERLT

32

ERELE 55 R=E— \FhLA-t++
HEZXAARRBYIENTES -HAH
WEEEXF BREESGRIEREZEFK
BoEAER—NN\NF+Z ARCLRES
WEBFXKRBESHERBELEM -F
EEEER—NN=ZFTAR—NAANF=
AESEERARENEBNEMERS -5
A RED LA EET (BB 2R
EBFOBIMAMBAIAERA-BITA
MOS House Group Limited ( BDR5% : 1653) 2
ERITESRERBTRMDAERAR (B&HD
RE%:2139) 2 BN IEMITE S -

BER—NANAFNRAREZZEZTRF— AHHE
ABMEEEEERN R RIAEAERER I
RZEERFZAZETTF+— AHME
ABZAER LT AREHEEBRAA
(B fRsk:201) (GGRBAIEEEE (ER)
ERATH AT AT ERBER -HR =T
ERF+—AZE-_ZT—ZTF X A BRI
RFER ETARMEEERRA A (KK
RS9 HEBHBEE IR T —FF
tAEE——FHAHMEESIIER
BRATF] (BRBRAT ET - 8224 ABracell
Limited * MEBER EALB L) BUEB I EEM A
AME -FR_E——FN\AE_ZT—F
VY A B B R B BB R PT BT MBS 5
BOBREOBUAREE T2EBEEH
THEBE TRAESHIAMEMZESH L
MERBRE R

BREEE

REIEE - a75% RZE—AFTZATI
REZERARRZ ARWERVBEE-
RAERBARHARDEEESTHEE
ERTA T Bl RELBBIBOFH G
MEE R ARMBER RARBEEFA
REAMAGERGE BESHNASE

=
BENBEFANEREEER-

— &=

“B-NFFR



The board of directors of the Company (‘Board”) presents its annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review are set out in the section of "Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 12 to 29.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Company'’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in four reportable
and operating segments (i) Chinese restaurant and wedding business,
(i) property leasing business, (iii) securities trading business, and (iv)
environmental maintenance business in the PRC.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 240 of this annual
report.

DIVIDENDS POLICY AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company (‘Director(s)”) do not recommend payment of
any dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company's ability to pay dividends depends on, among other things,
the Group's current and future operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements. The payment of dividends by the Company is also subject to
compliance with any restrictions under the Laws of the Cayman Islands, the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company and any applicable
laws, rules and regulations. The Board will review the dividend policy from
time to time and may exercise at its absolute and sole discretion to update,
amend, and/or modify the policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any specific period.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the year.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company's reserves available for distribution to
shareholders comprising share premium account plus accumulated losses,
amounted to approximately HK$107,588,000.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$3,322,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s articles
of association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (“Director(s)") during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Sang Kanggiao (Chairman)

Mr. Cui Peng
Mr. Xu Wenze

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lam Ka Tak

Mr. Xu Zhihao

Mr. Wong Sincere

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with articles of association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 30 to 32 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

All the Independent Non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
terms subject to the relevant provisions of the articles of association or any
other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their

office.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2019, the following Directors, had the following interests
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) as recorded in the register required to be kept under

section 352 of SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company

shares/underlying

BYFHATESNEH

BB FATEEZZEERTEMES
HEEZHENREAIASERAMANE
A LAt A 2 B RIS AR ©

EENRER
R-E-hF+-_A=+—8 THEBEER
Apal REAEER (TR EFHFRAEK
B (T35 5 R EEEHI]) ExvER) Mk &AR
RARR 17 AP R R SRR IR 7B 5 A B 161 8
INEBFE 2B RMARNEREIT :

REARTDRGBPBIER

Number of
Approximate %

Name of director Nature of interest shares held of shareholding
Frisg 13,
EEpE NGRS HEROHEE BMAOREEDE
Mr. Sang Kanggiao Beneficial owner 189,152,000
REBEE EmEAA
Other 105,800,000
Hit
294,952,000 50.16%
(Note 1)
(Pi&ED)
Mr. Cui Peng Beneficial owner 5,400,000
ERsxLE EmEAA
Other 289,552,000
Hit
294,952,000 50.16%
(Note 2)
(Pf&E2)
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Number of
shares/underlying Approximate %
Name of director Nature of interest shares held of shareholding
i,
BEENR NCIECE HERDH A BARERES L
Mr. Xu Wenze Beneficial owner 100,400,000
X OEL A ERBEBA
Other 194,552,000
EHfth
294,952,000 50.16%
(Note 3)
(BftE3)
Mr. Lam Ka Tak Beneficial owner 400,000 0.07%
MeEREE EnfEEA (Note 4)
(Bt3Ea)
Mr. Xu Zhihao Beneficial owner 400,000 0.07%
REBELEE EnEA A (Note 4)
(P &F4)
Note: B3 -

The interest comprises 188,752,000 shares and 400,000 underlying shares in
respect of the share options granted pursuant to the share option scheme.
Details of the share options granted to this director are set out above under
“Share Option Schemes”. Other represents the shares and underlying shares
held by Mr. Xu and Mr. Cui which are parties acting in concert with Mr. Sang
and by virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Sang, Mr. Xu and Mr. Cui is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by each other.

The interest comprises 5,000,000 shares and 400,000 underlying shares in
respect of the share options granted pursuant to the share option scheme.
Details of the share options granted to this director are set out above under
“Share Option Schemes’. Other represents the shares and underlying shares
held by Mr. Sang and Mr. Xu which are parties acting in concert with Mr. Cui
and by virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Sang, Mr. Xu and Mr. Cui is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by each other.

The interest comprises 100,000,000 shares and 400,000 underlying shares in
respect of the share options granted pursuant to the share option scheme.
Details of the share options granted to this director are set out above under
“Share Option Schemes”. Others represent the shares and underlying shares
held by Mr. Sang and Mr. Cui which are parties acting in concert with Mr. Xu
and by virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Sang, Mr. Xu and Mr. Cui is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by each other.
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4. The interest are 400,000 underlying shares in respect of the share options
granted pursuant to the share option scheme. Details of the share options
granted to this director are set out above under “Share Option Schemes”.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no debt securities
issued by the Group at any time. Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December
2019, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their
associates had any interests and short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which each of them has taken or deemed to have taken
under the provisions of the SFO); or which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register referred to therein; or which
were required, pursuant to Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of substantial shareholders (other than
the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

4. ZE R AR B AT 8P X H R0 BB AR AE
i K #9400,0008 AERARR (7 - BRAR TR ES
B AR M S BN L (BB RT3l -

REE-ZE-AF+TZRA=+—HILHFE
N AEEHMENMEAREETERES -
BRAFHRAREEIN R-T-NF+ A
=R ARREFHETBTHRABRE
FZMEABER AR R A A HEEE
(EERBHFRAEHEIIEXVED) 2 FE [
7 HEARDXREEET  FHEREESFR
HERAIEXVENE7 R BAEMG AR T R
ERBARSMERAR (B 2E
EEMAR (BREREZES B GREIZ
BRGXRESBRGBIEAEREE 2R
FORR) - HARIERRE 5 K I E 553521678
BN IGBIFTIR B T A 2 s FOR B
FARIR E AR AT ER10ZE AN G AR B B
PRz s FORR -

FERRREMATREQAR
7 -HEROREEEFNES
URKR

RZZE—NAF+ZA=+—B EZRFE (K
NRAEEHERSTHA BRI RARFR
SRR P ER AT LN RIEE S K
BRI EBGREFEERMANEEN
T

Number of shares

and derivatives Percentage of

Name of substantial shareholder interested issued share capital

BEEZNRAR HERT

TERRER FTETIAEEE RAEBDH

Goldpalm Offshore Limited 2 ¥R 48 /@ SN G BR A 7] 117,000,000 19.90%
Ma Yanying'

5] iy 117,000,000 19.90%

FREMRRRIZREBEGRA R 30,000,000 5.10%

AREMAEBREEEBRAF 30,000,000 5.10%

AREMAEERREXZREES (ARER) 30,000,000 5.10%

MAREFREER (BR)BMRARY 30,000,000 5.10%
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Report of the Directors EE & &

Notes:

1) Goldpalm Offshore Limited is wholly-owned by Ms. Ma Yanying. This presents
the same interest of Goldpalm Offshore Limited.

2) This represents the same interest of China Aerospace Environmental Holdings
Group Limited*, Inner Mongolia Aerospace Junfu Environmental Industry
Fund (LLP)* and Inner Mongolia Aerospace Junfu Environmental Technology
Company Limited* of 30,000,000 shares. China Aerospace Environmental
Holdings Group Limited* is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Inner Mongolia
Aerospace Junfu Environmental Technology Company Limited*, of which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Inner Mongolia Aerospace Junfu Environmental
Industry Fund (LLP)* and Inner Mongolia Aerospace Junfu Environmental
Industry Fund (LLP)* is 100% controlled by Aerospace Zijin Investment
Management (Nanjing) Company Limited*.

3) These percentages have been compiled based on the total number of issued
shares of the Company of 588,000,000 as at 31 December 2019 and rounded to
two decimal places. All interest stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors were not
aware of any persons (other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company) who had any interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

*  For identification purposes only

COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the directors are not aware
of any business or interest of the directors, the management of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any other
conflict of interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.
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Report of the Directors EE & &

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as those interests disclosed under the paragraph entitled “Related Party
Transactions’, there is no contract of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and the five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Notes 10 and 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 1,383 employees. The Directors and
senior management receive compensation in the form of salaries, benefits in
kind and discretionary bonuses with reference to salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and the performance of the Group. The
Company also reimburses them for expenses which are necessarily and
reasonably incurred for the provision of services to the Group or executing
their functions in relation to the operations of the Group. The Company
regularly review and determine the remuneration and compensation
package of the Directors and senior management, by reference to, among
other things, market level of salaries paid by comparable companies, the
respective responsibilities of the Directors and the performance of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.
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Report of the Directors EE & &

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to support environmental protection to ensure
business development and sustainability. The Group implement green office
practices to reduce the consumption of energy and natural resources. These
practices include the use of energy-saving lightings and recycled paper,
reduce energy consumption by switching off idle lightings, computers
and electrical appliances and the use of environmentally friendly products
whenever possible.

A separate environmental, social and governance report is expected to be
published on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company's website no
later than three months after this annual report has been published.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers in aggregate and the single largest customer
of the Group accounted for approximately HK$115,874,000 or 25.09% and
HK$46,186,000 or 10.0% of the Group's total revenue for the year ended
31 December 2019 respectively. The information in respect of the Group's
purchases attributable to the major suppliers during the year is as follows:

RE HEREBHRS
AEFBBRNZFRFRE  ARREBER
KA @ - AEBEHITRER A EEE
LURIRBER M B A B RZEFE - A BRI R
RERAERANRRE  ZBEAHER
B BN ERR R BERERE - IARAERT BE
BATHREEARRER-

—HEBNRS HEREAREENNE
TR I A 3R 0= 1B B AR 52 B
BAR AR I -

FEEFRHERS
KEBAAREFEGARE—HARAEFH A
EAREEHE-_T-AFE+_A=+—8H
1 FERUREE49115,874,00078 7T 8625.09% M.
46,186,000/ 7T 3%10.0% - F A - B B £ B
EEAEAEBREENER DT

Percentage of

the Group's

total purchases

hEREEBAKEE

Aok

The largest supplier BAMER 28.54%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AREEEER 47.75%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company'’s issued
share capital, had a beneficial interest in any of the Group's five largest
supplier and customers.
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Report of the Directors EE & &

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of borrowings of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 28, 29
and Note 38(c)(iv) & (v) to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the listed securities of the company during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior
to issue of this report, the Company has maintained the sufficient public float
under the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Company’s shareholders on 19
November 2013 (the "Adoption Date”) for the primary purpose of providing
eligible participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company and to motivate, attract and retain the eligible participants whose
contributions are important to the long-term growth and profitability of
the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include any employees, any
executives, non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors), advisors, consultants of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
The Scheme became effective on 10 December 2013 (the “Listing Date”)
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years commencing on the Listing Date, the principal terms of which were
summarized in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV
to the Company's prospectus dated 28 November 2013.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under the Scheme
and any other schemes of the Company (excluding options lapsed pursuant
to the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company) must not exceed
58,800,000 shares, representing 10% of the issued shares of the Company at
the date of the annual report.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued to each eligible
participant under the Scheme in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the issued shares of the Company unless approved in advance by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
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Report of the Directors EE & &

Any option to be granted under the Scheme to a Director, Chief Executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company or to any of their respective
associates must be approved by all Independent Non-Executive Directors
of the Company (excluding Independent Non-Executive Director who is the
grantee). In addition, any option to be granted to a substantial shareholder
or an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company or to any of their
respective associates which will result in the shares issued and to be issued in
excess of 0.1% of the issued shares or with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000
within any 12-month period is subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.

The offer of a grant of options under the Scheme may be accepted within 28
days from the date of the offer and by payment of HK$1.00 as consideration
for the grant of an option. An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during a period as to be determined
and notified by the Directors to each grantee, but shall end in any event not
later than 10 years from the date of the grant of option.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors and shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company's shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant of
an option, which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant of an
option; and (jii) the nominal value of the Company's shares.

The remaining life of the Scheme, which will expire on 9 December 2023, is
approximately 3 years from the date of this report.
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Share Option Movements

As at 31 December 2019, there were a total of 10,400,000 outstanding share
options granted to directors, employees and consultants of the Company,
details of which are as follows:

Report of the Directors EE & &

BRESZE
R-ZB-AE+-_A=1+—8 BFERQT
EE - EENEMMNERITERKRELS
10,400,00010 - BEAFFIBWT :

Number of share options

BREHE
As at Forfeited Lapsed Asat
1 January during the during the 31 December Exercise
Name of director Date of grant 2019 year year 2019 price  Exercise period
RZZB-h& 7@
RZB-NE £RE £RE +=A HKD
Esps R AH -A-8 R PS4 =t+-H AL TEH
Sang Kanggiao 17 May 2017 400,000 = = 400,000 1.99 17 May 2017 to
16 May 2027
(Note 1)
EEB “EiF I S 2
EA+LH LA+tRE
“EBoLF
AATARA
(B3E1)
CuiPeng 17 May 2017 400,000 o = 400,000 199 17 May 2017 to
16 May 2027
(Note 1)
£k “EiF I S 2
EA+LH LA+tRE
“EBoLF
AATARA
(B3E1)
XuWenze 17 May 2017 400,000 o = 400,000 199 17 May 2017 to
16 May 2027
(Note 1)
AFXE —E—+tF Bt
EA+LH LA+tRE
“BoLF
BATAA
(B3E1)
Lam Ka Tak 17 May 2017 400,000 = = 400,000 199 17 May 2017 to
16 May 2027
(Note 1)
nEE “EiF i S 2
BEATLH LA+LRE
“BoLF
BATAA
(B30
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Number of share options
BREHE
Asat Forfeited Lapsed Asat
1 January during the during the 31 December Exercise
Name of director Date of grant 2019 year year 2019 price  Exercise period
RZZE-h& 7@
RZZ-N& £RE £RE +=A HKD
Esps R AH -A-H R P31 =t-8 Br RS
Xu Zhihao 17 May 2017 400,000 = = 400,000 199 17 May 2017 to
16 May 2027
(Note 1)
RER it 2 —ZT+t#%
TA+LR TAttRZE
it a3
EA+RA
(B
2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Note: Bt t3e8
1. For options granted with exercisable date determined based on the grant date 1. R AGREBRER L B REEAT

of options, the first 30% of the total options can be exercised 1 year after the
grant date, 40% of the total options can be exercised 2 years after the grant date
and 30% of the total options will become exercisable in 3 years after the grant
date.

Details of movements of share options granted to employees of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:
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Number of share options

BREZE
As at Forfeited Lapsed Asat
1 January during during 31December  Exercise
Date of grant 2019 the year the year 2019 price  Exercise period
7@
R-Z-1F R-Z-1%F HKD
R AH -A-B  ERERYR  FRE4AR t=A=t-H AL TR
17 May 2017 800,000 (280,000) (120,000) 400,000 199 17May2017to
16 May 2027 (Note 1)
“Z—+FRAt+tA —Z+tFRA+LRE
“E-t+ERATRE
(BzE)
Note: M3 -
1. For options granted with exercisable date determined based on the grant date 1. BATERE A A RBEERER L AHETE

of options, the first 30% of the total options can be exercised 1 year after the
grant date, 40% of the total options can be exercised 2 years after the grant date
and 30% of the total options will become exercisable in 3 years after the grant

date.

Details of movements of share options granted to consultants of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Number of share options

AT BRI BT S - BAUEAR
HSE30% A] I FR ) B AR — 1T - BEAR
TE 4B B HY400 AT IR A IR 1T
VA K% f B R 42 21 #930%F] PR I B #Ri%
=FTE

RBE-T—AFT-A=+—AILEER

7N 52 B R R 9 L O i Al e

BT

BREHA
Asat Forfeited Lapsed Asat
1 January during during 31December  Exercise
Date of grant 2019 the year the year 2019 price  Exercise period
7B
RZZE-h& RZZE-h& HKD
Rt A -A-B ERERR FRE4R t=A=t+-8 AL RS
17 May 2017 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000 199 17 May 2017 to
16 May 2027 (Note 1)
“ZT—tFRA+tA “Z—tFERATERE
“EZEERA+TAR
(P&
Note: Bt 5 -
1. For options granted with exercisable date determined based on the grant date 1. RAELEARBERERL QBT

of options, the first 30% of the total options can be exercised 1 year after the
grant date, 40% of the total options can be exercised 2 years after the grant date
and 30% of the total options will become exercisable in 3 years after the grant

date.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this Directors’
Report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for
the benefit of any of the directors of the Company (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the Company).

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers and a resolution for the re-appointment
as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of Stock
Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the Company at
www.u-banquetgroup.com.

By order of the Board

Sang Kanggiao
Chairman

31 March 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to ensure a high standard of corporate
governance in the interests of the shareholders and devotes considerable
effort to maintain high level of business ethics and corporate governance
practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
throughout the year. The Company has applied the principles of, and
complied with, the applicable code provisions of the CG Code during the
year ended 31 December 2019. The board of the Company (the “Board") will
keep reviewing and updating such practices from time to time to ensure
compliance with legal and commercial standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board of the Company is primarily responsible for formulating strategies,
monitoring performance and managing risks of the Group. At the same time,
it also has the duty to enhance the effectiveness of the corporate governance
practices of the Group. Under the Board, there are 3 board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. All these committees perform their distinct roles in accordance
with their respective terms of reference (available on the Company’s
website) and assist the Board in supervising certain functions of the senior
management.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group had adopted Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”)
as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions on
terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings.

Having made specific enquiries to all the directors and all the directors of the
Company had confirmed compliance with the required standard of dealings
and the code of conduct for directors’ securities transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At present, the Board of the Company comprises six directors (‘Directors”) as
follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Sang Kanggiao (Chairman)
Mr. Cui Peng
Mr. Xu Wenze

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Ka Tak
Mr. Xu Zhihao
Mr. Wong Sincere

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section of “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 30 to 32.

The Board has the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company.
They are collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group
by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board is accountable
to the shareholders for the strategic development of the Group with the
goal of maximizing long-term shareholder value, while balancing broader
stakeholder interests.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, Audit Committee
meetings, Remuneration Committee meeting, Nomination Committee

H=

{ ]

RBE-F—AF+A=+—HILER-
FEEHFEFRER EREASEH

BEE&

meeting and general meeting during the year ended 31 December 2019is ¥ MZEggH REZEggHLRERX
set out in the following table: B2 RHRINAT
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
(attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/
total no. of total no. of total no. of total no. of total no. of
Name of Directors meeting held) meeting held) meeting held) meeting held) meeting held)
Ezeg ENZESE yHzEge REZEEEE BREAE
(HESERE/ (HESERE/ (HEeERE/ (LESERE/ (LEEE/E/
BEspg BReEAY) BERAH)  BUSE48)  E7eB4y)  ENg38%)
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Sang Kanggiao REFLE 99 NATER " /1 Wy
Mr. Cui Peng ERxs 99 NATER NA R NATER 0
Mr. Xu Wenze FXERE 99 N/A T A N/A T8 A N/A T iE A n
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTEE
Mr.Lam Ka Tak WRERE 99 0 11 NATER 0
Mr. Xu Zhihao REELE 99 0 N/A T8 A 1 n
Mr. Wong Sincere BAMBEE 99 2”2 " n NA @R

Code Provision A.1.3 stipulates that at least 14 days’ notice should be given
for a regular Board meeting. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notices are generally given. Board papers together with all
appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all directors
at least 3 days before each Board meeting or audit committee meeting
to keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.
All Directors are provided with details of agenda items for decisions making
with reasonable notice and welcome to include matters in the agenda
of the Board meeting. Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring that the Board
procedures are complied with and advising the Board on compliance
matters.
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Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings are kept by
Company Secretary and are opened for inspection as requested by Directors.
During the year, the Board was given sufficient time to review and approve
the minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings. Directors
are also provided with access to independent professional advice, where
necessary, in carrying out their obligations as Directors of the Company, at
the expense of the Company.

If potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder or a Director
arises which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt
with by a physical board meeting rather than a written resolution. Directors
who are considered to have conflict of interests or material interests in the
proposed transactions or issues to be discussed would not be counted in
the quorum of meeting and would abstain from voting. The Directors attend
meetings in persons or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

All Directors assume the responsibilities owed to the shareholders of the
Company for the well-being and success of the Company. They are aware of
their duties to act in good faith and in the best interests of the Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting records so as to
enable the Directors to monitor the Company’s overall financial position. The
Board updates shareholders on the operations and financial position of the
Group through half yearly and annual results announcements as well as the
publication of timely announcements of other matters as prescribed by the
relevant rules and regulations.
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The Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors, at least one
of whom has appropriate financial management expertise, in compliance
with the Listing Rules. Each of the Independent Non-executive Director has
made an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-
executive Directors meet the Independence Guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

According to the Company’s articles of association, newly appointed
Directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting and shall
be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Sang Kanggiao was the Chairman of the Board since 27 October 2016.
There was no Chief Executive Officer appointed by the Company and the
day-to-day management of the Group was led by Executive Directors during
the year. There is no time schedule to change this structure, as the Directors
consider that this structure provides the Group and strong and consistent
leadership in the Company’s decision making process and operational
efficiency. The Board will, nevertheless, review the business growth of the
Group and locate suitable candidate to fill the vacancy of Chief Executive
Officer when considered essential.

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to provide leadership for
the Board to ensure that the Board always acts in the best interest of the
Group. The Chairman shall ensure that the Board works effectively and fully
discharges its responsibilities, and that all key issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. The Chairman has taken into account, where
appropriate, any matters proposed by the Directors for inclusion in the
agenda. The Chairman has delegated the responsibility of drawing up the
agenda for each board meeting to the Company Secretary. With the support
of the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and have received
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner. The Chairman also take
primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established.
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The Board is therefore of the view that these is an adequate balance of power
and that appropriate safeguards are in place. Nevertheless, the Board will
continue to regularly monitor and review the Company’s current structure
and to make necessary changes when appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Chairman held a meeting
with the independent non-executive directors without the presence of the
executive directors as required by the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

Under Code Provision A4.1, all the Non-Executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for three years but subject to termination in certain circumstance
as stimulated in the relevant service contracts. At each annual general
meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (of if their number is
not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one
third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of members after his appointment and
be eligible for re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed as an
addition to the existing board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and has
adopted written terms of reference on its corporate governance functions.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions
include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
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(iif)

reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v)  reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

In 2019 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the
corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered
diversity of board members can be achieved through consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

On recommendation from the Nomination Committee, the Board will set
measurable objectives to implement the Policy and review such objectives
from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives. The Nomination Committee will
review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from
time to time.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee was set up on 19 November 2013, with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provisions, which have been
reviewed from time to time by the Board to keep them in line with the most
up-to-date requirements to oversee the remuneration policy and structure
for all Directors and senior management. The most up-to-date written terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s
website and on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
of the Directors and the senior management and determining the
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible to ensure that no Director
or any of his associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration,
which will be determined by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year. The
members reviewed the remuneration package of Directors and the senior
management of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members namely:—

Mr. Wong Sincere (Chairman)

Mr. Sang Kanggiao

Mr. Lam Ka Tak

Majority of the members are Independent Non-executive Directors.
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In addition, pursuant to the Code Provision B.1.5, the annual remuneration
of the member of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out below:

UEAh - ARIBTRNEEBI SR BHEZT—N
FH_A=t—BLFESREEEKEN
FEHFMIRARFEIIAT -

2019
o

HKS Nil to HK$1,000,000 =7 7T 21,000,000 7T 1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 19 November
2013 for making recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors
and succession planning for the directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of Directors, assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors and viewing the
board diversity policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, one Nomination Committee
meeting was held (i) to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board; (ii) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; (i) to review the contribution required from a director to perform
his responsibilities; and (iv) to review the training and continuous professional
development of directors. The individual attendance for the Nomination
Committee meeting had been disclosed earlier in this report.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year. The
Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of the Directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members namely:—

Mr. Sang Kangqiao (Chairman)

Mr. Xu Zhihao

Mr. Wong Sincere

Majority of the members are Independent Non-executive Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee on 19 November 2013
with written terms of reference that set out the authorities and duties
of the Audit Committee. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available at the Company's website and on the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Audit Committee performs, amongst
others, the following functions:

Review financial information of the Group

Review relationship with and terms of appointment of the external
auditors

Determination of the nature and scope of the audit

Review the Company's financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings. The Audit
Committee oversees the internal control system of the Group, reviewed
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 and interim results, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, selection and appointment of the external auditors,
reports to the Board on any material issues, and makes recommendations
to the Board. There had been no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee during the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

The Audit Committee comprises three members namely:—

Mr. Lam Ka Tak (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Zhihao
Mr. Wong Sincere

All the members are Independent Non-executive Directors (including
one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner
of the Company’s existing external auditors.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal control
systems in order to safeguard the Group's assets and Shareholders’ interests,
and review and monitor the effectiveness of the Company's internal control
and risk management systems on a regular basis so as to ensure that internal
control and risk management systems in place are adequate. The Company
has established written policies and procedures applicable to all operating
units to ensure the effectiveness of internal controls. The Company also
has a process for identifying, evaluating, and managing the significant risks
to the achievement of its operational objective. This process is subject to
continuous improvement and was in place throughout 2019 and up to the
date of this report. The day-to-day operation is entrusted to each individual
department, which is accountable for its own conduct and performance, and
is required to strictly adhere to the policies set by the Board. The Company
carries out reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control systems from
time to time in order to ensure that they are able to meet and deal with the
dynamic and ever changing business environment.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review and
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's internal control and risk
management systems including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management which assisted by Group’s internal audit
team. Besides, in order to manage the Group's compliance status, the Legal
and Compliance Committee holds monthly meetings to review the Group's
compliance with Main Board Listing Rules, internal control measures and all
relevant laws and regulations. The results of such review were satisfactory.
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Risk Management Process

RREERRF

The Group strives to maintain a sound risk management and internal control & BEBUH A RIS EE M R B IR K NEEES
systems which are essential to accomplish its business objectives and itslong {2 & & HhABRASBEEKBEERES
term sustainable growth. The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for —~ A& R - EE SR H B TE KL
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks rest all levels — EEEARLEA SR B FATFERBREME RIZE
of the organization. To this end, the Management regularly and continuously ~BEZEEBET -FitME  SEEBFHNFE
reviews and makes improvements in its risk management process. In & & R B IR 7 I mh U 1E H Bk E o ko -

addition, the Group engaged an external consultant and conducted a  AGEEZIEINERERI W ¥ AN E B MR R EIE
comprehensive review of the Group's risk management. The following #7172 HE&F] - NREAAEEH KRR

diagram illustrates the Group's general risk management process. EIRRRF -

Stage 1 The Board establishes common risk assessment criteria

Establish Risk Context

FIEER EEgRUERRRGRE

BIRRBRAR

Stage 2 Divisions and departments identify the risks that potentially impact the operation
Risk Identification processes

FBEER BN BMEFBEEERIZEARBEZENE R

[ Bez 58 7

Stage 3 Divisions and departments assess and rank the identified risks along with the
Risk Assessment impact on the business and likelihood of occurrences

B3R BN EHAMIMPIH D BRI AR R EBRENRE RELEN AR EIT
= Bea BT A SN

Stage 4 Divisions and departments assess effectiveness of existing controls and provide
Risk Treatment treatment plans where required

FaPE R B HIMAFI LR A ENEENARETRHEE TR (NFE

[ B i 3%

Stage 5 Divisions and departments monitor risk and report risk to the Board

Risk Monitoring and Reporting
SESPE R
[ B 5 4% K SR 5

The Board mitigate or eliminate the risks depends on the impact of the risk
EoEAMHFEERRYMESSRERR
BRI E R T ERESOHRR E R
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In the course of risk management, the Board and the Management adopt
a mix of risk strategies to handle various types of risk exposure. The risk
strategies are listed as follows,

- Risk Acceptance: Risk acceptance does not reduce any effects
however it is still considered a strategy. This strategy is a common
option when the cost of other risk management options such as
avoidance or limitation may outweigh the cost of the risk itself. A
company that doesn't want to spend a lot of money on avoiding
risks that do not have a high possibility of occurring will use the risk
acceptance strategy.

- Risk Avoidance: Risk avoidance is the opposite of risk acceptance.
It is the action that avoids any exposure to the risk whatsoever. Risk
avoidance is usually the most expensive of all risk mitigation options.

- Risk Limitation: Risk limitation is the most common risk management
strategy used by businesses. This strategy limits a company's
exposure by taking some action. It is a strategy employing a bit of risk
acceptance along with a bit of risk avoidance or an average of both.

- Risk Transference: Risk transference is the involvement of handing
risk off to a willing third party. For example, various companies
outsource certain operations such as customer service, payroll services,
etc. This can be beneficial for a company if a transferred risk is not a
core competency of that company. It can also be used so a company
can focus more on their core competencies.
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THE GROUP’S TOP 6 RISK EXPOSURES AEE@EENASKER

BEAR @ ARZIER -
COMPETITIVE RISK FOOD SAFETY RISK y

& R B OPERATIONAL RISKS
ECONOMY RISK SERE

Type of Risks Risk Description Risk Strategy(ies)
[ B 2 B [ B 4 | B K B
Competitive Risk | food industry, there are always potential threats in food safety and quality. ~ — Risk Limitation

The food industry has seen cases of food contamination, due to reasons
ranging from the raw material of food source, processing and storage in
supplier plant and environmental impact. To ensure our food safety and
quality, the Group will continue to conduct food safety audit and look for area
of enhancement in more stringent food safety audit in all areas of operation.
For example, the Group will arrange anonymous customers to evaluate
regularly the quality of the Group's product and service offering.

As the end users of our environmental maintenance services is the public and
our works are subject to public scrutiny, our customers would consider works
quality is the utmost crucial criterion for their selection of service providers. In
order to ensure our environmental maintenance business sector to continue
success, the Group has imposed rules and regulations to our employees to
e standardize their quality of works. B N
o R BRAGE2NERBEARKRTEFREEN R -AWEM - — BRRS
EEMIAEENZEFRE RERXSERALAISIBRMGR KK
ERFUTHEZ VTERMTEEREE FSRERENHE A
BREMBERZZ -fl XEEBLHELRT P EHTEREER
FRHEMKRRBENES -

HREMREEERGHORERESAR BRMANTEZZ QR
BB RMNTEPEEERGEHERES TIFEERARERNH
BT R - REERBEPNRFEEEXZBHRPIFEXD LE ~AEE D&
HERBIVRAIRER UWEETEEEREIZE.
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Risk Description

2, B ik

Risk Strategy(ies)
| B 3R

Food Safety Risk

Economy Risk

7 L

Supply Risk

HER

The food and beverage industry is highly competitive, which is why it
is important to be efficient, stay up-to-date with nutritional trends and
consumer tastes. Understanding the challenges and opportunities in both the
industry and the market are important for any food retailer and manufacturer.
RmEEHTERFIZ RS X HEEMEEBY RIRE
HEEORBAEE - TRITERTSNKELEEHENRERTE
BREERERER -

The Group's revenue is significantly dependent on Hong Kong's economy.

A sustained economic downturn could curtail consumer spending and
therefore the Group's revenue. As the risk is systematic in nature, there is no
measure for the Company to completely eliminate the risk.
AEENRRBRERBEEELE - HENKETITREREEERX
WiE R A A EBE) U - AR AR B Rl - AR B EEREE
e A BB JH B 5% L2

Any disruption of a food item or a supplier can impact the choice of food
menu and operation. With our diverse food menu choices and strong network
of suppliers, this risk poses no immediate threats to the Group, yet the Group
keeps a close eye on the diversity and management of supply chain.
EERmIHERENTRIGTERYKENLERE - UM
LRI EBEMABRNHERREE  ZEARY REREES
KEREE BEXAERNEe —BEEYEINERHEBENZRE-
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Type of Risks
[ B 2 B

Risk Description

2, B ik

Risk Strategy(ies)
B B R

Road safety risk

Operational Risks

5>

EER

3

Our environmental maintenance business sector is expose to road safety

risk as it deployed a considerable number of motor vehicles to conduct its
business. The management has implemented certain measures to ensure the
mechanical reliability of the motor vehicle; provision of training and guidance
to the drivers to regulate their driving attitudes; and all motor vehicles are
properly insured and registered to the relevant authorities.
HPNRFEEXZRIPERER L ERAR  RERETTZEBREL
ETHEENENAE - BEECHITE THEMUAERTEAER A 5
M RHERBIREESIARBEERREE - AAREHRERE
ERRENERE REM-

As the work require huge number of labour, the risk on insufficient labour
supply, insufficient experienced managerial personnel and increasing labour
costs can impact the Group's profit.
HRIERERELH N BB NHETERAKBRNEBAETE
BWER  UARESBEA R ENELEAEENTE-
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2019 Internal Controls and Risk Management Review

The Group has also appointed an external independent internal control
consulting company (“external consultant”) to conduct annual review of
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk management
systems. No material internal control and risk management deficiencies were
identified. The Board, during its annual review on the risk management,
has confirmed the sufficiency of the resources and staff qualifications and
experiences of the Group's risk management function.

To conclude, the Board believes that the existing internal control and risk
management systems of the Group is adequate and effective.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on their reporting
responsibilities and opinion on the Group's financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor, including whether such non-
audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect on the
Company.

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out as follows:

—F-NFAREEREREE
=

AEEFEEESEBY AHEREN A
U%%%ﬁﬂ%$%lﬁ%%§&ﬂ@a
RGME R T EEN R R R
BAPNME L RERERBE  NERE R
WEEENBIET EFECRRIEER
RERMEL AR E TAERERMN T
e

mmME 2 EFERRAKENREAE
ZRRBRERERARBERD RER-

S B B SRR I Bk B A BN &
ADFSMNEZBEHE R REENRARY
AEEBE-Z-NF+-A=+—ALF
EUBREELOER SNAFR BT
RBE RS —

ARBBEZZEGAREBINERHEINE
E R BB SMNIE A BUEM A 1T 0 (E (] SE AR
B BRERFIFERBAE E'TA%TK AlE
EEMBEEATHZE

HE_ZT-NE+_A=t+—HIEFEEEN
S ENFRERGES AT SR E R
Fan -

Fee paid/payable

B ENEA

HK$'000

FHET

Audit services Ei AR 1,650
Non-audit services (other services related to IEEATARTES (IR BB K

investment circular) BREAMNEMRT) -

Total w@Et 1,650
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
for each financial year which gives a true and fair view. In preparing the
financial statements, appropriate accounting policies and standard are
selected and applied consistently.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are
followed and for facilitating communications among Directors as well as with
shareholders and management.

Mr. Yu Kin Man Duncan declared that he had participated in relevant trainings
in 2019, which met the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a key
to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business developments
and financial performance through its annual and interim reports. The
corporate website of the Company (www.u-banquetgroup.com) has
provided an effective communication platform to the public and the
shareholders.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed director receives formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

ES2REERERA 64
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All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has continuously provided relevant training materials to the
Directors. Directors participated in courses relating to roles, functions
and duties of a listed company director or further enhancement of their
professional development by the way of attending training courses or
reading relevant materials. All Directors had provided the Company their
training records for the year under review and the Company will continue
to arrange the training in accordance with paragraph A6.5 of the code
provisions. The Directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in discharge
of their duties while holding office as the Directors and officers of the
Company. The Directors and officers shall not be indemnified where there is
any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust proven against them.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our shareholders
with detailed information about the Company so that they can exercise their
rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include annual general meeting, annual report, various notices,
announcements and circulars. The annual general meeting and other general
meetings of the Company are primary forums for communication between
the Company and its shareholders. The Company provides shareholders with
relevant information on the resolution(s) proposed at general meetings in a
timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided
is reasonably necessary to enable shareholders to make an informed decision
on the proposed resolution(s). All the resolutions proposed to be approved
at the general meetings will be taken by poll and poll voting results will be
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company after the
meetings.

At the annual general meeting held on 13 June 2019, the Executive Directors
and Chairman of the Board, the chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration
and Nomination Committees and representatives from the auditor of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, were present to attend to answer
questions from shareholders. There were one general meetings held during
the year.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED

65

ARBBEABEEES AR EERIAZE
RREMEMBEE AR BFEREFR
HAREEER -ERE2EAW LT ARE
WAL BERBENRENBEBHFEE
IRz BIEREERE — TR EERH
R-FFEEECMARRRMEROEFE
MR DIRRIZRE 8 AN R R ARE T RIS
A6SIRITE L HEI - RBEEERSABE
BEERR EERERBENETARRE
=L BEERBETEEEMELNE
ES A RIE - MM E =R DR B E
EFAEEARE RBERETR AIRE
R E -

HERRAEE
BEREREEORRRHARANFEE
B DA R AE SR TATEE B M1
A

RRBRA—RFBRRBARREBIR AN
TRREGAR FHBBREBERRE
FRE FH ZHBE 2MHIER-AR
AIRRBERE REMKRRAS /A AR HE
HERBENIZFR -ARARELTR
A R SRREHRENERAE LIREK
REBEMEEER -FRRENENBAEY
B UERREEEIR 2HDRFERIEL MIBER
ERRIRRAE LIREMREZ B RER
BRARESTRETRR RERRERE
RASREB T RARRMIET)E -

BN & RFGE SR AN E B ARE
HEREG A ZBRRARR - FRHEIT—
RIRRAE °

E

>}

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

(N



Corporate Governance Report (F #E /5 R&

Under Code Provision A6.7, Independent Non-executive Directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. At the said meeting, all the Independent Non-executive
Directors were presented to enable the Board to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

During the year, the Company has not made any change to its constitutional
documents. A consolidated version of the Company's constitutional
documents is available on the Company’s website and the website of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2012
Revision). However, shareholders are requested to follow article 64 of the
Articles of Association of the Company which provides that extraordinary
general meetings should be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If the Board fails to proceed to convene an extraordinary
general meeting within 21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionist(s) may convene an extraordinary general meeting himself/
themselves, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

E2REHERBERLT
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A PERSON
FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
director of the Company are laid down in Article 113 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to the office
of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the Head
Office or at the Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar. The period for lodgment
of the notices required under this Article will commence no earlier than the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting and the minimum length of the period during which such notices
to the Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the attention
of company secretary, by email: info@u-banquetgroup.com, or mail to Suite
1201, Cityplaza One, 1111 King's Road, Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules, and
publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of the Company
is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and
complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well as the public to
make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure
an effective distribution of the resources and shareholders’ interests. The
senior management will continue endeavors in maintaining, enhancing and
increasing the Group's corporate governance level and quality.
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To the shareholders of U Banquet Group Holding Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of U Banquet Group Holding Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 240,
which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

the consolidated cash flows statement for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (‘HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (‘the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Impairment assessments of intangible assets and goodwill

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
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Key Audit Matter
HRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWET AR EARET SR

Impairment assessments of intangible assets and goodwill

BYEERBEZRENGE

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
B2 E VB HRERME8

As a result of the acquisition of New Fortune Holdings Group
Limited (“New Fortune”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“New Fortune Group”) and BYL Property Holdings Group
Limited (“BYL") and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “BYL
Group”) in recent years, the Group recognised goodwill
amounting to HK$106.8 million and certain intangible assets
amounting to HK$57.4 million as at 31 December 2019.

The Group tests annually or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate an indicator of impairment of goodwill
arisen from business combinations. For intangible assets, the
Group assessed impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable.

Management grouped the assets of the Group at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
that were largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash generating units) and
performed impairment assessments in respect of the cash
generating units identified using the higher of their respective
value-in-use and fair value less costs of disposal.
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In testing the reasonableness of management's impairment
assessment on intangible assets and goodwill, we have
performed the following procedures:
RAREREBHETLEENEEMETRENENS
B RPEEIT TIRER:

Obtained from management the discounted cash flow
projections for each individual cash generating unit,
discussed with senior management to understand
their assumptions applied in the financial budget and
forecasting of operating results as included in the
discounted cash flow projections;

Assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used by management;

Challenged the key assumptions used, including
but not limited to, the annual revenue growth
rate, estimated gross profit margin and long
term growth rate with reference to the historical
performance, secured service contracts and external
macroeconomic and industry specific factors to assess
the reasonableness of these assumptions adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow projections;
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Key Audit Matter
HRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWET MR EARET SR

Impalrment assessments of intangible assets and goodwill (Continued)

BREERBEZREMN L (&)

We focus on this because the goodwill and intangible assets
recognised as a result of such acquisitions are significant to
the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019.
Furthermore, such impairment assessments prepared by
management involved significant judgement with respect to
the assumptions about the future results of the businesses.

Key assumptions include sales growth rate, gross profit
margin percentage, terminal growth rate and discount rates
applied in the discounted cash flow projection. Based on
management assessments, no impairment loss is considered
necessary for goodwill and intangible assets of the Group
except for an impairment loss of goodwill related to the New
Fortune Group CGU amounting to HK$2.1 million charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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Together with our in-house valuation specialist,
analysed the reasonableness of the discount rate
adopted by management with reference to external
data of comparable companies in the market;

Evaluated the sensitivity analysis prepared by
management around the key assumptions of the
discounted cash flow projections such as sales growth
rate, gross profit margin percentage, long term
growth rate and discount rates to ascertain whether
the extent and likelihood of such changes have been
appropriately considered and disclosed; and

Considered whether disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements are adequate and appropriate.

Based on our procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions used by management in the impairment
assessment of intangible assets and goodwill were
supported by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
HRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWET AR EARET SR

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

ME- BERRBURERAEEERE

Refer to note 16(a) and note 16(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group had HK$54.7 million of property, plant and
equipment and HK$29.7 million of right-of-use assets as at
31 December 2019, of which HK$13.6 million of property,
plant and equipment and HK$28.9 million of right-of-
use assets were attributable to its Chinese restaurants. The
carrying amounts of these assets of each Chinese restaurant
were written down to their recoverable amounts if the
assets’ carrying amounts were greater than their estimated
recoverable amounts.

Management regards each individual Chinese restaurant as
a separately identifiable cash-generating unit and monitors
its financial performance for the existence of impairment
indicators.
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In testing the reasonableness of management's impairment
assessment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of Chinese restaurants, we evaluated
management’s assessment process for identifying
underperforming Chinese restaurants by:

Enquired of management on their basis of identifying
impairment indicators;

Challenged the judgements made in the identification
of impairment indicators; and

Compared the actual performance, for newly opened
store, to the budget.

We tested the impairment calculation by performing the
following procedures:

Compared the forecasted sales performance to the

approved business plan, and compared estimated
running costs to the historical records;
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Key Audit Matter
HRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWET MR EARET SR

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

ME BERRBUAREREEERNE (&)

Management regards those Chinese restaurants with losses
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (‘LBITDA")
in the current year or with an aggregate projected earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA")
in the remaining lease term below the aggregate carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets, as having impairment indicators.

Management carried out an impairment assessment for
the Chinese restaurants which had impairment indicators
and recognised impairment losses of HKS$8.5 million and
HKS$14.7 million on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets respectively in the profit or loss for the year.
The recoverable amounts of the assets of these Chinese
restaurants were determined by value-in-use calculations
using discounted cash flow projections based on the financial
forecasts approved by management covering the remaining
lease term of each of these Chinese restaurants, which were
higher than the respective fair value less costs of disposal of
these Chinese restaurants.

We focus on this area because significant estimation and
judgement were involved in deciding whether Chinese
restaurants had impairment indicators and in determining
the recoverable amounts of the assets of relevant Chinese
restaurants.

EREBAFESEARFE HIE ITEREHEAE
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BN REERBETVEEEENA BESRRINRE
NEEWSE [

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED 73

Enquired of management in relation to key
assumptions in their business plan and evaluated the
key assumptions (such as revenue growth rate and
various costs to revenue ratios) applied by comparing
them to historical information and our understanding
of latest market information and condition;

Recomputed the impairment loss calculation; and

Evaluated the sensitivity analysis to ascertain the
extent of change in the key assumptions either
individually or collectively that would result in the
relevant assets of Chinese restaurants being impaired
and also considered the likelihood of such a change in
the key assumptions arising.

Based on our procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions used by management in the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of Chinese restaurants were supported by
available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Cheung Kin Bong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

|'TD%EI‘I&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ—=ZF

—NFTZ—A=1—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+t—BLEFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
B FHEx F&T
Revenue Wz 6 461,909 410,858
Other income NN 7 2,043 1,872
Cost of revenue W ES B AR 8 (89,813) (107,257)
Employee benefits expenses BTREFFAX 10 (193,821) (135,138)
Depreciation e (60,899) (15,524)
Amortisation B85 (19,594) (3,190)
Operating lease payments KLEHER R 16(b) (19,444) (77,005)
Utilities expenses NHEEHEHRZ (25,155) (33922)
Other expenses A 9 (66,421) (65,086)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HEEATEGFABREZ
fair value through profit or loss SEEE W - 302
Fair value loss of financial assets at BAFEFAEBRZCREE L
fair value through profit or loss NEEEE 3.3() (6,395) =
Fair value (loss)/gain of wEYE 2 AN FE
investment properties (E518) Was 17 (11,184) 4,565
Impairment of property, I ER NG =
plant and equipment and EAEEEZRE
right-of-use assets 16 (23,172) (2,831)
Impairment of goodwill EESNERE 18 (2,104) -
Other gain, net Hiolzs  JF 58 7 3,941 206
Operating loss REEE (50,109) (22,150)
Finance income A 12 1,516 864
Finance costs B IDIN 12 (7,445) (1,993)
Finance costs — net B T P AN — VR BE 12 (5,929) (1,129)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —F—NF+=-H=1—HIFFZE

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+t—BLEFE

2019 2018
—E-hFE | ZZT—)\F
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
B 5% FET FHTT
Loss before income tax METSHATEE (56,038) (23,279)
Income tax expense Fri8FiF 2 13 (3,783) (1,966)
Loss for the year FEBER (59,821) (25,245)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: THALEN (BB RR:
Equity holders of the Company RArRIERHEA A (71,003) (27,260)
Non-controlling interests e AR HE A 11,182 2,015
(59,821) (25,245)
Loss per share for loss attributable A QAT ZEEFZEE A
to the ordinary equity holders EBEBE2SRER:
of the Company:
Basic loss per share FREAREE 14 | (12 centsi&Al) | (5 centsiiIl)
Diluted loss per share FREEEE 14 N/ATIE A N/AT 3 A
Other comprehensive loss: Hih 2 HEEE
Items that may be reclassified to Al EF 7 2B o HE
profit or loss
Currency translation differences Bl E = (4,853) (3,179)
Total other comprehensive FEHMEAEERRE
loss for the year (4,853) (3,179)
Total comprehensive loss for the year F£E 2 EAHE (64,674) (28,424)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 L2 = ZF—NF+=-H=1—HIFFEZE

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+t—BLEFE

2019 2018

—g-nF | —T-NF

Note HK$’000 HKS'000

B FHEx FET

Total comprehensive THALELZE
(loss)/income attributable to: (BB) WHesE:

Equity holders of the Company RArRIESHEE A (74,856) (30,859)
Non-controlling interests e AR fE 2 10,182 2435
(64,674) (28,424)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read LA %24 & T8 Uk %5 2% & B2 8 B Bt 5% — 6 62
in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
ROEE8ExR

As at 31 December 2019 R-FE—HEF+=-H=1+—H

As at 31 December

R+=-A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
Note HK$’'000 HKS'000
B 5 FET FHET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB Mt 16(a) 54,702 62,667
Investment properties B 17 95,222 108,423
Right-of-use assets FRESE 16(b) 29,673 -
Goodwill EES 18 106,774 111,247
Intangible assets B EE 18 57,402 78,081
Non-current deposits EMmBIRS 21 7,084 15,751
Prepayment for acquisition of gty E RN L =
property, plant and equipment FETFIE 21 844 921
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFGTAERZ
profit and loss TREE 2 537 6,878
Contract assets BHEE 6 27,543 13,204
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTEE 30 5,120 6,473
Total non-current assets ERBEELRE 384,901 403,645
Current assets REEE
Contract assets EHEE 6 - 1,742
Trade receivables H 5 EWGIE 20 36,020 12,024
Deposits, prepayments and Ze BANRER
other receivables H th & U FRIE 21 26,939 36,453
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIReEEY 23 230,498 117,635
Total current assets MBEERE 293,457 167,854
Total assets HEE 678,358 571,499
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Consolidated Balance Sheet &8 & E&E%

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZF—NF+-H=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Note HK$’'000 HKS'000
B 5 FExT FHETT
EQUITY E=
Equity attributable to owners of ARAEHEE AELER
the Company
Share capital [N 24 5,880 5,580
Share premium f& 17 i@ B 24 304,370 255,070
Reserves i 25 (49,776) (155,664)
260,474 104,986
Non-controlling interests =R ER 41 66,416 58,082
326,890 163,068
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 16(b) 29,440 -
Accruals, provisions and BErEA BER
other payables H At &~ R 27 - 2997
Contract liabilities BHEE 6 2,103 2,260
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSHAE 30 39,480 44,048
Provision for reinstatement costs 1E1E P AN 31 447 1,565
Total non-current liabilities ERE B FELRRE 71,470 50,870
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables B ERRIE 26 29,387 20,250
Accruals, provisions and other payables — FE&H &~ BB &
A JE N FRIE 27 49,818 51,503
Deposits received Bz e 27 578 2,103
Provision for reinstatement costs 1E18 P AN 31 - 1,552
Contract liabilities EBHEE 6 23,915 36,272
Consideration payables JERIRAE 74,571 113,102
Lease liabilities HEAR 16(b) 18,648 =
Amount due to a related company &1 — I BB A B 3KI8 38(c) 3,378 3453
Amount due to a director B —REEHIE 38(c) 1,100 1,100
Amount due to a director of certain ENETHE AR Z
subsidiaries —REEHNIAE 38(c) 99 -
Borrowings EE 28 1,674 =
Loans from a shareholder RERE R 38(c) 19,456 95,043
Loans from a director of BETHBRARZ
certain subsidiaries —REEEK 29, 38(c) 41,000 19,000
Current income tax liabilities BERFT SR & & 16,374 14,183
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As at 31 December 2019 R-FE—hF+—-H=4+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H”
2019 2018
=2-nF | ZFN\F
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000
B 5 FET FHET
Total current liabilities MEBERTE 279,998 357,561
Total liabilities HWeE 351,468 408,431
Total equity and liabilities HWEZREE 678,358 571,499

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with

the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 240 were approved by
the Board of directors on 31 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf

Sang Kanggiao
RE®
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 =L —NF1+=A=+—HIFFZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KDRREAER
Share-based Non-
Share Share Capital  Exchange payment Accumulated  Statutory controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses reserve Total interests Total
HRBA
b1
Bx ROEE ErRGE  EXRGE  AREGE  RHEE  iERG @i FERER @it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TET TE#R TET TET TET THT TAT TAT Thx TE
For the year ended BE-E-N\F

31 December 2018 TZB=t+-BLEE
Balence as at 1 January 2018 RZF-\5-A-AW&H 5580 26120 498 3206 3428 (142359) - 13091 - 130961
Comprehensive income: 2ENE:

Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - (27.260) - (27.260) 2015 (25,245
Other comprehensive income: At 2EkE:

Currency translation difference ERREES - - - (3599) - - - (3599) 420 (3179
Total other comprehensive loss 22 EFELE - - - (3599) - - - (3599) 40 3179
Total comprehensive loss *EBEAE - - - (3599) - (27,260) - (30859) 2435 (28424)
Transaction with owners in BEFANEREAN

their capacity as owners: FREANRE:

Share-based payment DR BEREFR

(Note 39) (Hi3t3s) - - - - 4565 - - 4565 - 4565
Lapse of share options (Note 39) BIRERR (H3s5) - - - - (47) u7 - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) WEHEAR (M3 - - - - - - - - 55,966 55,966
Transfer from share-based payment BURD BEBN MR

reserve to share premium (Note 25) ~ EEEER (AR 1E (Fi5E25) - 18950 - - (18950) - - - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve BRELTERE - - - - - (331) 650 319 (319 -
Balance as at RZB-NF

31 December 2018 +-A=+-BMEH 5580 255070 4986 (393) 87% (169,703) 650 104986 58082 163,068
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity % & &
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —F—NF+=-H=1—HIFFZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEBAER
Share-based Non-
Share Share Capital  Exchange payment Accumulated  Statutory controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses reserve Total interests Total
HRBA
2B
Ba  RGEE EARE  EXRE  AREE  RHER  LERE &t FERER &t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TAL TAL TERL TARL TAL TAL TARL TR TEL TEL
For the year ended BE-E-NF

31 December 2019 TZB=t+-BLEE
Balance as at 1 January 2019 RZZ-nF-A-BHEH 5580 255070 4986 (393) 87% (169,703) 650 104986 5808 163068
Comprehensive income: 2EYE:

Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (71,003) - (71003) 11,182 (59821)
Other comprehensive income: At 2 EWE:

Currency translation difference EHREER = = = (3853) = = = (3853) (1,000) (4853)
Total other comprehensive loss At2EFELEE - - - (3853) - - - (3853) (1,000 (4853)
Total comprehensive loss rEERSR - - - (38%3) - (71,003) - (74856) 10182 (64674)
Transaction with owners in BEFANEHEAN

their capacity as owners: %ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ% :

Issuance of ordinary share BLa 300 49300 - - - - - 49600 - 49600
Share-based payment (Note 35) SR ﬁ%ﬁ@m DES
(KiE3s) - - - - 18% - - 18% - 18%
Lapse of share options BIRERK - - - - (283) 3 - - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTATRE - - - - - (1923) 37 1848 (1849) -
Shares to beissued (Note 25) # T %R (Hiks) - - 177,000 - - - - 177000 - 177,000
Balance as at RZB-hE
31 December 2019 TZAZT-BiER 5880 34370 181986 (4240) 10409 (242.346) 4401 260474 66416 326890

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Cash Flows Statement
MBIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 =L —NF1+=A=+—HIFFZE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—HA=+—HLEE
2019 2018
—E-NEF ZE-N\F
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
B FHEx T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMBRENE
Cash generated from operations KEMSRE 34(a) 78,977 18,847
Mainland China income tax (paid)/ (B RERBERM
refunded, net PRS- H %R (5,222) 327
Net cash inflow from operating activities S EBELERSRAFE 73,755 19,174
Cash flows from investing activities RETEFMBRENE
Interest received B A E 218 50
Purchases of property, BEWE WELEX
plant and equipment (48,965) (10,768)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE - KBER
plant and equipment H M2 FT1S 58 - 380
Net cash outflow from disposal of & KB R R TS
subsidiaries &ML F 33 (436) -
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, G NEPNCIPANE &
net of cash acquired BB WER S 32 - (39,034)
Payment for purchase of trading securities BERFHEF MK - (30,552)
Proceeds from trading securities R G H 5 RIE - 34,301
Proceeds from sale of asset held for sale HERELEEEZ
FT1SRRIA - 32,182
Net cash outflow from investing activities WEESELR SR FRE (49,183) (13,441)
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Consolidated Cash Flows Statement 28R ERExE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 ElZ=F—NF+=-H=

T —HIFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+t—BLEFE

2019 2018
—E-AF | ZE—N\F
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
B FHEx FET
Cash flows from financing activities RETEMERENE
Interest paid ERHE (7,418) (1,937)
Proceeds from loans from a director ETHBARMN—RES
of certain subsidiaries WE R Z TS 5kIE 51,000 (26,000)
Repayments of loans from a director EEETHBARIN—%
of certain subsidiaries BEEHEX (29,000) -
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIE R Z 5 RIR 5,765 -
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER (4,035) -
Repayments of principal portion EEHERGB 2RSS
of lease liabilities (40,233) -
Proceeds from loans from a shareholder RERE R ZFBRIE 44,447 250,070
Repayment of loans from a shareholder EERRER (120,034) (305,717)
Repayment of consideration payable BEEMKE 34(d) (38,531) =
Issuance of ordinary shares by subscription LARREE 75 = 31T AR 24 49,600 -
Net proceeds received on shares 1% T 21T AR D R 2
to be issued FriS 5B 558 25 177,000 -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from MEFHEERSARA
financing activities () 588 88,561 (83,584)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BERIRESEEWEM
cash equivalents CRd) F58 113,133 (77,851)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNReRRESEFEY
of the year 117,635 196,335
Currency translation differences BEmEEE (270) (849)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FREBGRRESEEYD 23 230,498 117,635

The above consolidate cash flow statement should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#n © B 5 ¥k < Bfd 5

GENERAL INFORMATION

U Banquet Group Holding Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 20 June 2013 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office is PO.
Box 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman KY1-1205, Cayman Islands. The Company's principal place
of business is located at Suite 1201, Cityplaza One, 1111 King's Road,
Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in Chinese restaurant
and wedding business, property leasing, securities trading business
and environmental maintenance business.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKS") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HKS'000) unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of directors on
31 March 2020.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise
stated. The consolidated financial statements are for the Group
consisting of U Banquet Group Holding Limited and its subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of investment properties and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair values.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1
(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New standards, amendment to standards and
interpretation adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new standards,
amendment to standards and interpretation for the first
time for their annual reporting period commencing 1
January 2019:

Annual Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle
Improvements  (@amendments)
Project
HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
(@amendments)
HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures (amendments)
HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation (@amendments)
HKFRS 16 Leases (new standard)

HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
(new interpretation)

The Group had to change its accounting policies
following the adoption of HKFRS 16. The impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 16, “Leases” is disclosed in Note 2.2.
The other amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or
future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEETBREBE(£)
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEE(E)
(b)  New standards and amendments to existing standards k) FE]ERIREFE
that have been issued but are not effective and have RIS TS E 17
not been early adopted by the Group i 1R iR R
FEFEIEER
b7l

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after

RUTBEHR 2%
Bt M FE R AN
HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business (amendments) 1 January 2020
BB GRS ERNFE35 ¥BmEsE (BIX) —T_FF5—H—H
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material (amendments) 1 January 2020
BREGFERE R R BAMESE (BFIX) —T-_THE—-H—H

RS ENH65R

To be determined

HKFRS 17

Insurance Contracts (new standard)

BRI RE LR E 175 Riea 4 GoraT£R1) FE
Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framewaork for Financial 1 January 2020
Financial Reporting 2018 Reporting

—NFHBREZEDER BTN BRERSIER —T-THE—H—H
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Hedge accounting (amendments) 1 January 2020
BRI ERESR FEME gt (BaIX) —Z-ZTF—-—H—H

WEERFERREBSH

¥R A= Bl Fosk

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BB BHRELERIF 105 K&
BRI ERF8H

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture (amendments)

REFHAEBMEPENSEEE L RNEEH
& (BFIR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBRREBE(F)
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEE(E)
()  New standards and amendments to existing standards () FETEAIREEE
that have been issued but are not effective and have BIRIEaT A2 1
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued) i 1R e R R
AEE T HEIE TR
M (E)
The above new standards and amendments to existing T ET A A KR IR A 48
standards have been published that are not mandatory BERT B AR - ER B
for the annual reporting periods commencing 1 January —E-NF-A—HHH%
2019 and have not been early adopted by the Group. 2 2 ¥R HA R A R
These new standards and amendments to existing HE R AR BN R R AR
standards are not expected to have a material impact on Ao TREARZ E R AT £ A &
the entity in the current or future reporting periods and REENETTIEHE
on foreseeable future transactions. The Group intends BER B AR R B
to adopt the above new standards and amendments to REARARARR ZEKE
existing standards when they become effective. TR AEERNEE

AR BB PR T R 2E R
REBERINER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ? FEBHBEBE(£)
(Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies 22 EBBEREE

The note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
Leases on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 retrospectively from 1 January
2019, but has not restated comparatives for the 2018 reporting
period, as permitted under the specific transitional provisions in
the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising
from the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the
opening consolidated balance sheet on 1 January 2019. The
new accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2.27.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities
in relation to leases which had previously been classified as
‘operating leases’ under the principles of HKAS 17 “Leases’.
These liabilities were measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019. The weighted
average lessee's incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 3.26%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i)  Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics,

the accounting for operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1
January 2019 as short-term leases,

the exclusion of initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date
of initial application, and

the use of hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether
a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the
transition date the Group relied on its assessment made
applying HKAS 17 and HK(FRIC) — Int 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B 75 # % [ 5+
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TESHBEBME(£Z)
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)  Measurement of lease liabilities

22 ESEBEEH (£Z)

(i) FTEHEEAMRE

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FET
Operating lease commitments RZE—NF+ZRA=+T—HEZEHN
disclosed as at 31 December 2018 4T B 215,969
Less: Leases committed but notyet B : R=ZF—hF— A —HEHE
commenced as at mARFABHAE
1 January 2019 (62,591)
Operating lease commitments of RZE—NF—HA—ARBHEE
leases commenced as at ST E A
1 January 2019 153,378
Discounted using the lessee's W%D\J‘Eﬁﬁ H HA (e A AR
incremental borrowing rate SERFIELEE
at the date of initial application 148,171
Less: Extension adjustment B R (38,870)
Less: Short-term leases recognised B ESEAEERARIMEHAE
on a straight-line basis
as expense (16,769)
Lease liabilities recognised as at R=E—hF—A—HAERANBEEERE
1 January 2019 92,532
Of which are: He:
Current lease liabilities mEHERRE 36,056
Non-current lease liabilities FEnBHEaRE 56,476
92,532
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBRREBE(F)
(Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 22 BETHEEE (£)

(iii)  Measurement of right-of-use assets (i) FTEEFEEE
Right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal ERAEEERBSNE
to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any EEBCoEFE WK
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease BR=_Z—N\F+=A
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 =t+—BrEGEaREARE
December 2018. There were no onerous lease contracts KPR EZIEEEH
that would have required an adjustment to the right-of- ZAEAIER SR E AT
use assets at the date of initial application. REeFETHAE - RER

FERBH WELMFEE
HERREEFLRRZ
ZEHEALN-

ses@ERERAE 96 _F-hEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(iv) Adjustments recognised in the consolidated balance

sheet on 1January 2019

The following table shows the adjustment for change
in accounting policy recognised for each individual line
item. Line items that were not affected by the changes
have not been included. As a result, the sub-totals and
totals disclosed cannot be recalculated from the numbers

provided.

2 FESHBRRBE(F)

22 EETBERE (£)
i) R-ZFE—NF—HF

31 December

—AZHERER
18 2 H 1 58 /9 5 B
TRIRERH BREED
T 34 65 B E B8 B R
BE-YETEDYEMN
BRER TREER A
i TREAE IR BT
B E RN R

5T o

2018 1 January
As originally 2019
presented HKFRS 16 Restated
—E-N\E
T=A 5& —B-NF
Er=p MRS —A—H
BRAWES  ERE165 RE
Consolidated Balance Sheet #SREEEREBR HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(extract) (BE) FATT FAETT FETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Right-of-use assets FREEE = 86,095 86,095
Total assets BEE = 86,095 86,095
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE = 56476 56476
Current liabilities RBERE
Accruals and other payables FEH & A N A (b Ef 708 6,437 (6,437) =
Lease liabilities HEAE = 36,056 36,056
Total liabilities BEE 6,437 86,095 92,532

There is no impact on the Group's equity as at 1 January

2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iv) Adjustments recognised in the consolidated balance

)

sheet on 1January 2019 (Continued)

Impact on segment disclosures

The segment assets of the Hong Kong Chinese restaurant
and Environmental maintenance business have increased
by HK$86,095,000 as at 1 January 2019 as a result of the
change in accounting policy.

Lessor accounting

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the
accounting for assets held as lessor under operating lease
as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16.

2.3 Principal of consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between the Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and balance
sheet respectively.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to
non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or
received is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Changes in ownership interests (Continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate because of a loss
of control, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHEERE (£)
(Continued)
2.4 Business combination 24 XS/

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred,

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business,

equity interests issued by the Group,

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity's net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Business combination (Continued)

The excess of the
consideration transferred,

amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate
used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (the “CODM"). The CODM is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments.

Foreign currency transaction
(a) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKS"), which is also the Company's
functional and the Group's presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency transaction (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within ‘other expenses'.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency transaction (Continued)
()  Group companies (Continued)

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange difference arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowing and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold
or any borrowings forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly offices. Property, plant
and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of 5 years and the

unexpired lease term
Air-conditioning Shorter of 5 years and the
unexpired lease term

Equipment
Furniture and fixtures

5 years
5 years

Motor vehicles 3 years to 8 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
‘other gains’ in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields for capital
appreciation or both, and are not occupied by the Group.

Before 1 January 2019, land held under operating leases are
accounted for as investment properties when the rest of the
definition of an investment property is met. The operating lease
is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

With effect from 1 January 2019, right-of-use assets held under
operating leases are accounted for as investment properties
when the rest of the definition of an investment property is met.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
After initial recognition at cost, investment properties are carried
at fair value, representing open market value determined at
each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
the information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets
or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values
are recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of current
market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis,
any cash outflows that could be expected in respect of the
property. Some of those outflows are recognised as a liability,
including finance lease liabilities in respect of land, if any,
classified as investment property; others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they
have been disposed of or when the investment properties are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents
the excess of the consideration transferred over Group's interest
in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwiill is monitored
for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
a potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (Continued)

2.11

Customer backlogs and customer relationship

Customer backlogs and customer relationship acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life of 3 years and
10 years separately and are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life for example, goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment.

Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHHRERE (£)
(Continued)

2.12 Non-current assets held for sale

212 FFHEFRRBEE

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such
as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets and investment property that are carried at fair
value and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which
are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent
write-down of the asset to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is
recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs
to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss
not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-
current asset is recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented
separately from the other assets in the consolidated balance
sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TESHBEBME(£Z)
(Continued)
2.13 Investments and other financial assets 213 RERHEMEMEE

(a) Classification (a #HE

The Group classifies its financial assets as financial assets
at fair value (either through other comprehensive income
(OCl) or through profit or loss), and at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(b)

(9

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(9

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/
(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair values. Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at FVPL are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as applicable.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

2.15

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair values. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. See
Note 2.13 for a description of the Group’s impairment policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.16

2.17

2.18

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flows statement, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19

2.20

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they
are incurred since no borrowing costs are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
income tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company's
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(9

Deferred income tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where
the company is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligation

The Group operates certain defined contribution plans.
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund on
a reduction in the future payments is available.

Hong Kong

The Groups operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) which is
registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held in separate trustee-administered funds.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are
charged to consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the year as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligation (Continued)

Mainland China

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
schemes for its relevant employees in Mainland China.
The state-sponsored retirement schemes are responsible
for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable
to the retired employees. The Group's contributions to
the state-sponsored retirement schemes are expensed
as incurred and are fully and immediately vested in the
employees.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(9

(d)

(e)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed
to a termination when the Group has a detailed formal
plan to terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling
due more than twelve months after the balance sheet
date are discounted to their present value.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that
has created a constructive obligation.

Long service payments

The Group's net obligation in respect of long service
payments to its employees in Hong Kong upon cessation
of their employment in certain circumstances under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount of
future benefits that the employees have earned in return
for their services in the current and prior periods.

E2REHERBERLT

122

2

TESTHHREE (&)

222 EEREA (Z)

—m
—=

(9

(d)

(e)

NFFR

BEREAE T

BB RN NERELERR
R B HIRT R AR R B R -
HEREEX BRERUA
BB B4R BB S A o AR
= B2 7 5 B GG 10 TS B
FERBEB AR A IRIR— IR
AR IEAFBIREIRE
BEMNER CRBAREH
mge)  RERREH—RE
LA S B B RAE AR T e i
B B BB AR N (BB AR A 3R
BEMRXZONER AR
BE) EXERRER
+ @A A RREFBAIR
REBRE-

TEAL51 &)
AEEHEARDAER
B AEMBANEE
REBEEHELNEE
B (s -

RAIEH &

RIBBEBRBIGD N&
BAEETHERTRIER
EREEMARE
RHRBREETFE &
BRERRAH BT
e 42 (kAR 745 T R AR B0 AR 2R
BRIEEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEETERRBE (&)
(Continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (Continued) 222 EEER (&)
(e) Long service payments (Continued) () REMRHBE (&)
The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit I EERNATEFEAER
method, discounted to its present value and reduced SERTE 0 T DABR IR LAGT
by entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement HERE BHRASEE
schemes that are attributed to contributions made by SER KRG FHBIFTEE R
the Group. The discount rate is the yield at the balance HESER BRI ERF
sheet date of Hong Kong Government's Exchange Fund HEEEaBEREENS
Notes which have terms to maturity approximating the BERAINERE S ZBRN G
terms of the related liability. The expected costs of these EEMNEEX -ZERH
benefits are accrued over the period of employment B TE HRRC AR AR ER R A
using the same accounting methodology as used HRERN SR A S
for defined benefit plans. Actuarial gains and losses AR R -BEBERM
arising from experience adjustments and changes in AR RIEEREZESME
actuarial assumptions are recognised in full in other EREEREREEFE
comprehensive income in the year in which they occur in BHEGE 2 EREKRN
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. H 2 e R o
2.23 Share-based payment 223 RPR/EBRIR
Equity-settled share-based payment transaction BRAGZERGBEE
2y p B
MBI 5
The fair value of services rendered in exchange for the share- HRER D BER A ST AR TS
based payment is recognised as an expense. The total amount to AT EER R - 8 T 8H
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the HARRE2E RN RERRE D
share-based payment; THEEE:
including any market performance conditions (for . B S R B ARG
example, an entity’s share price); and (flan- BEEHOKRE) &
excluding the impact of any service. . T EEERARBRIRE-
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which BRAZNFBAANTER B
is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions BFTA 15 B B IR B ERHY
are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises HifE - & B A 2R - B IR
its estimates of the number of options that are expected to BRI IS B RRGIGEHETR
vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It $ITREER B AR SN B By fibEt o
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, EReNEBRERIER]REKMGE
in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. (BT E  WAERAE
T o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Provisions

2.25

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Provision for reinstatement costs

Provision for reinstatement costs represents the present value
of the estimated costs for the restoration work of the Group's
leased retail shops agreed to be carried out upon the expiry
of the relevant leases using a risk-free pre-tax interest rate. The
provision has been determined by the directors based on their
best estimates. The related reinstatement costs have been
included as part of leasehold improvements in the consolidated
balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHHRERE (£)
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition

226 W ER

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group's activities as described below. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type
of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement. The Group records accounts receivables when the
revenue recognised since the Group has unconditional rights to
payments of goods delivered or services performed which are
due according to the contract terms.

Revenue is measured when or as the control of the goods or
services is transferred to a customer. Depending on the terms
of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract, control
of the goods and services may be transferred over time or at a
point in time. Control of the goods and services is transferred
over time if the Group's performance:

provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer; or

creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TESHBEBME(£Z)

(Continued)
2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

226 WEHTERR (&)
(@) REHBXTEERE

(@) Revenue from Chinese Restaurant operations

The Group's Chinese restaurants provide catering and
banquet services. Revenue from providing services is
recognised in the accounting period in which the services
are rendered.

Distribution of goods

The Group distribute goods to customers mainly consists
of fresh vegetables and fruit, seafood and frozen meat.
Sales are recognised when controls of the products
has transferred, being when the products are delivered
to customer, the customer has full discretion over the
channel and price to sell the goods, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products. It generally coincides with
the date of delivery.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d)

Environmental maintenance service

The Group provides environmental maintenance services
in the PRC, which mainly includes janitorial services on
streets and public areas, waste management services
and facility maintenance management. Revenue from
provision of such services is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered. For fixed-price
contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual
service provided to the end of the reporting period as a
proportion of the total service to be provided because the
customer receives and uses the benefits simultaneously
and it is equivalent to the fixed monthly fee entitled by
the Group.

Some environmental maintenance service contracts
include multiple performance obligations, such as
upgrading the public facilities and subsequent cleaning
and maintenance services, the transaction price of which
will be allocated to each performance obligation based
on their respective stand-alone selling prices. Where these
are not directly observable, they are estimated based on
expected cost plus margin.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d)  Environmental maintenance service (Continued)

For certain contracts involving construction or upgrade
services, when the outcome of those contracts under
service concession arrangement can be estimated reliably,
revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end
of the reporting period, as measured by the proportion
that contract costs incurred for work performed to date
relative to the estimated total contract costs. Construction
revenue is therefore recognised over time on a cost-to-
cost method, i.e. based on the proportion of contracts
costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the
estimated total contract costs.

Management considers that this input method is an
appropriate measure of the progress towards complete
satisfaction of these performance obligations under
HKFRS 15.

The contract is an asset and recognised as contract
assets if the measure of the remaining conditional rights
to consideration exceed the satisfied performance
obligations. Conversely, the contract is a liability and
recognised as contract liabilities if consideration received
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer
exceeds the measure of the remaining unsatisfied
performance obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Financing components

The period between the transfer of the promised goods
or services to customer and the payment by the customer
of the contracts entered by the Group for its Chinese
restaurant operation and environmental maintenance
services normally does not exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the
transaction price for the time value of money in such
cases.

The Group also enters into contracts with customers for
its environmental maintenance business where the time
period exceeds one year, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effects of the time value
of money if the timing of payments agreed by the parties
of the contract (either explicitly or implicitly) provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment have been
established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(9) Interest income

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired
financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).

2.27 Leases (as a lessee)

As explained in note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee. The
new policy is described below and the impact of the change in
Note 2.2.

Until 31 December 2018, leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group, as lessee, had substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership were classified as finance leases.
Finance leases were capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, were included in other short-term and
long-term payables. Each lease payment was allocated between
the liability and finance cost. The finance cost was charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired
under finance leases was depreciated over the asset's useful life
or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term
if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership at the end of the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TESHBEBME(£Z)

(Continued)

2.27 Leases (as a lessee) (Continued)

227 HE (EAEHEAN)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership were not transferred to the Group as lessee were
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED 131

(%)
BRI B AR B REIRY
mEBEAEE (ERREA)
WEES FAGEHRE - EEH
BT (00 5 A KR
FEAEE) RESBANLEREE
B2 -

BE-ZE-AF—A—RB #&R
MEEEAHASEERE A
RREREEENREERAG

AR EEHERFEERD -
SR BRI E AR B L Y B AR5
BHNRESEEEENFEE

#5 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEETBREBE(£)

(Continued)

2.27 Leases (as a lessee) (Continued)

227 FHE (EAREAMEAN)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.27 Leases (as a lessee) (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:
where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to

reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received

makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country,
currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability
any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

any initial direct costs, and

restoration costs.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED 133

2

TESHBRREBE (&)

227 #HE
(%)

(FERFABEAN)

RETEEERF R NEH:

FERREBRT - A &5
AENOHESNE=7
BMERHBEHELRE
NRMBESE=TTRE
PATR B A 5k 1 ) 2 B

ETRHERELH
FIanEAR  BR E¥ K&
o

HERNFRAE MR A Z [
TR EC - M SR A E B
BREMNE  BES AR A AN
BT ERIZE M KGR -

ERBEERRAE  BIEN
THE:

HERENEFTESE
FERA%A B #igk 2 AR (EAA
HERFORE B WERE
EEE
ERVIEEERA &

EEMRA

ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.27

2.28

Leases (as a lessee) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s
useful life. While the Group revalues its investment properties,
it has chosen not to do so for the right-of-use leased properties
held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of leased properties
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present
value of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. The
difference between the gross receivable and the present value
of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income.

Leases (as a lessor)

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the
lessee in return for a payment, or series of payments, the right to
use an asset for an agreed period of time.

The method for allocating gross earnings to accounting periods
is referred to a as the “actuarial method". The actuarial method
allocates rentals between finance income and repayment of
capital in each accounting period in such a way that finance
income will emerge as a constant rate of return on the lessor’s
net investment in the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2! FEESHEEHE(E)
(Continued)
2.28 Leases (as a lessor) (Continued) 228 FHE (EALEA)
(#%&)
When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset is EEERBKEHENN %A
included in the consolidated balance sheet based on the nature BEREEMEFNGEEER
of the asset. fB&& -

2.29

Lease income on operating leases is recognised over the term of
the lease on a straight-line basis.

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the
accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the
new leasing standard.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders of the Company
and its subsidiaries is recognised as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved
by the shareholders or directors, where appropriate, of the
respective companies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge its risk exposures to changes in foreign exchange rates
and interest rates.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. Foreign exchange risk arises when recognised
assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity's functional currency.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
Mainland China with most of the transactions
settled in HKS and Renminbi (‘RMB”). Thus, the
Group is exposed to the foreign exchange risk
arisen from RMB.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular reviews of the Group’s net
foreign exchange exposures. The Group's assets
and liabilities are primarily denominated in the
respective Group companies’ functional currency.
As such, in the opinion of directors, the Group's
assets and liabilities, and transactions arising from
its operations primarily do not expose the Group
to material foreign exchange risk. No sensitivity
analysis is presented.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair
value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
market interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(if)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

The Group's interest rate risk arises from bank
deposits, loans from a director of certain
subsidiaries and loans from a shareholder. Loans
due from a shareholder and loans due from
a director of certain subsidiaries are at fixed-
rate and expose the Group to fair value interest-
rate risk. The interest rate profile of loans form a
director of certain subsidiaries and loans from a
shareholder are disclosed in Note 29 and Note 38
to the consolidated financial statements. The bank
deposits generate interest at the prevailing market
interest rates.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, there are no
interest-bearing borrowings with variable interest
rates.

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2019, in the opinion of directors, the expected
change in fair values of the loans from a
shareholder and loans from a director of certain
subsidiaries was not significant, thus no sensitivity
analysis was presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed at business segment level and
overall monitored by Group management. Management
has policies in place and exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

To mitigate the risk arising from bank deposits, the Group
places bank deposits to reputable banks with a minimum
rating of “investment grade” ranked by an independent
party or financial institutions with high credit quality. The
directors of the Company does not expect any loss arising

from non-performance by these counterparties.

Trade receivables, contract assets, other receivables and
deposits are continuously monitored by assessing the
credit quality of respective counterparties, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and other
factors. When necessary, the Group will make specific
provision for those balances which cannot be recovered
apart from the general provision arise from the expected
credit loss model. The Group does not obtain collateral

from customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amounts of each financial assets in the

consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group has the following types of financial assets that
are subject to the expected credit loss model:

Other receivables and deposits

Trade receivables and contract assets

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss model for all
trade receivables from third parties and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
and contract assets have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The contract assets relate to unbilled revenue and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables are reasonable approximation of the loss rates
for the contract assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The loss allowances of trade receivables are based on
assumptions about the risk of default and expected
loss rate. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, mainly based on the historical payment
profiles of sales and the corresponding historical credit
losses rate, current and forward-looking information on
marco-economic factors at the end of each reporting
period.

The Group's revenue from its Chinese restaurant operation
is mainly conducted in cash or by credit cards. The credit
period granted by the Group to its customers for its
environmental maintenance business and its tenants
range from 30 to 90 days. As at 31 December 2019 and
2018, all trade receivables are current in nature.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018,
management has used the lifetime expected loss
model for assessing the loss allowance provision for
trade receivables and contract assets from third parties
and concluded that no loss allowance was made. The
expected credit loss rate applied is close to 0% for current
to 180 days past due, and 100% for over 180 days past
due, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators
that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments upon termination of projects.

The Group has applied the general approach and
recorded 12-month expected credit losses on its other
receivables and deposits based on the estimated loss of
possible default events within the next 12 months. The
directors of the Group has considered that the allowance
on impairment loss is immaterial as at 31 December 2019
and 2018.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss by the directors of the Company was
determined to be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
debt covenant, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from banks, a director of a subsidiary and a shareholder to
meet their liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

The directors consider that with the availability of these
source of funds, the Group is able to mitigate the liquidity
risk and to satisfy its future working capital and other
financing requirement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIXERRERE(Z)
3.1 Finandial risk factors (Continued) 31 BiEREZE(£)

(0 ﬁg?ﬁ_%/flﬂﬁ
(#&)
TEREEEEREAN

EERs! E’Jﬂﬁ%/HHF'EJ mER
AR BIHRAER D T AR E

(c) Ligquidity risk (Continueq)

The table below analyses the Group's non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the

contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the BENTESRBE - RA
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Fiit R £ AEHRME
WEMRE -
Repayable Less than Between 1 Between 2
on demand lyear and2years  and>5 years
REREE —FR —-EZmE MERLE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

TET FERT TAT FERT

At 31 December 2019 R-B-1E
+=A=t+-H
Trade payables BRI HE = 29,387 - -
Accruals and other payables EitEAK
H AR08 - 46,949 - -
Lease liabilities HEBR - 19,895 15972 14774
Consideration payables ERHE 14,78 60293 - =

Amount due to a related [~ — I B R A A
company FIH 3378 - - =

Amount due to a director R — %%%t 1,100 - - =
Amount due to a director of ERETHEA
certain subsidiaries 2% E% £ 99 - - =
Loans from a shareholder REER 19,456 = = =
Loan from a director of certain & THI B A AlH)
subsidiaries —ZEENER 41,000 - - -
At 31 December 2018 R-Z-N\F
T=A=1-H
Trade payables B 2RI HE = 20,250 - -
Accruals and other payables EEEAK
H b AR08 = 47226 = -
Consideration payables ERRE 52,568 60,534 - -
Amount due to a related JE1T— R A &
company SR 3453 - - =
Amount due to a director ERN—RESHE 1,100 = = =
Loans from a shareholder BEER 95,043 = = =
Loan from a director of certain & T HIB A A
subsidiaries —ZEENERN 19,000 - - =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #x

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.2 (Capital risk management (Continued)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated
as consideration payables, loans from a director of certain

subsidiaries, loans from a shareholder and borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt. The
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

A
o

5t
3.2

87} 55 ¥ 2= B 5

KEKRERE (&)
EXRBER(£)
EAZERE A [RFT — 1 AR B
BEARBELERBEELERENR -
LR R ER F R AE R
RETE  MEBFHIVIRERN
RE ETHBARN—ZES
WER REEFREEHRE
e RREEEBYE - BARBRE
iz e EEBERAYTH
[l N EEBFEAE -
T-NEFrR=ZZE—NF+=A
=T —HOEAREBELENAT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ZE—N\F

HK$'000 HKS'000

FET T T

Consideration payables FEFRE 74,571 113,102

Loans from a director of certain aTHBARK

subsidiaries (Note 29) —BEEMER (H:E29) 41,000 19,000

Loans from a shareholder (Note 38) fEERE X (BIsE3s) 19,456 95,043

Borrowings (Note 28) & E (M7E28) 1,674 -
Less: cash and cash equivalents B EReRREEEY

(Note 23) (Bt5E23) (230,498) (117,635)

Net (cash)/debt (B&) BB FHE (93,797) 109,510

Total equity B 326,890 163,068

Total capital FEREFIN 233,093 272,578

Gearing ratio BEARAELE N/ATE A 40%

As at 31 December 2019, the Group is at a net cash position,
hence the disclosure of gearing ratio is not applicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

(a)

Financial assets

This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognized and measured at fair
value in the consolidated financial statements. To provide
an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under the
accounting standards. An explanation of each level
follows underneath the table.

(i) Fair value hierarchy

w & B 5 #R 2R i 5F

BERER (&)
AT
@ LEEE

REREEE N E M
BREAFEERRE
MERT AR FERER
B e fh e RIS HEE
ERFEAAEARERN
AEREER ARER
e ERSESRTA
DR=(EAER & ERN
FEEEIN TR -

0  AFEER

Recurring fair value REMDFEFTE
measurements 2019 2018
—E-NF —T-)N\F
Level 3 Level 3
E=E F=
HK$'000 HKS'000
FEx FET
Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets at FVPL BAFEGAERZR
— Contingent consideration — RS ARE
receivable (Note 22) (Pd3E22) 537 6,878
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the fair value
of the contingent consideration receivable is
classified as level 3 fair value measurement and
is estimated by applying probability-weighted
scenario analysis. The significant unobservable
inputs and relationship of the inputs to fair value of
the contingent consideration receivable are shown

as below:

Significant unobservable input

ERTABRERH AR

Probability of staying above the
Guaranteed Amount — 90%
(2018: 90%)

HiE = NRE S BRIBEE —90%

= \F:90%)

Discount rate — 4.3% (2018: 4.3%)
BRIR I —43% (ZZT— \F :43%)

3 BBERERE(Z)
33 DFREME(£)
() ZHEE (&)

) RAFEEBH(E
RZT—NFRZ
ZE—-—NF+=A
=+—8 rEkxk
AREMNAFEER
PEEE=ZEAT
BE:t 2 X RS
EINEBR DI
FIRE IR R
9 A BUER K 8 A
5 2 e U sk A R AB
BAFEZ BRI

RB) R0 :

Relationship of unobservable input to fair value

TR B RG ABIRE R FENRE R

The higher the probability, the lower the fair value

BERES A TFEBE

The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value

MEERHS QTP EBE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIXERRERE(Z)
33 AFEME (&)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The movement of contingent consideration

@ ZTEEE (&)

0 RDFERBEE)
RE=ZEAFELE

receivables in the balance of Level 3 fair value BRET = B A
measurements is as follows: REHEBHAT
2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Contingent consideration P S ARE
receivables
At 1 January K—H—H 6,878 -
At completion date of RULBE B B A A) 2 5eAk B 5
acquisition of subsidiaries - 6,836
Exchange difference PEH =5 54 42
Change in fair value REEEE (6,395) -
At 31 December K+=—A=+—H 537 6,878

There were no transfers against various levels for
recurring fair value measurements during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HM¥EBERE(&F)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 DFREME(£)
(a) Finandial assets (Continued) (a) ZTHEE(#Z)
()  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) 0 2AFEEBR(E
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and REBHBER AR
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the HMERARERAF
end of the reporting period. BESREBHEA
N HHEE-
Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded

Level 2:

Level 3:

F=E:

derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in
level 1.

RNERMSEENSMIE(MAREEMNITEATRE EES S RAHEHER
FINRAFEDREREPROTSREA T -AEEMFSREEMBHNT
GREREFEAB-ZETAMAE—E-

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

THERNEBMZEENERIA (SIMTETR)NAFENBEERNE
E e ERMBENARBRRMSEE S PERBREFBNMGT WX —T
BN RV EMEOMEERBABRBY AABREE MZTEARAET -

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities.
WM—HRZHEEARBABBWIFKBABERTHEE IZITERMAE=E-
ZIEREHIE ETHRAES o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group
measured the fair value of contingent consideration
receivable with reference to the valuation
performed by an independent qualified valuer,
using probability weighted scenario analysis.

(b)  Non-financial assets

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

This note explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the
non-financial assets that are recognised and
measured at fair value in the consolidated financial
statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair
value, the Group has classified its non-financial
assets and liabilities into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards. An explanation of
each level is provided in note 3.3(a) above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b)  Non-financial assets (Continued)

(i)

i © B 5 ¥ R Bid 5

BBERER (&)
NP EME ()

33

b) ¥ EEEE (&)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) 0 RAFERBFE)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-B %-E %$=BE @t
At 31 December 2019 Notes | HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
R-ZB-AE+=-A=1+-H FizE TERT TEL TER TERT
Investment properties REME
Commercial buildings and HERNEREN
car parking spaces
~ Mainland China —HEl A 17 - - 95222 95222
Total non-financial assets FeREERT - - 95222 95222
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— -t £= &t
At 31 December 2018 Notes HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000
RZE-NFE+-A=1+—H BiE TET TAL FAET TET
Investment properties REMF
Commercial buildings and HEAERER
car parking spaces
— Mainland China —H B At 17 - - 108423 108423
Total non-financial assets FemEERE = - 108423 108423
Loe@ripaRas 152 —S-hEER




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b)  Non-financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Valuation techniques used to determine level 3 fair
values

The Group obtains independent valuations for
its investment properties at least annually. At the
end of each reporting period, the directors update
their assessment of the fair value of each property,
taking into account the most recent independent
valuations. The directors determine a property's
value within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates.

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in
an active market for similar properties. Where such
information is not available the directors consider
information from a variety of sources including:
current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature or recent prices of similar properties
in less active markets, adjusted to reflect those
differences, discounted cash flow projections
based on reliable estimates of future cash flows
and capitalised income projections based upon
a property’s estimated net market income and
a capitalisation rate derived from an analysis of
market evidence.

Refer to Note 17 for further disclosure on
quantitative information about the significant
unobservable inputs used in recurring level 3 fair
value measurements at its investment properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(a) Impairment assessment of non-financial assets and
goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2.11. The recoverable amounts of CGUs associated
with the goodwill have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. Non-financial assets other than goodwill,
including property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of non-
financial assets have been determined based on fair value less
costs to sell or value-in-use valuations. These calculations require
the use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in impairment test,
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred
that may indicate that the CGUs/asset values may not be
recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying amount of the CGU/an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount; and (jii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment
of goodwill or non-financial assets other than goodwill,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group's financial position and results of its operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets and
goodwill (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, impairment
charge on goodwill amounted to HK$2,104,000 (2018: nil) are
recognised in profit or loss. No impairment charge on intangible
assets are recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: same).

For the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of
the Group, an impairment loss of HK$23,172,000 was recognised
(2018: HK$2,831,000) during the year ended 31 December 2019
for the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
used in restaurant business. If the discount rate for the Group
had been 1 percentage point higher than management’s
estimate; or the annual growth rate had been 1 percentage
point lower, the impairment charge will increase by HK$581,000
and HK$762,000, respectively.

Estimated valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by an independent and professionally
qualified valuer.

In determining the fair value, the valuer has based on property
valuation technigques which involve, inter alia, certain estimates
including comparable sales in the relevant market, current
market rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates and expected future
market rents. In relying on the valuation report, management
has exercised their judgement and is satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market condition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Continued)

(c)

Income tax

The Group is subject to current income tax. Significant judgment
is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current income tax
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

The Group’s management determines the deferred income tax
assets based on the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates
(and laws) and the best knowledge of profit projections of the
Group for coming years during which the deferred income tax
assets are expected to be utilised. In assessing the amount of
deferred income tax assets that need to be recognised, the
Group considers future taxable income and ongoing prudent
and feasible tax planning strategies. In the event that the Group
estimates of projected future taxable income and benefits from
available tax strategies are changed, or changes in current tax
regulations are enacted that would impact the timing or extent
of the Group's ability to utilise the tax benefits of net operating
loss carried forward in the future, adjustments to the recorded
amount of net deferred income tax assets and income tax
expense would need to be made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Income tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors have reviewed the
Group's investment properties and concluded that the Group's
investment properties, which are located in Mainland China, are
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred taxation on
investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted. Management will revisit the
assumptions and profit projections at each balance sheet date.

Fair value of contingent consideration

The fair value of the contingent consideration at the date of
completion of acquisition and the end of the reporting period
were determined using discounted cash flow and probability
to meet the target financial performance. Where the estimation
on these factors is different from those previously estimated,
such differences will impact the fair value gain or loss of
the contingent consideration in the period in which such
determination is made.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED

157

87} 55 ¥ 2= B 5

4 FESTHHFTRME (F)

()

(d)

Frig®i (&)

HABRATFEREAFEZRE
MEREL ZEEFARESELT
MIBEEMS  EFCERLIE
B2 REMEYRBRAREMLR
B A REMETIRE B R
REREMIEERHE BRRE
MEMBE @A EBEM e
ZAFEAFH B REE
AEERBEEYENELEHIA
B BEFCET RAXFER
A EBZREMEZREENZ
BEBHEME D2 RRE B
B-EREEgNSAERERR
A& Mg A FERY -

HARANEZAFE

HARERULEE TR B H RN R
SR ATEDEARRRS
TERBREE  UERE B
BRA - MREE R AL
AIfEEE AR AR SERETE
SAREREL AR HRR
2 AT BRI RAEA

ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

The CODM has been identified as the executive directors of the
Company who review the Group's internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. The CODM has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

Following the acquisition of BYL Group which engages in the
environment maintenance service business in the PRC during the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group's reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

(i) Chinese restaurant and wedding business

(i) Environmental maintenance business

(i) Property leasing business

(iv)  Securities trading business
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 oREH(E)
Segment revenue and results DS R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by AR E 2 Wi R SRR 2 A IR A 23
reportable and operating segment: K& H2HI00F -
Chinese restaurant and Environmental Property Securities
wedding business maintenance business leasing business trading business Total
FAERREEER RESEEY NEREEK REEEEY @t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NEF |Z2\F |Z8-AF |22 \F |ZF-AF |22 \F |ZE-AF |22 \F |ZE-AF |Z2AF
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TER T TER T TET THET TER THEL TER TEx
Segment revenue 2Bl
External revenue e 232,444 374673 226,331 31938 3,134 428 - 19 461,909 410858
(Gain on disposal of financial HERATEA
assets at fair value through BRZEBEE
profit or loss 63 - - - - - - - 302 - 302
Finance costs (Note) BISER A (M) (2/051) - (58) = - = - = (2,109)
Segment (loss)/profit A8 (58) /&F (49,219) (15969) 28,564 4654 (11,181) 6377 (814) ©16) | (32650) (5854)
Finance income BHEUA 1,516 864
Finance costs (Note) A (fisE) (5,336) (1993)
Unallocated corporate expenses FRARAAME (19,568) (16,29)
Loss before tax BHAEE (56,038) (23279

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group's accounting policies. Segment (loss)/profit represents the
loss incurred by/profit earned by each segment without allocation
of central administration costs, depreciation of certain plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, directors’ emoluments, finance
income, certain finance costs and exchange gain/loss. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment.

Note: Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16 since 1 January 2019, finance costs
representing interest expenses associated with relevant lease liabilities
are included in the segment (loss)/profit of respective segments.

KEDE 2 T BORBASE T IK
AR e 2 EB (E518) R FTE S 9
K5 anﬂﬁ’%ﬂﬂz;%ﬁﬁ B THE k&
BREAEEENE EEME U
HAZJ\~**3FH7H‘%5JZZK&E)DLH51*/E§
BRTEEZ BB EEZHEM 1Ty
#ﬁ%%f%%&é&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁn@ﬂ
KRB HRTE i

iz BT -NF—A - BRRABTERB
HERERIE 1658 1% - BISRA (F5E2AR
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9 2\ 3 S W) =
5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2EMER (&)
. agegs 2\ 22T
Segment assets and liabilities THMEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by REBEERABZHMRAZ2®WE
reportable and operating segment: BESEBZHIA0T -
Chinese restaurant and Environmental Property Securities
wedding business maintenance business leasing business trading business Total
FAERREEER RESEEY NEREEK REEEEY b
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NEF |Z2\F |Z8-AF |22 \F |ZF-AF |22 \F |ZE-AF |22 \F |ZE-AF |Z2AF
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TER T TER T TET THET TER THEL TER TET
Segment assets AHEE 57,052 62,964 268,187 245381 114,880 130,050 - - 440,119 438395
Cash and cash equivalents RERAEEEN 230,498 117635
Contingent consideration receivables  FEM Sk AR B 537 6878
Deferred income tax assets BRMEHAE 5,120 6473
Other unallocated corporate assets ~ Hft KR AREE 2,084 2118
Total assets HEE 678,358 571499
Segment liabilities AHER 93,319 79,828 55,317 30717 275 1,724 527 - 149,438 112,269
Loans from a director of ATHEARZ
certain subsidiaries —REZEXN 41,000 19000
Deferred income tax liablities BEMEREE 39,480 44048
Amount due toa related company  FE(S — BB AR
A 3378 3453
Amount due to a director EN—%EE0E 1,100 1,100
Amount due to a director of ERETHBARZ
certain subsidiaries —REENE 99 -
Consideration payables ERRE 74,571 113,102
Loans from a shareholder RERE 19,456 95,043
Current income tax iabilties MEREREE 16,374 14183
Other unallocated liabilities HgxHRARE 6,572 6233
Total liabilities a5tk 351,468 408431
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating

resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
certain plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, cash and
cash equivalents, certain deposits and prepayment, and other
receivables, contingent consideration receivables and deferred
income tax assets.

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
certain deposits received and accruals and other payables,
amount due to a director, amount due to a related company,
amount due to a director of certain subsidiaries, current income
tax liabilities, deferred income tax liabilities, loans from a director
of certain subsidiaries and loans from a shareholder.

\

B (&)
i) K& (&)

REESMEERESMBLEOEE
R

7 EBE
&

BEEESDREREDE &
TR MR %L/{&ﬁ}ﬂffgﬁﬁ
RekReEEY ETEER
FEN IR - R EL A FE YRR - B
W AIE RIBTE TS B B ERR
Spe

+
it

E ST AL

FrBBEEPRELES
FE W ER S & ERT B R R E A
JEfTZRIE BN —REEHIE
FEAS —FRIRAEE A BRI - IS A
?Mﬂ% A AYRERFIE ~ BUEAFT

Other segment information

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by

SHEE BEEMEHEE &
:FW%’&TZ REFEEREB
RERERIN -

H it ZRE

AEBEENBBEZOMRAZ2HNE

reportable and operating segment: BEDHLEHAT
Chinese restaurant and Environmental Property Securities Other unallocated
wedding business maintenance business leasing business trading business segment Total
PAERREREYR REGEER NERERH REERER Hib R AR @it
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-AE| CE0\F| ZB-nE | DR\ | ZB-AE | CE)\F | ZB-0F | CF\F | ZB-AF | ZT\E | ZB-AEF| CR\F
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TERL TR TR TiEn TARL TR TR TR T TR TAL
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #15 + B Rak & &
equipment and right-of use assets  EABEAEZITE 50,317 13733 10,071 1176 31 187 - - 480 8 60,899 1554
Impairment of property, plantand ¥+ BB Rk 2 WfE
equipment (23,172) (2831) - - - - - - - - (23172) (2831)
Impairment of goodwil AERE - - - - (2,104) - - - - - (2,104) -
Amortisation of intangibleassets ~ EF/AERE - - 19,594 319 - - - - - - 19,594 3190
Fairvalue changes of investments A NEATEEE
properties - - - - (11,184) 4565 - = - = (11,184) 4565
Additonsof non-curentassets  REFRHEE 90,998 2453 15,004 753 - - - - - 78| 106,092 10763
Addtions of property, plant and BREBANREL
equipment and intangible assets % BERRE
through business combination NREVEE
(Note 32) (FizE32) - = - 108522 - = - = - = - 108522
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical Information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is
presented based on the location of the operations. Information about
the Group's non-current assets is presented based on the geographical
location of the assets.

P

im 8 B 55 ¥R R A 5F

DERE R ()

A=
FEBMIEREBRDENMLL -
AEBREINBES 2 W BN TR
CEFE 25 - A EBIERBEE
BRI TR E FAE L 2 51 o

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets

RE MR F ERBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-hE | ZR-N\F | ZB-hFE | ZFNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT FHERT FAT
Hong Kong B8 232,444 374,692 52,467 43,067
Mainland China CellEasp: i 229,465 36,166 332,434 360,578
Total Bt 461,909 410,858 384,901 403,645

The Group had no inter-segment sales for the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there is one (2018: nil) external
customer contributed to more than 10% of revenue of the Group.
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REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 6 XREEFEFE#HZzWZE
An analysis of revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, is as follows: REE W (BNEEE)MATAT :
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Chinese restaurant and wedding business: F = EE R IERE75 :
Revenue from Chinese restaurant operations A7 3B 8 AL & ¥ FE ) I 25 232,444 374,673
Property leasing business: MEREEK:
Rental income HEBBA 3,134 4,228
Securities trading business: EHFEEEK:
Dividend income & 24 A - 19
Environmental maintenance business: RIBHEEK:
Services income for provision of IR G 4 i RIS Y
environmental maintenance services AR 7 U A 226,331 31,938
Total revenue NG 461,909 410,858
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6 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 6

(Continued)
Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract
assets and liabilities

=

6 B 75 ¥ R i 5E

REEFENzZWE (&)

EFENHRAZEERAE
AEBERA T HHEABENEER
=1

2019 2018
—E-NE —E—)\F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FExT T T
Contract assets EHEE
Classified under: DRI ¢
— non-current assets —ERBEE 27,543 13,204
— current assets —mEEE - 1,742
27,543 14,946
Contract liabilities eHEaE
Classified under: DT ¢
— non-current liabilities —JERBEE 2,103 2,260
— current liabilities —mEARE 23,915 36,272
26,018 38,532

As at 31 December 2019, contract assets increased by HK$12,597,000
as the Group has completed a service contract with a customer of its
environmental maintenance business in which the Group has provided
the relevant services ahead of the agreed payment schedule of 8 years.
The Group has yet to receive all the relevant completion certificates
from the customer and therefore does not have an unconditional right
to payment. Accordingly, the contract assets have yet to be converted
to trade receivables as at 31 December 2019 and 2018. Contract assets
of HK$27,543,000 are classified under non-current assets, respectively,
based on the agreed payment schedule as at 31 December 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(Continued)

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, contract liabilities mainly include deposits
received from customers under the contracts for banquet and
wedding banquet services of the Group's Chinese restaurant business.
Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019 that
was included in the contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the
period is HK$35,553,000.

As at 31 December 2019, aggregate amount of the transaction

price allocated to contracts that are partially or fully unsatisfied is
HK$26,018,000.

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN, NET

REEFEMNZWE (&)

EEEHNHBZEERERE
(%)
RZZE—NF+ZA=1+—RH 888
BEEERREBBEAEEFBEER
M ZEfE RIEZREE X B E P WEHE
e BHE_ZT—hF+_A=+—
HIEFERRALT ABINEHNEELS
FRE UL 5 435,553,00078 7T ©

R-ZE-AE+-A=+—BHE4%

HAXEHBREITHNEONBERHE
% /26,018,0007 7T, ©

Hib W AR H W 55 - F 58

2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FHET

Other income Hib X
Forfeiture of contract liabilities RWEH AR 939 1,153
Miscellaneous income HIE WA 1,104 719
2,043 1,872
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7 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN, NET (Continued) 7 HWAREMKE FEE
gcm

(&)
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)\F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FExT T T
Other gain, net Hih sz B8
Gain on disposal of property, LEME  BRE KR W=
plant and equipment - 206
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33) HE M B ARz W (FE33) 5,107 -
Foreign exchange losses, net SN B 1E - JF 5 (1,166) -
3,941 206
8 COST OF REVENUE 8 WHEHA
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT—)\F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHET T T
Cost of materials consumed FT#EM BFRK 2R
— Chinese restaurant business — BB R 57,372 103,690
— Environmental maintenance business —IRIBMEEETS 32,051 2,992
- Others —H A 390 575
89,813 107,257
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OTHER EXPENSES 9 HMEX
2019 2018
—E-hE | ZZE-N\F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FHIT
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 2R BN &
— Audit services — BT IR 1,650 1,500
— Non-audit services — T RIS - 950
Advertising and promotions B RHEE 10,276 11,707
Cleaning and laundry expenses BB RERFZ 7,393 7,201
Credit card charges EAFREHA 2,992 4222
Kitchen consumables B #E7 429 835
Repairs and maintenance s R HEE 6,322 5,730
Consumable stores JHFE 1,874 2,651
Insurance Rz 2,649 1,940
Legal and professional fee FRENEXER 3,754 2,938
Printing and stationery EM il K2 > B 1,068 1,284
Staff messing BTRE 915 1,559
Service fee to temporary workers TR TH RS E 4,085 4,639
Consultancy service fee (Note 25) BRI RGE (MizE2s) - 3,582
Wedding banquet expenses EZR % 934 996
Transportation B 2,058 1,226
Share-based payment expenses RTEMB 2 ARNABERK
granted to consultants (Note 35) R BASE (BI5E35) 1,473 3,390
Motor car expenses TERAX 2,291 271
Security charges ERER 1,224 316
Donation B 3,322 87
Others H A, 11,712 8,062
66,421 65,086
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

i_

10

w & B 5 #R 2R i 5

E)ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁi (BREESMH

2019 2018
—E-AFE | ZZ—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHTT
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE #FekRe 186,080 128,475
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRE KA —FE KA E 8,361 4,957
(Reversal)/accrual for annual leave (Bm@) fEtE R (394) 141
(Reversal)/accrual of long service payments (Bm@) st RHRG S (649) 390
Share-based payment expenses (Note 35) PARR 0 2 BB AT SR 2
(B EE35) 423 1,175
193,821 135,138
(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans @ BARE-REHRGTE
The Group's net contributions to pension plans are mainly for REEZ RN EIHFFREE
employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Summary of the gﬂ?%ﬁ’\%g}%&q:‘ B it & i
pension plans are as follows: R EEIB AT :
()  The Group contributes to an MPF Scheme for its () AEBREEBEERI
employees in Hong Kong, under which the Group and BERAE B AE

(if)

each employee each makes monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the qualifying earnings of the employee,
subject to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2018: HK$1,500) per
month. As at 31 December 2019, contributions totaling
approximately HK$2,624,000 (2018: HK$3,930,000) were
paid or payable to the MPF Scheme.

The Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China also contribute
to retirement plans for its employees in Mainland China
at a percentage of their salaries in compliance with the
requirements of the respective municipal governments in
Mainland China. The municipal governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligation of all existing
and future retired employees of the Group in Mainland
China. As at 31 December 2019, contributions totaling
approximately HKS$5,737,000 (2018: HKS$1,028,000) which
are denominated in RMB were paid or payable to the

retirement plans.
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (INCLUDING 1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

o

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included three (2018: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements. The emoluments payable
to the remaining two (2018: two) individuals during the year are

EERANRAX (BEESM
®) (&)

(b)

TUBREHFAL

R AEBRESEHALE
B=&(ZE—N\F:=%)E
= HEHS REAMEREM
HNZ S - FRENSBTHE
—TN\F @B ALHE#E

as follows: LUNE
2019 2018
—E-hE | ZZE-N\F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET T
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits AN & 28 R AEF 1,549 1,192

Employer’s contribution to RN EHEME EHK

pension scheme 36 29
Share-based payment expenses LARR 5 BEE A A X 74 339
1,659 1,560

The emoluments of the above two (2018: two) individuals above
fell within the band of Nil — HK$1,000,000 during the year.

No incentive payment for joining the Group or compensation for
loss of office was paid or payable to any of the five highest paid
individuals during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
same).
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11 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS N EZFFZRES
(@) Directors’ emoluments @ EEMe
The remuneration of each of the directors for the year ended 31 BE—_Z—hF+=-A=+—H
December 2019 is set out below: IEFE  SEFFHMETIAT
Employer's
contribution to
Basic salaries, Share-based aretirement
allowances  Discretionary payment benefit
Fees  and benefits bonuses expenses scheme Total
Ex%e. DRAAEE  EXEAS
he  EZHREA MERAL  WARRX  RRHEER b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Chairman £
Mr. Sang Kanggjao KRBEE - 770 - 78 18 866
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. XuWenze FXEREE - 770 - 78 18 866
Mr. Cui Peng EBRA - 630 - 78 15 723
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Xu Zhihao BREELE 120 - - 78 - 198
Mr. Lam Ka Tak WEELE 120 - - 78 - 198
Mr. Wong Sincere BHRLE 120 - - - - 120
360 2,170 - 390 51 297
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11 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 1 EBRHZK#ER (£Z)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) §$M & (&)
The remuneration of each of the directors for the year ended 31 E—F-\F+_A=1t—H
December 2018 is set out below: IEFE  SEFHMETIAT
Employer's
contribution to
Basic salaries, Share-based a retirement
allowances Discretionary payment benefit
Fees and benefits bonuses expenses scheme Total
2XEE WRAAERE  EZEKE
we  EHREN MEEAL  NAREX  BAEEER ELE)
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TRT TR TR TR Tt THR
Chairman I
Mr. Sang Kanggjao ZRBEE - 715 - 181 18 914
Executive directors HiEs
Mr. Xu Wenze FXEREE - 75 - 181 18 914
Mr. Cui Peng EETA - 585 - 181 16 78
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Xu Zhihao Vs 120 - - 181 - 301
Mr. Lam Ka Tak W& *%é 120 - - 181 - 301
Ms. Liu Yan (note (i) B8+ (Kisk() 89 = = (34) = 55
Mr.Wong Sincere BABELE
(note (i) G0 31 - - - - 31
360 2015 - 871 52 3298
Note: B 3 -
(i) Ms. Liu Yan resigned as an independent non-executive director [0) ey +E R - N\FNA

on 27 September 2018

(if) Mr. Wong Sincere were appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 27 September 2018.
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11 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 11 EEFmZ=Kk#ER (&)
@ EEM< (&)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: same). No incentive
payment for joining the Group or compensation for loss of office
was paid or payable to any directors during the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: same).

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to the directors of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 by a
defined contribution plan operated by the Group in respect of
their services as directors of the Company (2018: same). No other
retirement benefits were paid to the directors in respect of their
other services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking (2018: same).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: same).
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11 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company did
not pay any considerations to any third parties for making
available the services of themselves as directors of the Company
(2018: same).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were entered into
by the Company or its subsidiary undertaking in favour of the
directors of the Company, a controlled body corporate or a
connected entity of such directors at any time during the year
(2018: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for transactions disclosed elsewhere in the notes to
these consolidated financial statements, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year (2018: same).
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12 FINANCE COSTS — NET 12 BBHRA-—FHE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Finance income B A
— Interest income on short-term bank — R HASR1T 17 KA
deposits F B A 218 50
— Interest income arising from discount of —JEREFHESIESAIE
non-current rental deposits EAERH BULA 607 688
— Interest income on contract asset — B HEERNFBIRA 691 126
1,516 864
Finance costs B 75 BR A
~ Interest expense on bank borrowings —IRITERAE X (101) =
— Interest expense on loans from —EHETHBRRZ—%
a director of certain subsidiaries EZVERANERX
(Note 38) (PffE38) (1,853) (1,084)
— Interest expense on lease liabilities —HEaENNERX (3,827) =
— Interest expense on loans from —REREXFEFAZ
a shareholder (Note 38) (Ff15E38) (1,637) (853)
— Unwinding of discount of provision for —RBRIEER A ER
reinstatement costs (Note 31) B63R (B5E31) (27) (56)
(7,445) (1,993)
Finance costs — net S N (5,929) (1,129)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2018:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. The applicable corporate income tax rate for the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries is 25% on the estimated assessable profits.

8B
EBMNBHEIZI65% (ZF— )\ F:
16.5% ) M B R L F N BB E AR EFT
FE R B A 5T R 18 A o AN &= B A9 R
BB A RIS (A 5T B AR B i ) /9 38 A
1 ZEFTIS TR 2 A25% o

2019 2018
—E-hE | —FTNF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FHT
Current income tax BNERFT 15750
Hong Kong profit tax BB RS - -
PRC enterprise income tax R PERER 7,756 2438
Deferred income tax (Note 30) EIEFTB L (M 5E30)
Origination and reversal of temporary R ERE A E A KRBT
differences (3,973) 472)
Income tax expense PSR B X2 3,783 1,966

ARER BB P ST AT S 1R A0 B TR B TR o
EREEE AR EER 2 S FrE
REFOREAENSRZENE

The tax on the Group's loss before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using weighted average tax rate
applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

BN

2019 2018
—B-hE | —F)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Loss before income tax BTSSR A (56,038) (23,279)
Tax calculated at the applicable tax rates REARRAEFE ZTHIE (7,709) (2,867)
Income not subject to tax BB R WA (1,788) (504)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR IR 5,702 3,399
Deferred tax not recognised for tax losses THIAEIE R ERIELER A 11,389 4,495
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses &fj Fg 5t jil R i =2 2 Tt 18 &5 18 - (2,557)
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax MR AR ER 2 1A (2,130) -
Write-off of deferred tax previously recognised i 58 5 Bl 73R 2 1B 3EBL 18 (1,681) -
(3,783) 1,966
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14 LOSS PER SHARE 14

15

(a) Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable
to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BRER
@ EXK

BRENEBDRAARBES
AEIEERR AR FRAERITE
AR DN F G E -

2019 2018
—E-AE | ZE-)N\F
Loss attributable to owners of RNARHER ANEGEEE
the Company (HK$'000) (F%7T) (71,003) (27,260)
Weighted average number of B EITEBRINE T
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (F&) 578,712 533,570
Basic loss per share (HKS) BREAREE (BT) (12 cents ili) (5 cents 1LlI)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2018 excluded contingent returnable shares.

(b) Diluted

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company's
dilutive potential ordinary shares had an anti-dilutive effect on
the basic loss per share, hence no diluted earnings per share was
presented.

DIVIDENDS 15

The directors do not recommend the payment of final dividends for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

ARHEBRE=T—N\F+ =7
=t RLEENSREAREL ¥
BRIVETF OB QESATRER

3o

(b)) #F
HE-_Z—hLFR-_Z—N\F
+—A=1+—RItEE KQF
R B L B A S AR E AN S
BEEREENE Bl ES
REREEAT -

B E

EETEERBE_ZT-NF+H8
=t-RLEFEERNRERE (=%

—N\F ) o
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16(a) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

87} 55 ¥ 2= B 5

16(a WE - -BERSKRE

Leasehold Air- Furniture Motor
improvements conditioning Equipment and fixtures vehicles Total
HRER
RELE &8 EY ] Be%E hRE @it
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TiEn T TAL AL AL TAL
At 1 January 2018 R=8-N§-F-B
Cost R 69,094 9350 B017 33651 6,144 141,256
Accumulated depreciation and impairment SHTERAE (43098) (6,780) (18565) (26769) (2784) (9799%)
Net book amount EHFE 2599 2570 445 6382 3360 4260
Year ended 31 December 2018 B2-5-0\%
tZA=t-RLEE
Opening net book amount BUEETE 259% 2570 445) 6,882 3360 8260
Acquisition of subsiciaries (Note 32) WK B AR (H32) - - - 6 27861 27867
Additions ME 19 - 190 1630 8008 9847
Disposal & - - - - (174) (174)
Depreciation charge nEER (8314) (13) (1376) (252) (2589) (15524)
Impaitment charge HEER Q74 ) - - - (2831)
Exchange difference ERER - - - - m m
Closing net book amount BAEEFE 14987 1730 3,66 59% 36688 62,667
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NEtZA=1-H
Cost A 69,113 9350 8207 35304 58875 195,849
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZHTERAE (54,126) (7620) (19941) (29308) (22,187) (133,18
Net book amount BEFE 14987 1730 3266 59% 36688 62667
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-3-0F
TZR=t+-BLEE
Opening net book amount BREFE 14,987 1,730 3,66 5,99 36,688 62,667
Additions RE 21,703 2476 1876 10,719 12,268 49,042
Wite-off W (454) (24) (34) (48) (40) (600)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33) HERBAR (KEs3) (16,464) (1,703) (1,619) (6,118) - (25,904)
Depreciation charge HEER (7,165) (768) (1,274) (2412) (9214) (20,833)
Impaiiment charge BEER (7,130) (174) (308) (862) - (8474)
Exchange difference ERER - - - (92) (1,104) (1,19)
Closing net book amount BREETE 5477 1,537 1,907 7,183 38,598 54,702
At31December 2019 R-2-hE+-A=1+-H
Cost A 27,012 5016 9,767 14477 69,159 125491
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZAMERAE (21,595) (3479) (7,860) (7,294) (30,561) (70,789)
Net book amount REFE 5477 1,537 1,907 7,183 38,598 54,702
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16(a) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Due to the continuing unsatisfactory performance of certain
restaurants, management recognised an impairment loss of
HK$8,474,000 (2018: HKS$2,831,000) for certain property, plant and
equipment during the year ended 31 December 2019, which was
estimated based on the recoverable amount of each individual
restaurant cash generating unit. The recoverable amounts of the three
(2018: one) restaurant cash generating units are determined based
on the value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a period of the remaining lease term. The
recoverable amounts of the restaurant cash generating units which
have indictors of impairment and being tested for impairment were
HK$39,401,000 (2018: HKS$715,000) as at 31 December 2019. The pre-
tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was 12.8% (2018:
12.8%).

16(b) LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

6 B 75 ¥ R i 5E

16(a) Y135 - BB R R (&)

HARETEENRR—ERIARE &
BEERNEE " ZT—hh&Et+_-_F=1+—
HIEFEHETYE  BE R&ERER
(B B 1884740008 7T (=& — )\ &
28310008 7T) - E RSB ER &
EEBMHIKESEGT =R (=
T—)\F:—R)BEERCEEEND
A EISRE I ARARRER THE
BB EE AKIE 2R mE TR
ZEREENEMET - ARESTRZ
EIEIR & EE B AR AT IR Bl S BN =
T-hE+=-A=+—BKREIR
/339,401,000 7T ( ZF— J\£F : 715,000
YBSI0) cIREMmETE BT 2 BiAE5R
EA128% (ZF—)\F:128%) °

16(b) FHE

AKESREE (WAL ARREA)E
BB R

(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet (i REEEEEBERER
W&
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts FEBEABRIITTIIA/HE
relating to leases: ENeRE:
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
ZEB-hF | ZT-NF
t=A —A
=+-g —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Leased properties HEME 29,673 86,095
Lease liabilities HEAE
Current B 18,648 36,056
Non-current ERE 29,440 56,476
48,088 92,532

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended 31
December 2019 were HK$57,050,000.

E2REHERBERLT

178

BHE-_Z—NLF+-A=+—
AtFE FREEELNA
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16(b) LEASES (Continued)

(ii)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows

the following amounts relating to leases:

16(b) & (&)

RERE 2 HEH RS RER
i & 58
A REIRERSIR T 5IE WA
EMSHE:

2019 2018
—E-AE | ZE-)N\F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHExT FHEIT
Depreciation charge of FREEENEEAR
right-of-use assets
Leased properties HEME 40,066 =
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE 14,698 =
Interest expense FERZ
(included in finance cost) (R ARARR) 3,827 -
Expense relating to REEE 2 MR X
short-term leases 19,399 -
Expense relating to variable lease REEREEEEZ
payments not AIEEENKZ
included in lease liabilities e 45 -
Total cash flows for leases in 2019 was HK$44,060,000. RZZE—NF HEZRERKE
48 %8 /544,060,000 7T, ©
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16(b) LEASES (Continued)

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are

17

accounted for

The Group leases various offices and restaurant stores. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed period of 3 years, but may
have extension options as described in (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions.

16(b) #HE (£&)
(i) XEEHEHEFTEHEREA

R R
AEEHEERBHAEREE
- HESN—REER/HA=
F - HEFREBIE TPt 2 B
THEERE

AR R ERIRER - R E et
& HTRE-

(iv) Extension and termination options (iv) BHERAIRERE
Extension and termination options are included in a number of REE RS @A ZFEIE IS4
offices and restaurant stores across the Group. These are used to HEEERERKIEHERIERE.
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets ZEEM RS BRI ER
used in the Group's operations. The majority of extension and BEREEERANAEEEENE
termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and E2EBREE - REDMFE
not by the respective lessor. MWERRKLIDEEREERARS

| T SF AR FE A B A AT o

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 BREYHE

2019 2018
—B-hE | ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHTT

At 1 January Rn—H—H 108,423 108,865

Fair value (loss)/gain NEE(EB) S (11,184) 4,565

Exchange difference PE X =RE (2,017) (5,007)

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 95,222 108,423

sosgrpsRed 180 —m-hEER
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the investment properties:

BREME (&)
THSBEREA 2EMERARE
BRI RER

2019 2018
—E-hEF | ZT—N\F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FBx FAT
Rental income HE A 3,134 4,228
Direct operating expenses from properties EEXESWAZYHEZ
that generated rental income HEELERX (390) (575)
2,744 3,653
Valuation process of the Group AEENHERR

As at 31 December 2019, investment properties were revalued by
an independent professionally qualified valuer, CHFT Advisory and
Appraisal Limited (2018: same) using direct comparison approach. As
at 31 December 2019, the Group's interests in investment properties
are held on leases of 30-31 years (2018: 31-32 years) and are located in
the PRC (2018: same).

The Group reviews the valuation performed by independent valuer
for financial reporting purposes. Discussion of valuation processes and
results are held between management and independent professional
qualified valuer for financial reporting purposes.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED 181
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17

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Valuation process of the Group (Continued)

17

i © B 5 ¥ R Bid 5

REWE (&)
FEBENLERF (B)

Fair value measurements using

BEAUATHABB A FEFESRX

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HEEE HERX EX
RERT 5 EIE -k FAHE
H R 1E BAHIE wARE
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
R (5—F) (£=8) (5=FE)
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
THEIT TR T
At 31 December 2019 R=ZF—NnE
+=A=t+—8H
Investment properties: B
Commercial buildings and car EEFNPES
parking spaces
- Mainland China —hE A - - 95,222
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZE—N\EF
+=—A=+—H
Investment properties: TEYE
Commercial buildings and car REANEREN
parking spaces
~ Mainland China —hE R - - 108,423

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in

circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

E2REHERBERLT

182 —

AEENBRDIN SRR BB E M
BAEYRAMBZEHE AR R FE
EBRNEAREL -

FANEE FERF=EzBEL
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using significant

unobservable input (Level 3) are as follows:

fm © B 5 ¥ R Bid 5

REM* (&)
FREAEATARRE AL (5
=B WATFENEZARMT

Valuation techniques

B {EH M

Relationship of
Range of unobservable
Valuation Unobservable unobservable inputs to fair
Description Fair value technique inputs inputs value
FAHE TARZBAYE
BOR AFE fRE R FTUHEZGARE BARB®HE HATLENHER
HK$'000
FTHAT
At 31 December 2019
R=B-AE+=A=t+—-H
Commercial buildings and 95222 Direct comparison Comparable Commercial buildings: The higher the comparable
car parking spaces — approach sales evidence RMB80,000 to market price, the higher
No.8, Fuchengmen Road, Xicheng (Cross-checked with RMB90,000 per square the fair value
District, income approach) metre
Beijing, the PRC
Car parking spaces:
RMB380,000 to
RMB500,000 per unit
BEABREM— BELBA A& L& BEAZ:BFHK  ATELBDES
FEIL R AR EER (BRAEZXRE) HERSE AR 80,000 E RFERKIEL
FIFp R85k 18 AR #90,0007T
By GBI
AR 3800002
AR #5000007T
At 31 December 2018
R=B-N\F+=A=t+-H
Commercial buildings and 108423 Direct comparison Comparable Commercial buildings: The higher the comparable
car parking spaces — approach sales evidence RMB80,816 to market price, the higher
No.8, Fuchengmen Road, (Cross-checked with RMB90,000 per square the fair value
Xicheng District, income approach) metre

Beijing, the PRC

EEIN: P ESva B LBA
PR IE IR T P B (BB ANERIRE)
PISMRHTBE1E

AALR
WERE

SRR

Car parking spaces:
RMB200,000 to
RMB480,000 per unit

EEAR:FELK
AR#80816TTE
AR #90,0007T

B BB
AR#2000007cE
AR #480,0007C

AELBRmESR
RFEKRIEL

Under direct comparison approach, fair values of the investment
properties are derived from comparing the property to be valued
directly with other comparable properties, which have recently
transacted. However, given the heterogeneous nature of the
properties, appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow
for any qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be
achieved by the property under consideration. The most significant
impact into this valuation approach is price per square metre/price per

unit.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
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18 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 BEREFEE
Customer Customer
Goodwill backlog relationship Total
KRR
[k BEFEH EFE&F st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHT
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-Z-N\&§
TZRA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount BB FE 21,720 = = 21,720
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) BB B A R) (FiFE32) 89,019 47913 32,742 169,674
Amortisation charge BT = (2,651) (539) (3,190)
Exchange differences N =58 508 368 248 1,124
Closing net book amount B ERTEFE 111,247 45,630 32451 189,328
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-NE+=-A=+-—H
Cost 7R 111,247 48,281 32,990 192,518
Accumulated amortisation and RET#HRRE
impairment - (2,651) (539) (3,190)
Net book amount REFE 111,247 45,630 32,451 189,328
Year ended 31 December 2019 HEZ-Z-h&
+T-A=t+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount HAREFE 111,247 45,630 32451 189,328
Amortisation charge BiE - (16,260) (3334) (19,594)
Impairment IE (2,104) - - (2,104)
Exchange differences = (2369) (477) (608) (3,454)
Closing net book amount Hi R AR FE 106,774 28,893 28,509 164,176
At 31 December 2019 R=ZE-nE+=HA=+—-H
Cost (DN 108,878 47,804 32,382 189,064
Accumulated amortisation and BRHEERRE
impairment (2,104) (18911) (3,873) (24,888)
Net book amount REFE 106,774 28,893 28,509 164,176
During the year ended 31 December 2019, amortisation of intangible BEZZT-NF+-A=1+—HLHF
assets charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive B - Rira 2 ERaE R HR BT EE
income is HK$19,594,000 (2018: HK$3,190,000). K8 54 519,594,0008 70 (ZZE— N\F:

3,190,000/ 7T ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Note:

The fair values at acquisition date of the customer backlogs of HK$47,913,000
and customer relationships of HK$32,742,000 acquired through the business
combination of BYL Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 was
determined by directors of the Company, with reference to the valuation report
prepared by CHFT Advisory and Appraisal Limited, an independent valuer.

The customer backlogs represent the total estimated customer contracts that
has been secured and remain to be completed as at the acquisition date. The
customer relationships refer to the long-time business relationship and history
with key customers in Chengdu, Sichuan, the PRC. The fair values of customer
backlogs and customer relationships are determined using multi-period excess
earnings method under the income approach which is widely adopted when
market participants consider current customer contracts and relationships of
a company to be one of the core competence. The key assumptions used in
estimating the fair values of the intangible assets are as follows:

2018
Sales amount (% annual growth rate) 2%
Gross margin (% of revenue) 28%
Discount rate 15.3%

The directors determined that, after having made all reasonable and careful
enquiries, the valuation methods, basis and key assumptions applied in the
valuation report prepared by the independent valuer, and after considering
the nature, prospects, financial condition and business risks of the underlying
business of the intangible assets, they are not aware of any indication of
impairment of intangible assets as at the acquisition date and as at 31
December 2018.

The directors of the Company, to the best of their knowledge information and

belief are not aware of any indications that an impairment of intangible assets of
BYL Group CGU is required as at 31 December 2019.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED

185

18

BEREBLEE (&)

HE-Z—\F+-A=1t—HLEFE RK
B HERTERE P& A B A F{E47913,000/4
TREBBEHREENERAHITRENE
P RA1R32742,0008 THA AR ESETE @ WL
2EB U GEMES B AT EARRD AR
B (EERE ©

RFEKRRF A KB RGBEEWRE BB
RERH TP A NNMGEE TR RAREE
A7 7E 5 B )1 AR = 2 5 P 1O & IR X BR R
REE - KRR BEFPAHREFBENRTE
TYRBRAOEE R 2 BB A FEAEE - ik
NEDEMH2EERA - RARANRER
F AKX RBRERZOBS NG IREZ R - 1
HEFEFEEZ ATERMRANEZRR
L

—T-N\F
HEE(FEREANL) 2%
EM=E (FzmE D) 28%
BLIR = 15.3%

BRLER—DSEREHESH (BILEEM
PR St hER ST AR MMER A 4

ITER[) R AREERETEENHERE
BOME 5 MR REBRRER K
EXTHABFRNEBERRER - N\F+=
A=+ —BREERPRRARTEEL TR
Be

BAAREZMAMREE  RELTHBME
APRKRA AR —F-NF+-_A=+—8
HEEIREERSELEUMNELBEERH
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w & B 5 #R 2R i 5

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18 BEREREE (&)
Impairment assessments of Goodwill and intangible assets BEREFEE ZRETMG
Goodwill acquired through business combinations in previous years RBEFEFBERE FRENEE
are allocated to cash generating units, namely New Fortune Group ZHEESEL DAIRMTE
CGU and BYL Group CGU (see Note 32 for details) respectively, for SEReEFLEMRERREERS
impairment test. The recoverable amounts of the New Fortune Group A B (FHBE2BME32) UETTR
CGU and BYL Group CGU have been determined by reference to the BAR HEEBEReELEULE
value-in-use calculation, which are higher than their respective fair HREEReESBMHATKREI S
value less costs of disposal. N2EFEREEFE (EDaRESE
EBRTEREEXA) METE o
Exchange
Opening Addition Impairment difference Closing
40 nE AE EXZEE LR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-Z-NF
As at 31 December 2019 +=A=t+-A8 FAT FAT FAT FHAT FAT
Property leasing business - ELI-E
New Fortune Group CGU HESERGEEEN 21,522 = (2,104) (422) 18996
Environmental maintenance RIGHEEG—
business - BYL Group CGU EEREERCELEM 89,725 - - (1,947) 87,778
111,247 - (2,104) (2,369) 106,774
Property leasing business — New Fortune Group (GU WEHEREE - HHEEEH
TELEWN
In assessing the value-in-use calculation, references were made to the R EEREESER BE2ERE
valuation of the investment properties and the carrying amount of the MEGEREBELZHEMEERE
business unit's other assets and liabilities which approximated to their BEWREE (BEAFERE) T8
fair values, excluding any deferred tax liabilities initially recognised on 5 B 7N 26 75 B8 (27 48 R ) (E (] 1) 4 T 3R
acquisition relevant to this business unit. Fair values of the properties WHEHRERIEE E- W 2 N TFE
were determined based on valuations performed by independent THIRARIE S E R G R AT 2 fh1E
valuer at year end (See Note 17 for details). mEE (FFBEAELEMNTE7)
LosEERsRAa 186 —B-hEER
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GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment assessments of Goodwill and intangible assets
(Continued)

Property leasing business — New Fortune Group (GU (Continued)

The directors determined that after having made all reasonable and
careful enquiries, the valuation methods, basis and key assumptions
applied in the valuation of the investment properties held by the New
Fortune Group CGU, the significant drop in fair value of the investment
properties was an impairment indicator to the goodwill of the New
Fortune Group CGU. An impairment loss on the New Fortune Group
CGU of HK$2,104,000 was charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, relevant key assumptions are stated in Note
17 to this consolidated financial statements.

Environmental maintenance business — BYL Group (GU

In assessing the value-in-use calculation, references were made to
the calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
plans approved by management covering a forecast period of 5
years. Cash flows beyond the forecast period are extrapolated using
the estimated long-term growth rates. The long-term growth rate of
the CGU does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
environmental maintenance business in which the CGU operates.
The key assumptions applied includes pre-tax discount rate of 15.9%
(2018: 14.3%), annual revenue growth rate of 28% (2018: 96%) for the
first year of projection, and 2% (2018: 2%) for the remaining years of
the five year budget period and terminal growth rate of 2% (2018: 2%),
and an average gross profit margin of 27.8% (2018: 28.3%). The revenue
growth rate in the first year of projection was arrived at by taking
into account of the expected renewal of existing service contracts,
the committed services contracts awarded to BYL Group and the
successful bidding and execution of new potential services contracts
as at the date of the assessment by management.

The recoverable amount of the BYL Group CGU calculated based on
value-in-use was determined based on valuation performed by CHFT
Advisory and Appraisal Limited, an independent professional valuer,
which exceeded the carrying amount by HKS$113,111,000 (2018:
HK$145,441,000).

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
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BEREBLEE (&)
BEREVEE ZRERG
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VEZ e ke I
EELEWN (&

BEELELE A BREEEN (1A
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XHETFMERANGEELS S BEER
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REHMEEREBEFER E2ZRER
JE BTt b 11 4F 7EOR) EABA 7S 5 H 81 5 A B
MATER £ RETRAETHE - TERIHALER
ReREFEREFHRAPEREHR - %
BEEABEMHRAERERLERE
REEEBEFERIRREZEZBH
REAFERE - IERANEEZREE
FEER T AT AR IR R159% (— T — \&F:
143%) « B F R A FE & BOE K X
28% (ZZF—)\F:96%) AR AFFEE
HAER N EE2% (—ZT—\F 1 2% ) B &
HiE R 3000 (=2 —/\F 1 2% ) B
ERNE78% (—F— \F:283%) ° &
FEAMNEYIERE LT RN E R
BaTh A ETEERAEFT IR A RIS 64 - &%
¥ Bk E H AR RIS A 4 RN
FRIR R ENLETBIE RIS A KRR

R B 18 3 B L E R = A AR
BERARETZHEEEZERER
ECERREBRSELBN A
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(== — )\ 1 145441,000/8 7T ) °
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18

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment assessments of Goodwill and intangible assets
(Continued)

Environmental maintenance business — BYL Group (GU
(Continued)

Since the carrying amount of the BYL Group CGU is not sensitive to the
change in assumption, no sensitivity analysis is disclosed.

The directors of the Company, to the best of their knowledge
information and belief, are not aware of any indications that an
impairment of the goodwill and intangible asset of BYL Group CGU
is required as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 after considering the
above value-in-use calculation and the nature, prospects, financial
condition and business risks of the respective CGUs. Accordingly, no
impairment loss was considered necessary as at 31 December 2019
and 2018.
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fm © B 5 ¥ R Bid 5

19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 19 BREHES»HNE Eﬂ TH
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to SR T EMEETECR NI
the line items below: H:

2019 2018
—E-hE | —ZT—)\F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET T
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet #EEEEBERFIEE
Finance assets at FVPL BiBEm AN FE
SR 2 @EE
Contingent consideration receivables FEU S ARE 537 6,378
Loans and receivables EREKFE
Trade receivables B 5 W KT 36,020 12,024
Deposits and other receivables e &ﬁfﬁﬁgqﬁ SRIE 28,634 45,975
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEFEEY 230,498 117,635
Liabilities as per consolidated HEEEABRRMIIARE
balance sheet
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost FERE K A 2 B A
Eit 2 E &
Trade payables B R RIE 29,387 20,250
Accruals, provisions and other payables EEtEA - ﬁé‘ﬁ&
H A f& A 5K 46,580 47,226
Amount due to a related company JE 1~ — I BB A R 5K I8 3,378 3453
Consideration payables FERIHRAB 74,571 113,102
Loans from a shareholder R E K 19,456 95,043
Loans from a director of certain subsidiaries BETHBARZ
—REFEEX 41,000 19,000
Amount due to a director B —RESHIEAE 1,100 1,100
Amount due to a director of ERETHWBARZ
certain subsidiaries —REEIA 99 -

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
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20 TRADE RECEIVABLES

20 EFEWRIE

2019 2018

—E—-hEF —E—)N\F

HK$'000 HKS'000

FET T T

Trade receivables E 5 W GRIE 36,020 12,024

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date is as

REZAH2INE 5 RUGIRRE

follows: DT :
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FExT TET
0 to 30 days 0Z£30H 19,826 8,592
31 to 60 days 31260H 8,806 3,432
61 to 90 days 61%E90H 7,388 -
36,020 12,024

soemirpsaiRad 190 —F-hsER
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group's revenue from its Chinese restaurant operations is mainly
conducted in cash or by credit cards. The credit periods granted by
the Group to its customers for its newly acquired environmental
maintenance business and its tenants range from 30 to 90 days. As at
31 December 2019, the Group's trade receivables mainly comprised
credit card receivables in restaurant business and receivables from
the Group's environmental maintenance business. These receivables
were not past due nor impaired and amounted to approximately
HK$36,020,000 (2018: HK$12,024,000). They are related to customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure the
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. No loss allowance were made as at 31
December 2019 and 2018.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair
values and are denominated in RMB except for HK$227,000 (2018:
HK$825,000) which are denominated in HKS. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying values of trade
receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
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EZENFRE (£)
AEFEPRRNEEEERDFEZNR
SEARET ANEERFTIKERE
HEXFRPREAPREMEES
NF30EVE -R—_ZE—AFE+=-A
=+—H AEENBEZERFIEEE
BIEEE R 2 {5 A~ FEWGRIE &R
B A S BIRIE 4 75 2 FEUGRIE ©
ZERWFIERES BTN ERE ©
BH 49 /36,020,000 7T (= — )\ F:
12,024,000/ 7T, ) © B3 HA N0 £ 32 ) R0 8%
HEF AR -

AN E E B BRI TSR 5 4RI SE 05k A
b=t 2B BREEREE  ZZERI5
FTE B 5 RUGRIER A @R A 78
HEEREE - BHE T NER_F
—N\F+-_A=+—8 BEEHET
B R

Z SR IERREESEE A FER
AN REETE - H227,000% 7T
(== — )\ & 8250008 78) Jh LAB T
sHERIN - REE B EENSEAEE
B A i E 5 e R IBRIBREE - A
SE I ES G TR IFRIERER-
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21 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 BE EANREREMER
g
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET T
Performance deposits (Note) BHRES (M) 12,184 10,257
Rental deposits Hekse 7,229 19,987
Utilities deposits NAREES 1,484 4,868
Other deposits Hiike 3,811 8,005
Other receivables H b & YRR 4,282 2,156
Prepaid insurance TEfT R 760 1,505
Prepayment for advertising and promotions BEE KRR RIE 452 474
Prepaid rent ENEE - 2,072
Other prepayments RSN E] 4,665 3,801
34,867 53,125
Less: Non-current portion B IERNEREL
- rental deposits —MHeiEe (4,656) (7,616)
— performance deposits (Note) —BHRFES (M) (2,428) (8,135)
— prepayment for acquisition of property, — B - B
plants and equipment RABRTEN 5RIE (844) (921)
Current portion BVHAER 55 26,939 36,453

%% AN EIE R E U S IE A BRE
EHEEQNFERE  WABTEHE i
19,181,000/ 7T ( =Z— )\ : 16,991,000
BID) AARBETE-

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other receivable
approximate their fair values and are denominated in HKS, except for
HK$19,181,000 (2018: HK$16,991,000) which was denominated in RMB.

ses@ERERAE 192 —S-hEER
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DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 B BEANREREMER
(Continued) NIE (&)
Note: Bt 5 -
In accordance with the service contracts with customers and the common BIREEFH RS A RPBERBEHETEN
practice in the environmental maintenance industry in the PRC, certain —RIEF ETFEFPERAEBFRRIS
customers request the Group to maintain deposits with them. These deposits ZERE R BN EBREEERE S QER
will be released and refunded to the Group when the relevant environmental (BER—Z2=F)RBRILRETASE-
maintenance services contract expired, normally in one to three years. The ERETH2ZEBEEREIRREEHMLE
balances are regularly reviewed by management with reference to the historical BN ZB-NER_T-N\F+ZA=+—
default rates or forfeiture rate. No loss allowance were made on these deposits H BERZSERIESELBERE-
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL 22 BAFEFTAEZNERE
B
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Contingent consideration receivables FEW AR E 537 6,878

As at 31 December 2019, the fair values of the contingent
consideration receivables are determined by an independent
valuer. Details of the contingent consideration receivables and key
assumptions of valuation are disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, fair value loss on financial
assets at FVPL of HK$6,395,000 in relation to contingent consideration
receivables (2018: nil) was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED

193

R-ZZE—HhhFE+-_A=+—0 FEk
RARBZAFET BB (GEME
TE o FEU K AR E REEEEZRZ
BRERE B TS TR M 324 55 -

HE-_ZT—-NF+=-A=+—H1
FE HRARBKKAREBZIEATFE
AABERNESREEZ A TFEEER
6,395,000/ 7T ( = F— /\F : THT) -
REEAEEERBERIER
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23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23 BHERBREEEY
2019 2018
—E-NF ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET T
Short-term bank deposits RHASRITIF K 190,173 =
Cash at banks RITE® 40,035 114,395
Cash on hand FHES 290 3,240
Cash and cash equivalents RekIREEFEY 230,498 117,635
Maximum exposure to credit risk = EERER 230,208 114,395

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the
following currencies:

RTASRBTEREREXNEHY
MEREOFE - RERREFEWN
THEEHE:

2019 2018
ZE-hAEFE | ZZEN\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T T

RMB AR 47,726 28,133
HKS BT 182,772 89,502
230,498 117,635

The year-end effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was
2.33% per annum (2018: nil). These deposits have an average maturity
of 1.09 month (2018: nil).

As at 31 December 2019, out of the total cash and bank balances
denominated in RMB as stated above, approximately HK$47,726,000
(2018: HK$28,133,000) were kept in Mainland China. The remittance
of these funds out of Mainland China is subject to applicable foreign
exchange restrictions imposed by the respective local governments.

E2REHERBERLT
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RERITERNERERFE AT
233% (ZE—N\F ) - ZETF R
SEHEIEAAI00ER (ZE—NE:
) o

R-E—NF+-_F=+—8 EXF
MAARESTERNRS RIRTTEHRR
REA + 947,726,000/ 70 (=& — )\ :

28,133,000% 7T ) 77 IR HF B i © 52 %5
BSELFRAMAS ST BFE
M 2 3 FR AN & 51 BT AR IR ©
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24 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

28 BRARRGRE

Number of Nominal value
ordinary of ordinary Share
shares shares premium
EEREHE ZEREE I3 RE
Thousand HKS$'000 HK$'000
Fhx FET FET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZE—N\F+=A
as at 31 December 2018 and e e = D =)
31 December 2019 F+-HA=+—H
BREBEIETY
L imi 10,000,000 100,000 -
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR:
At 1 January 2018 W-—Z—N\E—F—H 558,000 5580 236,120
Transfer from share-based B ARG AERE
payment reserve to share IR EERE
premium (Note 25) B fn (8 (PiEE25) = = 18,950
At 31 December 2018 RZT—\&F
+=ZA=+-H 558,000 5,580 255,070
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—A—H 558,000 5,580 255,070
Issue of ordinary shares by BBREIET
subscription (Note) TR (F3E) 30,000 300 49,300
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=-—A=+—H 588,000 5,880 304,370

Note:

M EE

RZT-—NF=RA=+NA AARHE—-EF
MNE=F ([RBADILREGE ([RER
#) Bt REAGKERZEREMARAR]
BIEGREREIR 708 TR ER MRS AR
2% K 3£4730,000,000/8 F & i A% -

On 29 March 2019, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
(“Subscription Agreement”) with an independent third party (the “Subscriber”),
pursuant to which the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe for and
the Company has agreed to allot and issue 30,000,000 new ordinary shares at a
price of HK$1.70 per share to the Subscriber.

R-ZZE—NFHA=1+MNE REHBEETNZ
Fi ARG B ER  BIRDRBEERRFE B
FEAX o SR8 P15 SR I8 % 88 449,600,000%8 7T ( B

On 24 April 2019, all the conditions precedent under the Subscription
Agreement was fulfilled and the share subscription was completed on the same
date. The net proceeds of HK$49,600,000 (after deducting the expenses incurred

in the subscription from the gross proceeds of HK$51,000,000) were raised from FT 153X T8 #85851,000,0007%8 7T 71 Bk 7R BE 2 A Y
the subscription and credited to the share capital and share premium account FX 18) Wt AR R BAR A R AR 17 4 (B Bk o

of the Company.
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25 RESERVES 25 f@EfE
Share-based
Capital Exchange payment  Accumulated Statutory
reserve reserve reserve losses Reserve Total
AR 43
RERN
N ERfE SES 2t E#E EERE h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
At 1 January 2018 W-2-NE-A—H 4,986 3,206 348 (142,359) - (110739)
Comprehensive income: 2EYE:
Loss attributable to ownersof AN EEA A
the Company ElEER - - - (27,260) - (27,260)
Other comprehensive income:  E A2 K3 :
Currency translation differences  E¥AEZE - (3,599) - - - (3,599)
Comprehensive income: 2EKE: - (3,599) - (27,260) - (30,859)
Transactions with ownersin ~ SHEANEEE AL
their capacity as owners: SRETHRS:
Share-based payment (Note 35) AR 13 AZERERY
R (BEE3s) - - 4,565 - - 4,565
Lapsed of share options BREXN - - (247) 247 - -
Transfer from share-based SRENRD A
payment reserve to HRNETRRES
share premium (Note(() Rinig(E (FsEa) - - (18,950) - - (18,950)
Transfer to statutory reserve EREAEHE - - - (331) 650 319
At31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F
+ZA=+-H 4,986 (393) 8,796 (169,703) 650 (155,664)
Loe@ripaRas 196 —s—hEER
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25 RESERVES (Continued) 25 f#E (&)
Share-based
Capital Exchange payment  Accumulated Statutory
feserve feserve feserve losses Reserve Total
PARR 17
REH
EXGE EiGE  IREE ZHER  ETERE b
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
THT THIL THIL AL THIL AL
At 1 January 2019 R-B-h&-F—H 4986 (393) 87% (169,703) 650 (155,664)
Comprehensive income: 2EKE:
Loss attributable toownersof AR RIHAE ALy
the Company B - - - (71,003) - (71,003)
Other comprehensive income:  E 2 E K :
Currency translation differences  EMAE =8 - (3853) - - - (3853)
Comprehensive income: 2EYE - (3853) - (71,003) - (74856)
Transactions with ownersin S5 H ANNE
their capacity as owners: BAKSBES
WR5:
Share-based payment (Note 35)  JARR 3 AEREH)
DEAGEES - - 189% - - 189%
Lapsed of share options BRERY = = (283) 283 - -
Transfer to statutory reserve ERETTRE - - - (1923) 3771 1848
Shares to be issued (Note (i)~ IR{3 & 1B (FT3E()) 177,000 - - - - 177,000
At 31 December 2019 R=E-hE
+ZA=t-H 181,986 (4246) 10409 (242,346) 441 (49,776)
-4
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25

RESERVES (Continued)

Note (i):

On 10 May 2013, Choi Fook Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,
allotted and issued 75,000 new shares to Century Great Investments Limited
(“Century Great"), which was entirely exchanged to the shares of the
Company upon completion of the reorganisation on 19 November 2013 at
a consideration of HK$75,000 and the services to be provided by Century
Great which include, inter alia, reviewing the Group's business operations
and development and management policies from time to time, devising the
Group's marketing plan, seeking strategic investors for the Group and arranging
regular trainings for directors and members of the senior management for a
term of five full financial years after the listing (“the vesting period”). Century
Great is liable to compensate the Group for all losses and damages resulting
from its failure to provide the abovementioned services at any time during the
vesting period.

Century Great undertakes that within the five full financial years after the listing,
it will not, for each year, sell, or dispose of more than 20% of the entire shares
which are beneficially owned by it upon the listing. Non-vesting condition refers
to the lock-up period for the shares which are taken into account by adjusting
the fair value of the shares so that the amount reflects the discount for the lock-
up period. The shares in Century Great were converted into the shares of the
Company of 24,430,000 shares and are restricted for a period of 5 years.

The fair value of the shares issued in return for services received approximates
the fair value of services received by the Group. The estimate of fair value of
services received was measured based on the discounted cash flow model. The
fair value of the shares issued as at 10 May 2013 as determined by using the
discounted cash flow was approximately HK$18,950,000, discount rate of 15.0%,
lack of control discount of 26.7% and terminal growth rate of 2.8%.

The services received by the Group commenced upon the listing. Consultancy
service fee of HK$18,950,000 was recognised as prepayment which is to
be amortised over the vesting period of 5 years. During the year ended
31 December 2019, no amortisation charge of the consultancy service
fee was recognised in “other expenses” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (2018: HK$3,582,000).

Upon the completion of the 5 years service period during the year ended

31 December 2018, the share based payment reserve of HK$18,950,000 was
transferred to share premium.

E2REHERBERLT
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(&)

Bt 5 ) -

R=ZF—=FAA+H AAGKBRRFK
&2 B% B FR A Al [AlCentury Great Investments
Limited ( [ Century Great | ) B2 8 & 3%1775,0008%
G  ZERHER-_ZT—=F+—HA+h
B EEEBHEREAARR ARG  RE
7475,0007 7T » 11 Century Great#§ T 12t 80 IR 75
BE (EFeE) R EmEAATENREE
N([BEHM])  THREHAESENERS
B BERERBCR  HIRIAREN TS HE
HR AAEESKEREREERAEERS
REEERL B RHEE BIE T - 1A 5B BARS (A
BFR A » Century GreatZBRh A BEHR it b alt AR 75
LAREERZHABRREBEELERE-

Century GreatF&## * 1Y 118 8 ST B B B AR
EAESEFE TS HERIEBEN
Mg EERES 2R H20% © FEHBE
SRR EEH  WEBAERNH AT
B LA 58 R B 2265 HRR9 BE IR © Century Great
BAR 17 B 8544 7524,430,0000R R A BIAR (5 + PR AR
BAF-

AIRERFT R ER BT R AR D B A FEE
AEBEEERREHAFERS - B EIRIRE
MAFEGETREBRRBESREERR -
R-E—=AA+ACETRNNAFTE
ThfsE FA B3R IR € 7% & 4918,950,00078 7T~ BAIR =
15.0% ~ R = 22 1 37 :%826.7% 2 & HA 38 & F2.8%
e

AL B FTERAMARFS B M8 © 18,950,000
BITERREERAERAENIE  HRAE
CBYAEE - BE T NE+_A=1+—
BIEFE - WEAARGEE R 2@ Wi
ArEKERERA[HEMALZ] (Z2—N
4 13,582,000/ 7T ) °

BHE_Z—N\E+_A=+—HLEE &
FRFEHATRE  ARD BERONREE
18,950,000/ 7T, B $5 #8 = iR 10 ) (8 ©

B NEER
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RESERVES (Continued) 25 f#E (&)
Note (ii): i £ i) -
On 16 December 2019, the Company entered into a subscription agreement RZE-—NAFE+ZRA+RE ARFEIEE—
("Second Subscription Agreement”) with an independent third party EELE=F ([EF=RBATLRED
(the “Second Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Second Subscriber has HZ([BE-OREHE]) Bt F-REA
conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company has agreed to allot and ERBRHRERBMARFEREMNE R
issue 117,000,000 new ordinary shares at a price of HK$1.53 per share to the BARGRRMSIB T2 BREERET
Second Subscriber. 117,000,0008% 37 £ 8% ©
As at 31 December 2019, all the conditions precedent under the Second REZZE—NF+-A=1+—8 E_HREH
Subscription Agreement were fulfilled and the net proceeds of HK$177,000,000 #IE THRA SR EHERENK  REEIEY
(after deducting the expenses incurred in the subscription from the gross FiT 13 3K I8 % 58 4177,000,0007% 7T ( B FT{8 38
proceeds of HK$179,010,000) were raised from the subscription. #A%5179,010,00078 LR IR R BIHATE AR
M%&) -
However, the share certificates were delivered to the Second Subscriber and the R BRERN TE - RBAMKRNRETY
share subscription was completed after the year end date on 7 January 2020. REGERER-_Z_2F - HREK-
Accordingly, the raised capital before year end date was credited to an equity Ik FEEBRIPMEENESERE TEITHR
account as shares to be issued and was subsequently credited to share capital M ARERFIEER T _TF— A+
and share premium on 7 January 2020. HEt AR R AR 17 )5 (8 o
TRADE PAYABLES 26 ESEMNNRE
The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as REZ A2 E FENFIERE
follows: DA :
2019 2018
—E-hE | —2-NF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET T
0 to 30 days 0£30H 9,695 12,492
31 to 60 days 31260H 13,737 7,595
61 to 90 days 61290H 5,955 163
29,387 20,250
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their fair values B ZENFIBENREDEEE QA FEHE
and are denominated in HKS, except that HK$21,984,000 (2018: & M0 LA T EHE ¢ HE21,984,000 7T
HK$4,463,000) are denominated in RMB. (ZZ—\F: 44630008 7T) AA R
WEHE-
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27  ACCRUALS, PROVISIONS AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 27 BERtEA REREAENS
DEPOSITS RECEIVED MEARE RRE
2019 2018
—E-nE | ZF-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TAET
Accruals, provisions and other payables EitER -BER
B bR KA
Accrued wages, salaries and bonuses B TE FHekhiEs 12,042 13,380
Accrued rental expenses 4T - 4515
Accrued utilities expenses NS b 526 541
Payables for purchases of property, EEYE - WBE RREN
plant and equipment FE{ 2R 11,862 13,309
Other accrued expenses HibpEst Rt 15,253 13,707
Other tax payable H b pE 8 9,272 6,288
Provision for unutilised annual leave K BEBREE 309 1,109
Provision for long service payment EHRE S BE 554 1,651
Total accruals, provisions and other payables  pE=-% F - 5 % H fib fE {5
IR R 49,818 54,500
Less: S
Non-current portion — accrued rental expenses  JEBNEAZ 4> — FESHFA S B - 2,997)
Current portion of accruals, provisions and FESHE R - B 1% A FE S
GNP [RERIelEs FEM A S 49,818 51,503
Deposits received Blkize
Tenants’ deposits received BUiEEIRS 276 1,300
Other deposits received =i Wiks 302 803
Total deposits received B Uik 4 xa s 578 2,103

The carrying amounts of accruals, provisions and other payables and
deposits received approximate their fair values and are denominated
in HKS, except that HK$43,893,000 (2018: HK$28,565,000) are
denominated in RMB.

— &
—=
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iz e MERAEEE QN FEEE WA
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BORROWINGS 28 fBE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)N\F
HK$’'000 HKS'000
FET AT
Bank loans (Note) SRITE (MIEE) 1,674 -
Note: PR &E

Bank borrowings have an effective interest rate of 4.79% per annum (2018: nil).
The carrying amounts of the borrowings were denominated in RMB (2018: nil).

As at 31 December 2019 bank borrowings were secured by a personal
guarantee from Mr. Wan Zhong, the non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
of the Group. By the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
the Group has repaid all of its bank borrowings carried as at 31 December 2019.

LOANS FROM A DIRECTOR OF CERTAIN SUBSIDIARIES 29

RITEEZ RIRFFIEA479% (—B—\F :
) BEZEEENARBHE(ZZ-N
F:%)-

RZZE-NAF+-A=+—R0 RITEEHS
BIRE (AEEM B AR 2 IFERBRR) 2@
ABEREER - RZFREV B REREZE
B8R AEEEEER T -AF+=A
=t+t—BWMARTEE:-

ﬁ?ﬁ#%’&ﬂz—%§$ﬁ

FA

2019 2018
—E-hE | ZZE-N\F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHEIT
Current BN A
Loans from a director of certain ETHEBARZ
subsidiaries — Unsecured —REEEREEA 41,000 19,000

On 9 May 2017, U Banquet Group Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a loan facility agreement with a director of
certain subsidiaries of which the director has agreed to make available
to the Group from time to time an unsecured loan facility amounting
to HKS$60,000,000 with an interest rate of 4.5% per annum for a
term of 2.5 years from 9 May 2017. As at 31 December 2019, a total
of HK$41,000,000 (2018: HK$19,000,000) was drawn down and the
carrying amounts approximate their fair values, denominated in HK$
and repayable on demand.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED

R=ZZT—tFERANB KRR
BRARAEBESEERARIEE THE
REIN—BEZF L —DERHRE H
& Bt RESRETRAANEER
it — 5 & %60,000,0007 TT * FF F K &
450 EEFERME B —tF
AANBRASSF - R_F—AH
F+ = =+—8 ' # $£41,0000007%8
JC (=& — /\4F : 19,000,000/ 7T ) B 12
B BRRAEEE A FEHEE ST
FTEWERERER-

201 ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

29 LOANS FROM A DIRECTOR OF CERTAIN SUBSIDIARIES 29 ETHERARAz—BESE

(Continued) F(E)

The loan facility agreement was renewed on 9 November 2019 for BEXRERER_ZE—NF+—AN
a further period up to 8 April 2020, all other terms and conditions HE—FPEREE_FT_TFMAN
remained the same as the original loan facility agreement. B A EMmGERRGGEFERE

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

KEA AR -

30 EIEEFTBH

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax BEEMSHEERREMBHAESD
liabilities is as follows: HrEnT :
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—NF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET T T
Deferred income tax assets: BIEFTSMEE:
— Deferred income tax assets to be recovered  — i 121E B & Uk @ #Y)
after more than 12 months RIEFTISTREE (5,118) (5,705)
— Deferred income tax assets to be recovered  —#§ M 21E B AUk [E HY
within 12 months EEFTS I E E (2) (768)
(5,120) (6,473)
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEFTSHEE:
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — #5358 121E A & Ug [0 /Y
recovered after more than 12 months RIEFTISTRAE 19,298 23,328
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be —#r2E A ke A
recovered within 12 months RIEFTISTHAE 20,182 20,720
39,480 44,048
34,360 37,575
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

30 EIEFREBH (£)

FREEMSHEERA BNE

(i

Bt MR B R R R R )

within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: NN
Deferred income tax assets EEFESBEE
Decelerated
tax Lease
depreciation Taxlosses  Provisions liabilities Total
&
HERE HEER BE HELE w@st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRT FHT FET TET THT
At 1 January 2018 R=Z-NF-A-H 2574 3,561 32 - 6,167
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) IR B A A (fiE32) - - 191 - 191
Charged to the consolidated statement of MR E&FE 2 ERER
comprehensive income (159) (326) (40) - (525)
Exchange difference EHEZH - - 2 - 2
At31December 2018and 1January 2019  R=E-NF+=-A=+-H
R=Z-hF-HA—-H 2415 3235 185 - 5835
Credited to the consolidated statement of FARAZENGEER
comprehensive income 1,299 - 226 6,670 8,195
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33) HERB AR (HiEss) (1477) - - (1654) (3131)
Exchange difference ERERE - - (13) @) (17)
At 31 December 2019 RZZB-NF+=A=+-H 2237 3235 398 5012 10,882
i 1
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise
deferred income tax assets of HK$25,237,000 (2018: HKS13,848,000)
in respect of its losses amounting to HK$152,952,000 (2018:
HK$83,927,000) that can be carried forward against future taxable
income. The tax losses can be carried forward against future taxable
income.

The retained earnings of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC would
be subject to additional taxation if they are distributed to the holding
companies incorporated outside the PRC. In the opinion of the
directors, these retained earnings, at the present time, are required
for financing the continuing operation and expansion of the Group's
business in the PRC and no distribution would be made in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, no deferred liabilities in respect of
withholding tax on dividend have been provided. As at 31 December
2019, the Group has not recognized deferred tax liabilities in respect of
withholding tax on dividend of HK$9,049,400 (2018: HK$4,838,000).

gzs@zRerrs 204
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EEFfEBHREE (2)
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— J\£F : 83,927,000/ 7T ) B BIEE TS
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13,848,00078 7T ) © Bl 75 518 7] 4542 A A
HEAH AR PR IE SRR o
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during

the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

30 EEEFBH (&)
ENEEFTEHAERA EOES (I
T [F — BiAS AR R M AT )

within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: NN
Deferred income tax liabilities EEfESHARE
Revaluation Fair value
Accelerated arising from gains through
tax investments business Right-of-
depreciation  properties combination  use assets Total
BA
£Bas
mE  REWE EEN
REHE ELHEM AVERE CRAEEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
THT THx THT THx THx
At 1 January 2018 R-E-NE-A—H 3010 - - - 3010
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) W KB A Al (FiEs2) 69 = 20163 = 20232
(Credited)/charged to the consolidated statement of (5t A) /4B B&A
comprehensive income 2ANER (1,341) 1,141 797) = (997)
Exchange difference B = - (1,593) 177 = (1,416)
At 31 December 2018 and RZB-N\E
1 January 2019 +=A=+-Ak
—2-h¥-A-H 1,268 22599 19,543 - 43410
Charged/(credited) to the consolidated statement of ¥R &,/ (st A) &4
comprehensive income FRNEE 5217 (2,796) (4,897) 6,698 4222
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33) HER B (FiFEs3) (81) = = (1369) (1450)
Bxchange difference EREH (159) (504) Q7n3) @ (940)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-N%F
+=A=t+-H 6,245 19299 14373 5325 45242
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PROVISION FOR REINSTATEMENT COSTS 31 BEREARE

2019 2018

—E-hEFE | ZZE-N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

T T

At 1 January R—HA—H 3,117 3451
Unwinding of discount of provision (Note 12) 28 & e 8538 (FTsE12) 27 56
Utilisation B (2,697) (390)
At 31 December Rt+=—_BA=+—H 447 3,117
Less: Non-current portion S8 FEBNHAZR (447) (1,565)
Current portion BVHAER 55 - 1,552

Provision for reinstatement costs is recognised for the present value of
costs to be incurred for the reinstatement of the properties used by the
Group for its Chinese restaurant business operations upon expiration
of the relevant leases. As at 31 December 2019, the Group expected
that the total undiscounted costs required in the future amount to
approximately HK$472,000 (2018: HK$3,541,000).

BERABED A SE RN ERAEE
FER R ER B R 2 EMA
YIZEFMESEXARREMER R
—NWF+-—A=1+—8 A£EBEHX
R BT 5 B AR B 3R B AN 48 BE 4 /472,000
BIL (=ZZF— )\ & 3,541,000/ 7T ) °
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32 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a)

Acquisition of environmental maintenance business

On 9 February 2018, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
(the “Purchaser”) and Mr. Wan Zhong (the “Vendor”) entered
into a sale and purchase agreement in which the Purchaser
has conditionally agreed to purchase, and the Vendor has
conditionally agreed to sell 51% of the entire issued share capital
of BYL Property Holdings Group Limited (“BYL"), at aggregate
consideration of RMB132,600,000 (subject to adjustments)
(equivalent to approximately HK$154,106,000). BYL and its
subsidiaries (collectively as “BYL Group”) is principally engaged
in the environmental maintenance business in the PRC. The
completion of the agreement is subject to certain conditions
precedent.

On 22 October 2018, upon the fulfillment of the conditions
precedent set out in the sale and purchase agreement, the
Group has completed the above acquisition. As a result of
the acquisition, the Group expands its business scope to
environmental maintenance business in the PRC which, the
directors of the Company believe, will enjoy a sustainable
growth in the future.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED

32 EXKEH

(a)

KBRS HEER

RZZE—NE-FALA AR
Rz ENBAR ([BEF])H
BREE([EFDIILEER
Z HPEFAKGREEEM
BEHBKERZELEREBR
BEXPRBREBRBRAR([EH
R BEBEBITRAZ51% 4
HKAB & A R #132,600,0007T (7]
THE) (8% R 4154,106000
BIL) cEHEREREWE QA
(FBIEHREE]) EEZRF
B BRI METESETS o R BT
AT ORGHEREB A AER -

RZZF—-NFE+A=Z+=ZB 'R
BN E B B 0 R R G EK
% AEBEE K L EE - /B
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32 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

()

32 EBEH(E)

Acquisition of environmental maintenance business @ WERRRHEEXEK
(Continued) (%)
The following table summaries the consideration paid for TR IS B B U2
the acquisition, the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities RE -FIKEEERAERSE
assumed at the acquisition date. ZNTFE
2018
—E—)\F
HKS'000
FHEIT
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets P W2 B8 VT 5 Bl E TR PR
acquired and liabilities assumed EECERIALHE
Plant and equipment 5 N 5% 4 27,867
Intangible assets (Note 18) EREE (KIFE18) 80,655
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTS T & E 122
Amount due from related companies JE UK BE B A B IR 540
Trade receivables B 5 W IE 31,897
Contract assets BHEE 14,705
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e - FA FROE K E b FE WRIE 22,456
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIREEED 2,841
Trade payables =) ANEeE (12,544)
Accruals, provisions and other payables FERT B F - B I EL fth AT 50 IB (23,000)
Current income tax liabilities BVERRR 1§ BB (11,099)
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFTER AR (20,163)
Total identifiable net assets at fair values BATFETTEZ A
EEFEAR 114,217
Non-controlling interest PR A (55,966)
Purchase consideration BERE 58,251
— Consideration paid —BRRE 41,875
— Consideration payables —ERRE 52,163
— Contingent consideration payables (Note (i) — s ARE (BTREG) ) 60,068
— Contingent consideration receivables (Note (ii)) — FEW S AR (BT (i) ) (6,836)
Goodwill (Note 18) A& (KEE18) 89,019
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32 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(a)

Acquisition of environmental maintenance business
(Continued)

Note:

0]

At the acquisition date, other than the agreed consideration
of RMB79,560,000 (equivalent to HK$94,038,000), contingent
consideration payables of RMB53,040,000 (equivalent to
HK$60,068,000) was recognised and shall be settled within seven
business days upon the fulfilment of certain payment conditions
as stipulated in the sale and purchase agreement.

In accordance with the sale and purchase agreement, the Vendor
irrevocably and unconditionally warrants and guarantees to
the Purchaser that the audited profit of the BYL Group for the
three financial years ending 31 December 2020 as stated in the
audited consolidated financial statements of the BYL Group
for the underlying years shall not be less than the total sum of
RMB94,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$118,125,000)
(the “Guaranteed Amount’). If the audited profit is less than
the Guaranteed Amount, the Vendor will pay the Purchaser a
compensation based on the formula prescribed in the sale and
purchase agreement.

At 22 October 2018, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivables is determined by a professional
valuation conducted by an independent valuer, at RMB6,036,000
(equivalent to HK$6,836,000) using probability-weighted scenario
analysis and with reference to a discount rate of 4.3%. The fair
value of the contingent consideration receivables is considered
as a level 3 measurement and the movement is presented in
Note 3.3(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
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fm © B 5 ¥ R Bid 5

et (&)

(a)

W s
(%)

B :

(ii)

REEEXR

RERS R EREA
R #79,560,0007T (48 & ®
94,038,000/ 7T ) FI + FETT ALK
8 A R #53,040,0007T (& R
60,068,000/ 7T ) B #ERR * M R
BB R TE 2 & T 3T
ERBCEEERANES-

REEEWHZ BT HEN
REGEmRE FIRE RE
R BEREEHE-_T_F
F+=ZA=1+—HIE=A8K
FEZEEZREMBRRE
PR EEREER AR
B2 Ezom A A i T E
A R #94,500,0007T (18 E ©
#9118,125,000% 7T) ([#ER S
R o MHAE B iz PR R R
SR BHBRBEEERHMN
MARRE 7 PR E -

R=Z-NF+A=+=8"
U AREZ A FEBRBL
HERFTETHEREGERE
HEMBEBE S I 2=E 8
IR *43% " £ A R ¥6,036,0007T
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FARAREBZAFERRABS
B = BREBNGEH
BHREWMFI3@QA L5 -

209 ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 8 75 #R = (i 5

32 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

()

Acquisition of environmental maintenance business

32 EXKE6(E)

(@) WRRRMEERE

(Continued) (4&)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the above acquisition MEMKE R RESTN
is as follows: T e
2018
—N\F
HK$'000
FHET
Cash outflow on the acquisition W E LIRS R
—Total purchase consideration settled in cash R ENHNEEERE 41,875
— Cash and cash equivalents in the Nz Y EPNGI o)
subsidiaries acquired HeRReEEY (2,841)
39,034
Acquisition-related costs of HK$ 1,396,000 have been charged to BHE_T-N\F+-A=1+—H

other expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Goodwill mainly represents the reputation and future potential
growth of the acquired subsidiaries for providing wide array
of cleaning and environmental maintenance services for local
government authorities in the PRC. None of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes.

The revenue and net profit contributed by the newly acquired
subsidiaries and recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income since 22 October 2018 are
HK$31,938,000 and HKS$4,654,000 respectively.

Had BYL Group been consolidated from 1 January 2018, the
Group's consolidated statement of comprehensive income
would show pro-forma revenue of HK$516,921,000 and loss for
the year of HK$6,520,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018.

EZ2REERERL

@ 210

— &=

—=

JJ:EEE + Uiz B 4R B8 X 21,396,000
BILEFTAGREEZAKERE
HEpy-

A EERRENE AR APE
B HEARESEER IR
FHEE RGN EE R AR EEIS
£ o TR AN E FERR IS B Bk P15 B
= AR

BB ARMEREE =
—N\Ft+tAZ+ZARBREKE
ZE W TR M R AT D
71| £31,938,0007% 7T 54,654,000/
=

REEHIREBER =T —N\F—
A—BEESHAR BIXKE
HE-_ZE-—N\F+-A=+—
AIEFERE2ERERNF

NEZEREREBEE®D A
516,921,000 7T 526,520,000/ 7T ©
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 7 November 2019, the Group completed the disposal of
100% of the equity interest of Elite Rainbow Corporation Limited
("Elite Rainbow”) and Vast Rainbow Limited (“Vast Rainbow”) to an

independent third party.

The following table summarises the consideration received for the
disposal and the carrying net amounts of net assets at the disposal

date.

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries of HKS$5,107,000 (2018: nil) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

33 HEMEBLQA

T00%H& 2

RZZ-NAF+—-AtH AEEE
ERABIE=THE
(MR REZERAB ([E¥])

HEBRAR]

TREME BERBHKERNEE
B EERERREFE

HE KB A B 89 W #5,107,0008 7T (=
T—N\F &) ERGREEEKERN

within “Other gain’. [E bl zs | PRER
2019
—E-hEF
HK$’000
FEx
Net liabilities disposed of: HETISENEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment e 25,904
Debtors, prepayments and deposits FEWGRIE TR RERIES 11,770
Deferred tax assets RERIH & B 1,681
Right-of-use assets EREEE 58,699
Cash and cash equivalents RERBREEED 636
Creditors, accruals and deposits received RN Bt EARERIZES (8,086)
Lease liabilities HEBE (60,877)
Contract liabilities SHERE (20,687)
Due to a director/related company N —REE/
— R R R RIA (13,676)
Provision of reinstatement cost BB R A (271)
(4,907)
Gain on disposal HE 2 e 5,107
200
Satisfied by: AT K2 A+
Cash consideration received BYRERE 200
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33

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33 HEMBLAE (£)
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect FHLERBRATNRERAEEE
of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: YRR L F R DA T
2019
—
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration received BHREEKE 200
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BHEMNESKEEEEY (636)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ERLENBARMNE S RRS
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries LEYR L FE (436)
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34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS STATEMENT 34 SRS HEREBRME

(a) Cash generated from operations () KBEFBIR<S
2019 2018
—EBE-AE | ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK§’O@
BT FHETT
Loss before income tax KR Fr 15 %0 Al B 18 (56,038) (23,279)
Adjustments for: R .
— Depreciation of property, plant and —M % BB N R R
equipment and right-of-use assets BEERE (MeE16()
(Note 16(a) and Note 16(b)) NBiEE16()) 60,899 15,524
— Finance costs (Note 12) —B AR (MIEE12) 7,445 1,993
~ Finance income (Note 12) — BB A (FiaE12) (1,516) (864)
— Amortisation of consultancy service — B A IR 7% B 55
fee (Note 25) (P E25) - 3,582
— Share-based payment expenses — PAR A SR
(Note 35) R (PRE35). 1,896 4,565
— Forfeiture of contract liabilities BIE D EE (Fia7)
(Note 7) R . (939) (1,153)
— Amortisation of intangible assets —E A EEE (PisE18)
(Note 18) 19,594 3,190
— Gain on disposal of property, —HEME FE K&
plant and equipment (Note 7) i 2 e (BsE7) - (206)
~ Fair value loss/(gain) of investment —-REME RV E
properties EiE, () 11,184 (4,565)
— Impairment of property, plant and Y% BERRERER
equipment and right-of-use assets & ERE (16
(Note 16(a) and 16(b)) MPFEE16(D)) 23,172 2,831
— Write-off of property, W3 B MR B i
plant and equipment (Note 16(a)) (PffzE16() ) 600 -
— Impairment of goodwill (Note 18) —PERE (KMiFE18) 2,104 -
— Gain on disposal of financial assets —HERATERTA
at fair value through profit or loss Eaie & E 2 W - (302)
~Fair value loss of financial assets —RBRAFEFABRE
at fair value through profit or loss SREE AT EEE 6,395 =
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —HERB ARz W
(Note 7) (Ft=E7) (5,107)
Operating loss before changes HEESEHANKEEE
in working capital 69,689 1,316
Changes in working capital: EEESED):
—Trade receivables — & 5 Wk IE (25,244) 22,069
— Deposits, prepayments, other — L& AR RIE - B
receivables and contract assets JEWKRIA J & #) & (5,933) 5,881
—Trade payables — B S EMNHKIE 13,083 (9,941)
— Accruals, provisions, other payables —JEREMA  BE - B4
and contract liabilities ERNFIERENERE 17,605 2,656
— Deposits received —Bize (1,497) (3,282)
— Provision for reinstatement costs — (BB (2,426) (390)
— Amount due to a related company —JE —[E FaEE A B3R 1,505 538
— Amount due to a director of —ERNETHBRARZ
certain subsidiaries —REEHIA 12,195 -
Cash generated from operations KESIAS 78,977 18,847
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34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS STATEMENT 34 #x
(Continued)

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the principal (b)
non-cash transactions were:

(i) Share-based payment expenses of HKS$1,473,000 (2018:
HK$3,390,000) and HK$423,000 (2018: HKS$1,175,000)
granted to consultants and directors and certain
employees, respectively are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the year.

87} 55 ¥ 2= B 5

BERERBRMETE (F)

BE-_Z—-NE+=A

=t+—RALEFEE FEHk

ReEXZH:

() BYFERMEERETE
BUARR G A ER AR
7 X 5 Bl B1,473,0007%8 T
(=Z — J\ 4 :3,390,0007
7T ) }423,0008 T (=&
— J\£E 11,175,000/ 7T )
ZERTRERD B AL

BEEKERMNE
(c) Inthe consolidated cash flows statement, proceeds from (© A ‘\%iﬁ,@iﬁiﬁ% S
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: X BMERREZH
BREEE:
2019 2018
ZE-hFE | ZT)\F
HK$°000 HKS$'000
THERT FAET
Net book amount (Note 16) AREDFE (MiEE16) - 174
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BEREZEZ
plant and equipment (Note 7) Wz (PFTEE7) - 206
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME - BE REEZ
plant and equipment P18 ZUE - 380
LosEERERAE 214 —S-hEER
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34 NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS STATEMENT 34 #HLKEBESREBRME (£)

(Continued)
(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing d REITBEENEEY
activities iR
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements NEREF & BT B O BT 5 KR
in net debt for each of the periods presented. REBFHREE 2 i
2019 2018
—E-hAEFE | ZFN\F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FHT
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23) RehIRESEEY (HE23) 230,498 117,635
Loans from a shareholder (Note 38) R R E K (HI7E38) (19,456) (95,043)
Loans from a director of certain BETHBARZ
subsidiaries (Note 29) —BEZE R (MIzE29) (41,000) (19,000)
Borrowings (Note 28) BEE (MIE28) (1,674) -
Lease liabilities (Note 16(b)) HEA&E (Meb)) (48,088) —
Net cash b o 120,280 3,592
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34 NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS STATEMENT

3 ZEBRETREBRME (F)

(Continued)
(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing d RMEITBEENEEY
activities (Continued) R (&)
Bank
borrowings
due for Loan from
repayment adirector of Loans
Cash and cash Lease within  Consideration certain froma
equivalents liabilities 1year payable  subsidiaries  shareholder
R—FR ETHE
AeRBES FHEE ARZ—%
ZEYM HEAE HMBRTEX EfRE EZEX RRER
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T THL THL THL THL THL
Asat 1 January 2018 RZB-N\%
-HA—-H 196,335 - - - 45,000 150,690
Cash (outflows)/inflow B () /A (77.851) - - 113,102 (26,000 (55,647)
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SMEZEE (849) S - - - -
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+=A
Er=0 117,635 = = 113,102 19,000 95,043
Recognised on adoption of HKFRS A R 43 & 76 1 75
16 (see Note 2.2) WEER|
F16REER
(RHFE22) - 92532 - - 19000 -
Restated asat 1 January 2019 R=F—h &
-A—H
KE| 117,635 92532 - 113,102 19,000 95,043
Cash inflow/(outflows) BairA/ (i) 111,359 (40,233) 1730 (38531) = =
Proceeds from loans ERFEE0A - - - - 51,000 44447
Repayment of loans BEER - - (29000) (120,034)
Non-cash items: FREER: - - - - - -
Addition of leases ANEME - 56,676 - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBAR
(Note 33) (Fit7E33) = (60,877) - - - -
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SNEFHZ 1,504 (10) (56) = = =
As at 31 December 2019 RZB-N%
+=A=1+-H 230498 48,088 1,674 74571 41,000 19456
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (“Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Company's shareholders
on 19 November 2013 for the primary purpose of providing
eligible participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company and to motivate, attract and retain the eligible participants
whose contributions are important to the long-term growth and
profitability of the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
any employees, any executives, non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors), advisors, consultants of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (excluding options
lapsed pursuant to the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company) must not exceed 10% of the issued shares of the Company.
The total number of shares issued and to be issued to each eligible
participant under the Scheme in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the issued shares of the Company unless approved in
advance by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting

Any option to be granted under the Scheme to a director, chief
executive officer or substantial shareholder of the Company or to any
of their respective associates must be approved by all independent
non-executive directors of the Company (excluding independent non-
executive director who is the grantee). In addition, any option to be
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company or to any of their respective associates which
will result in the shares issued and to be issued in excess of 0.1% of the
issued shares or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 within
any 12-month period is subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.

The offer of a grant of options under the Scheme may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer and by payment of HK$1.00 as
consideration for the grant of an option. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a period
as to be determined and notified by the directors to each grantee, but
shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of the grant
of option.
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kAR RMEMEMEEIE KA B
f&#E) AR BB ZEITIRMDAY10% ° FEF
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EARRRREABRE A 8-
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AR TARG —BEZRRK—%
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1TRR(D0 1% HABEE (ERE T B A
2 W& 1 e i {2 ) 8 385,000,000 7T+ Bl
BREANR AR R RS EH -

BEFTEIRHEREZZHAREL
B HFT28H NEM - BB 11,008
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KBRS AR AR EREA - AT BERE R
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35

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 35

The Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on the listing date of the Company. The exercise price is
determined by the directors and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the
closing price of the Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant of an option,
which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of the
Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant of an option; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's shares.

Details of the movement of the share options under Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

ERESTE (E)

B B AAR £ B HIE 4 HIR
RERRES - (THEEREEEE A
TRERATEBZ &S : ORRHY
BIVEZH.2 A (BARS A ) BN
SRBBERATIARTRDZKHE
() SR AR B 40 2 A AT AL A
% BB AT B REMFIA A ARG
2T R AS D TR EE -

MBS BITE T 2 AR B 15 0
s

2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
pricein price in
HKS per HKS per
share Number share Number
MR I3
TEE (8
=1 #E ST L4
At January R—A 199 10,800,000 199 11,600,000
Granted during the year EREL - - - -
Forfeited during the year ERRIK - (280,000) - (560,000)
Lapsed during the year ERXRK - (120,000) - (240,000)
At 31 December R+ZR=1+—H 199 10,400,000 199 10,800,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, 7,280,000 (2018: 3,240,000) outstanding
options granted under the Scheme were exercisable. Terms of share
options at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

35 BRESE (£)
R=ZZE—AF+=_A=+—8"
7,280,000f7 ( =2 — J\4F : 3,240,00015 )
BB N M ARITERRED F176E-
RBREH R BN FHT

Exercise
price
per share Number of share options
BRITEE BREHE
HKS 2019 2018

BT | —B-hAE | ZF\F

17 May 2018 to 17 May 2027 —Z-)\fAA+tH
E-T-+FRATER
17 May 2019 to 17 May 2027 —T-NFERA+EA
EZE+FRATER
17 May 2020 to 17 May 2027 “Z-ZFRA+LEA

E-Z_t+FRAT+LH

1.99 3,120,000 3,240,000

1.99 4,160,000 4,320,000

1.99 3,120,000 3,240,000

1.99 10,400,000 10,800,000

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company offered to
grant two consultants, several directors and employees of 8,000,000,
2,400,000 and 1,200,000 share options respectively of HK$0.01 each in
the capital of the Company on 17 May 2017 (“2017 Grant").
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35

36

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 35 BRESSE (&)
The valuation was based on a Binomial Model with the following data HERE ZIEREX AT ISR R R
and assumptions: RETE
2017 Grant
—E-tERH
Fair value of share options EREZAFE HK$12,094,0005% 7T
Closing share price at grant date R BB 2 AR (E HK$1.9878 T
Exercise price T8 HK$1.9958 T
Annual risk free interest rate G 5 A [ B 1) = 1.39%
Expected option life T8 HA RS AR A SF HR 10 years T &
Expected dividend yield TEHA R B & 0%
Expected volatility TEHRZ By & 52.5%
During the year ended 31 December 2019, HKS$1,473,000 (2018: REBEE-Z-hF+-A=+—8H
HK$3,390,000) share-based payment expenses granted to consultants IEFE - HTEENURG BERELD
and HK$423,000 (2018: HK$1,175,000) share-based payment expenses B 21,473,000/ 78 ( —F— \4F:
granted to certain directors and employees were included in “other 33900008 7C) KX TETEERES
expenses” and “employee benefits expenses” of the consolidated B LA RR 17 7% B 58 B0 15 5% B 52423,00078
statement of comprehensive income, respectively. JC (ZZF—/\4F :1,1750008 7T ) 7 Bll&T
ANirE2mElamRIE T [ B
EEERARZ] -
CONTINGENCIES 36 HAEIE

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2019 (2018: same).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

37 COMMITMENTS

(a)

Operating lease commitments

The Group leases various restaurant properties and equipment
under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease
agreements are between two and four years, and majority of
lease arrangements are renewable at the end of the lease period
with either pre-set increment rate or market rate to be agreed
with landlords.

The operating leases of certain restaurant properties also subject
to turnover rent, which will be based on a certain percentage of
revenue of the operation being undertaken therein pursuant to
the terms and conditions as stipulated in the respective rental
agreements. As the future revenue of these restaurants could
not be accurately determined as at the balance sheet date, the
relevant contingent rent have not been included.

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use
assets for these leases, except for short-term leases, see Note
16(b) for further information.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases not recognised in the consolidated

37 ARiE

(a)

REeMERE

AEBRB ARSI LHER
HHEZEEEMENRRE &
EHEWE /P -EME - K0
DHEZ AN A B ERRILTE
BRI RN EE T HEN TS
LbR T A S A -

ETERYENLEEERER
REFEXNES BRAESR
EREHART AR R R ARIHRR
MEFB Wt —EB D LA
B AN FBE AR E
FEREHEERERET  MIE
SRR A E

BE-E—hGF—A—H KRE
HEENN NEBERZEHER
RIEAEEE E—FPEREN
FF16(0)

REE AR E R E M AR R
BB HRER T RN AR REMR

financial statements are as follows: ERF@RENT:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)\F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FExT FHBT
No later than 1 year TER—F - 62,590
Later than 1 year and BR—FETNENRRSF
no later than 5 years - 63,250
- 125,840
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37 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 37

()

(b)

(c)

Operating lease commitments (Continued)

The future aggregate lease payments under optional operating
leases in respect of properties are as follows:

A
[

T

I 5 ¥R 2R B 5

A (&)
() REMEEHRE (&)

RIEAEBLEHERMNNME
ARREENFABRMT

2019 2018
—E-hE | ZZE-N\F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR FHETT
Later than 1 year and BER—FENMERASFT
no later than 5 years - 76,503
Later than 5 years BRAFE - 13,626
- 90,129
Operating lease receivables b) ERELHENER
The Group leases out certain commercial buildings under non- REBRBED AT RHE S E
cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms are BHEETEHERE BHPENTF
between one to two years, and the majority of lease agreements —E2F  RBAERHEEH
are renewable at the end of the lease period at market rate. RIPATE ERAE R & IR T35 EL 2 T LA
EFi
The future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable PRI EHER N AR E
operating leases in respect of the commercial buildings =Esd- kI EL0[EEFNEENILES
classified as investment properties are as follows: REEAERIBLAN -
2019 2018
ZE-hE | ZT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHT
No later than 1 year TNER—F 292 3,075
The Group did not have any significant capital commitment as (0 R=FB-NF+-A=+—8"

at 31 December 2019 (2018: same)

REE W B ERNERASE
(ZZ—N\F:HA) -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38 BABAERS
Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party has the T 75 B 75 Al B sk M AN SR E AE
ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise control or significant influence B TS I 4R e R R AT R PR e Sl pE AN EE
over the Group in making financial and operating decisions, or vice A2 ZHHAEAEANEEER X
versa. Related parties may be individuals (being members of key Z IR - R T Al R EA (BN EZEE
management personnel, significant shareholders and/or their close AB FERRR S BELHRE
family members) or other entities and include entities which are under B ) s H A E S - BIE R A S E R
the significant influence of related parties of the Group where those F(ARENERZENER -MER
parties are individuals. Parties are also considered to be related if they TSR ES - BT R AR R o
are subject to common control.
(a) Related parties @) EBEER

The directors of the Company are of the view that the following RABEZRRATAEIHARIE

companies were considered related parties that had transactions REFERHEARE B H R 5 AR

or balances with the Group during the year: Rl 7T -

Name Relationship with the Group

BE LB BE 7K 55 B Y BA 1R

Mr. Sang Kanggiao Controlling shareholder and chairman of the Board of director

ERBEE ERRRFEEEER

Mr. Xu Wenze Controlling shareholder and executive director

SRS A ERIRRFRAITES

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Director of certain subsidiaries of the Group

RERZFEAE rEEETHEBARES

Guorun Construction Group Co. Ltd.

A company controlled by Mr. Xu Wenze

BEEREERARAR] T SO ST AR HI R A A
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38 BBAEXRS (&)
(b) Transactions with related parties b) EEBEABANRS

(c)

Except for the transactions disclosed elsewhere in this report,
the Group had the following significant transactions with its

FA - RAREE MBS ARE
ZRZIN REBBEFRR T RT

related parties during the year: BLATERZS:
2019 2018
—E-AE | ZE-)N\F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FHEIT
Interest expense to a shareholder S TFREMFEAS
(Note (9)(iv)) (KtEE©v) ) 1,637 853
Interest expense to a director of Xt FETHERRN
certain subsidiaries (Note (C)(v)) —BEEMNFERXE
(P EECQM)) 1,853 1,084
Balances with related parties (0 EBEE@EtAE &R

The Group had the following balances with related parties:

(i)  Amount due to a related company

REEEBB B AT R

(i) B —EEBL A

2019 2018
—E-hE | ZZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Non-trade payable to a related FEAS — [ R A A
company: IEE 5 FIE :
— Guorun Construction Group —HEHEEREE
Co. Ltd BRAR] 3,378 3,453

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, payable to a related
company is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The carrying amount of amount due to a related
company approximated its fair value and is denominated
in HKS.

RZZT—NFER=ZF—N
F+-_A=+—8 EfH
—HREE R R IB AR
2B RELEEKEE
2o B — RN 2 R
B REEEE N TER
& WIABTTEHE
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38 BMBAEXRS (&)
(c)  Balances with related parties (Continued) (0 EREEAEESMI&ERR (2
(ii)  Amount due to a director (i) FEf—EEFFHNE
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TR FHBT
Amount due to a director BN —REERIA
— Mr. Xu Wenze —FORRAE 1,100 1,100
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, amount due to a RZZE-—NEFER=ZF—N
director is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on F+ZRA=+—8" Ef
demand. The carrying amount of amount due to a —ZREEREREERR.
director approximate its fair value and is denominated in RERBEERKEE-
HKS. BN —RESFENERE
EEEAFERE LA
YEILEHE °
(iii)  Amount due to a director of certain subsidiaries (iii) FEATE T H/& 2 &l
Z—EEEHNE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET TET
Amount due to a director of EETHBRARZ
certain subsidiaries —REENIE
— Mr. Cheung Ka Ho —RRRILAE 99 -
As at 31 December 2019, amount due to a director RZZE-—NALF+ A
of certain subsidiaries is unsecured, interest-free and =t+t—H ENETHE
repayable on demand. The carrying amount of amount RAZ —BEFFARE
due to a director of certain subsidiaries approximate its fair AR 2B RIRE B KA
value and is denominated in HKS. EE-ENETHWBAR
2 —REEREMNREE
HEANFEHES  WAE
JLET{E e
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38 BHAERS (&)

(c)  Balances with related parties (Continued) (0 EREEEESHIEERR (2)
(iv) Loans from a shareholder (i BREE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —T—)\F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHET FAT
Loans from a shareholder R R E 19,456 95,043

On 1 November 2016, the Company and Mr. Sang
Kanggiao, entered into a loan facility agreement under
which Mr. Sang Kanggiao has agreed to make available
to the Company from time to time an unsecured loan
facility amounted to HK$300,000,000 with an interest
rate of 4.5% per annum. As at 31 December 2019, a total
of HK$19,456,000 (2018: HK$95,043,000) were drawn
down. The carrying amounts of loans from a shareholder
approximate their fair values, denominated in HKS$ and
repayable on demand.

Mr. Sang Kanggiao had confirmed his intention not to
demand for repayment of the outstanding balances as
at 31 December 2019 and all the fund subsequently
remitted to the Group for coming twelve months from the
date of this report.
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H RARRIERES A
RN —TEERBE R
Bl RSB ERERET
BRAAQGRE—Z2&
%300,000,0007 JT « & F
3 54.5%H) S R B TR
BE-R—ZE—NF+=A
=+—H " #%£19456,000
B (ZZF— N\F:
95,043,000/ 7T ) B $2 HX ©
RERBEFNREREREA
FERE  ABTHEL
AR B REE-
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T EAREREER=
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38 BEEAERE (&)
(c) Balances with related parties (Continued) (0 EREEAEESMI&ERR (2

(v)  Loans from a director of certain subsidiaries v) ETFHELETH—

EEENEF
2019 2018
—E—-hE —E—NEF
HK$'000 HKS'000
TET FHBT

Loans from a director of =THEB AR

certain subsidiaries —ZEENER 41,000 19,000

As disclosed in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, on 9 May 2017, the Group entered into a loan
facility agreement with a director of certain subsidiaries
in which the director has agreed to make available to the
Group, a subsidiary of the Company, from time to time an
unsecured loan facility amounted to HK$60,000,000 with
an interest rate of 4.5% per annum for a term of 2.5 years
and repayment on demand.

The loan facility agreement was renewed on 9 November
2019 for a further period up to 8 April 2020, all other terms
and conditions remained the same as the original loan
facility agreement.

A0 AR A B S IRk M AR
FTHETZE RZT—+tF
AANE AEESEETF
MEBARMN —ZEE
N ERBE B R
ZEZERETRRANE
B (AAam—HEHEL
7)) $2 it & ¥ /60,000,000
78 TT G F FE R4.5%H) &
BREFRE - B HSF
WBRBEREE -

EXmEBZER =_Z— 1
F+—ANBE—SER
BEEZZT-ZFHAN
B - BB E 5% R &4
HEFRFE R B R E kAR
[ e
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38 BBARS (&)
(d) Key management compensation d FEEEASFH
Key management personnel are those persons having authority TEEEABRERREEE
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the RE EE RIEHIAREE B
activities of the Group. During the year, key management AT RERN FEEEAER
includes three (2018: three) executive directors and one (2018: B=29TES (ZZ—N\F:
one) senior management. The remuneration paid or payable to =R E—E2aRERE(=ZZ
key management for employee services is shown below: —N\F:—F) BNRENEE
B2 B {E B RIEHIEB5 R a0
T
2019 2018
—EB-N1F —ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHExT FHT
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits ~ EA#FH &  2Z8L M1 3,150 2,795
Employer's contribution to B+ RIK S 5T 8|50
pension scheme 70 72
Share-based payment expenses PARR 7 = BB A SR 2 307 712
3,527 3,579
The remuneration of key management fell within the following FEEEASHFIESEE LT -
bands:
Number of individuals
N
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
Remuneration bands: i E
Nil — HKS 1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T 4 4
LRos@RRERAS 228 —S—NEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 43 & 87 #5 #R % fif 5

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total banking facilities of
HK$20,656,000 (2018: HK$14,000,000) available for use, of which
HKS7,274,000 (2018: HKS11,086,000) was utilised for letters of bank
guarantee for rental and utility deposits. The unutilised portion
amounted to HK$13,382,000 (2018: HK$2,914,000).

EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19 outbreak”)
in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control measures have
been and continued to be implemented across the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC").

As at the date on which this set of consolidated financial statements
were authorised for issue, the Group was not aware of any material
adverse effects to its environmental maintenance, property leasing and
security trading business businesses.

In light of the negative impact brought upon by the COVID-19
outbreak in Hong Kong, the Chinese restaurant and wedding
business is expected to experience a downturn in 2020. The Group
will negotiate with the landlord of each of its restaurant for rent
concession on a monthly basis. The Group will pay close attention to
the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on
the overall financial position and operating results of the Group.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
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RITAE
R-ZE—NE+_A=1+—0 ~&EH
Al A AV ERTTRE & & &1 420,656,000
BT (ZZF—/\&F : 14000000/ 7T ) *
Hi72740008 L (ZE—N\F:
11,086,0007% 70 ) AR & & A A& i
B 2RITERE - KBBEH S A
13,382,000/ 7T ( = — J\ £ : 2,914,000
EIL) °

HEH®ZRSEHE

REZZEZZEFNEZE =T —NFHE
BHEE(ZE-—NEFTRSE
B E PEAREMB ([RHE]DE
B RFHEE E— R TEM MIE ST

REETIRZEGRAMBRRZE
AEBEYTAMBHERBHEE WX
HEMBEREEXRBEHENEIFNEX

TR E -

ER_T-NFHERSRELDE
HROAMEE - BT EE R IEE
BN T TFHBREK - ANKE
HEARESEER IR B RE
TR - ARBHEIRE —F—NF
HERSRENERLAEEHAE
BEREBMBEAARCERENTE-
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41 SUBSIDIARIES 421 MEAF
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December KTARR=ZE—-—NF+=A=+—H
2019: TEMBAREE:
Country/ Particulars Interest Interest
place of Date of of issued held held  Principal
Company name incorporation  incorporation share capital 2019 2018  activities
NEER AR SAMRIAE  EROTRAFE ZE-hE ZB-N\F FEEE
BX/ % ks iR
Directly held subsidiaries
ERGAMEAF
YuYan Group (HK) Investment  British Virgin 1 March 2013 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment
Limited Islands USS1 each holding
BEEE (FE)RE KBRS —T—=F 10000 & X E {8 RERK
BRAT =R—H IETHERR
YuYan Group Trading Limited  British Virgin 1 March 2013 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment
Islands each holding
BEEEESARNR HEERLES —T-=F 1REREE REER
=RA—H 1ETHEBR
YuYan Group Distribution British Virgin 1 March 2013 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment
Limited Islands each holding
BEEERBARAR RERKES —T-=F 1REREE REER
=A—H 1ETHEBR
YuYan Group Wedding Limited British Virgin 1 March 2013 1 ordinary share of USS1 100% 100%  Investment
Islands each holding
ERREERERAR RERZEE —T-=F \REREE REER
=A—-H 1ETHEBR
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) “ KMEAR (&)
Country/ Particulars Interest Interest
place of Date of of issued held held Principal
Company name incorporation incorporation share capital 2019 2018  activities
DR EH AR X SAMRIAE  ERORAFE ZE-RE ZB-N\F FEXE
BX/ % FEkE iR
Kind Access Development — British Virgin 23 July 2014 1 ordinary share of USS1 100% 100%  Investment
Limited Islands each holding
RERAES —T-0NF 1REREE REER
TtAZ+=R 1 EXMEER
Wild South Limited British Virgin 4 Novemnber 2016 1 ordinary share of USS1 100% 100%  Investment
Islands each holding
RERABES —T—RF \REREE REER
+—AEA 1ETTH B BR
New Fortune Holdings Group  British Virgin 17 November 2016 1 ordinary share of USS1 100% 100%  Investment
Limited Islands each holding
WEZEREEERAR HERLES —T—RF 1R S E RERK
T—=AttR ERHEBER
Indirectly held subsidiaries
BEFENELR
U Banquet Group Limited Hong Kong 18 June 2010 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment
holding
EREEARRA B —T-%F 1005 2 8 A RERKR
~ATAH
Choi Fook Holdings Limited  Hong Kong 25 June 2009 1,075,003 ordinary 100% 100%  Investment
shares holding
FRERERA BB —EBThE 1,075,003 & 38 AR REER
ANAZTHH
Step Up Corporation Limited  Hong Kong 2 December 2005 3,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%  Restaurant
shares operations
and licence
holding
ERBRAF 'R “ZThE 3,000000% & @A e
+=A=H RIERFE
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41

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) “ KMEARE (&)
Country/ Particulars Interest Interest
place of Date of of issued held held Principal
Company name incorporation incorporation share capital 2019 2018  activities
DREH B 3L SAMRIAHE  ERORAFE ZE-hE ZB-N\F FEEE
BX/ % FERE iR
Indirectly held subsidiaries
BEEENELT
Million Talent Investment Hong Kong 4 November 2006 4,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%  Restaurant
Limited shares operations
and licence
holding
BRREBRAA B —ZTRE 4,000,000 & 13 A& BRE
+—AmA RIERFE
Choi Fook Seafood Restaurant Hong Kong 9 January 2002 800,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Restaurant
Limited operations
and licence
holding
YREHERBERRE BB it Sk 800,000 & B R
ANLE REREEA
Vast Rainbow Limited Hong Kong 16 August 2007 100 ordinary shares 0% 100%  Restaurant
(Note 33) operations
and licence
holding
ERZ NG 'R “ERLE 1008 & ¥ Ak (Ff&E33) EEES
NA+RA REREE
Elite Rainbow Corporation  Hong Kong 27 March 2009 100 ordinary shares 0% 100%  Restaurant
Limited (Note 33) operations
and licence
holding
BYARAT BB —EBThE 1002 & B AR (Pf5E33) BEE
=R=++tH RIEREEA
Smiling Profit Limited Hong Kong 11 December 2009 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Restaurant
operations
and licence
holding
BYARRA BB “ZTNE 10088 & & AR EEEY
TZA+-H RIEREE
BEE@IERERAT 232 “B-HhEER
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) “ KMEAR (&)
Country/ Particulars Interest Interest
place of Date of of issued held held Principal
Company name incorporation incorporation share capital 2019 2018  activities
DR EH B 3L SAMRIAE  ERORAFE ZE-RE ZB-N\F FEXE
BX/ % FEkE iR
Indirectly held subsidiaries
BEFENELT
Choi Fook Royal Banquet Hong Kong 6 July 2009 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Restaurant
Limited operations
and licence
holding
VRETARRA B —ZTNF 1005 & 8 A BRE
RN REREE
Good Fortress Inc Limited Hong Kong 11 December 2012 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Restaurant
operations
and licence
holding
EBER AR BB “E-ZHtZA00REER EEEH
+—A RIEREEA
Great Business (China &HK) ~ Hong Kong 17 April 2012 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sales of furniture
Trading Limited and fixtures
ZE (PR EHARDA &R “E-"FMA 10000k EBK HERM
++A RET®E
Modern Management Hong Kong 26 April 2013 4 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment
(Restaurant) Limited holding
RREL (RR)ERAA B “E-ZEMA ARERK RABNK
iy NS
Smart Award Limited Hong Kong 23 April 2012 10,001 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sales of frozen
food and high
value dried
food
BXBRAH 'R “E-CFMA 10001RERK HELRRMR
—+=8H BEELE
General Corporation Limited  Hong Kong 16 August 2012 10,001 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sales of fresh
vegetables
EERBRAF BE ZZ-ZFN\A 1000 REEK HEMBHX
<A

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
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41

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) “ KMEARE (&)

Country/ Particulars Interest Interest

place of Date of of issued held held Principal
Company name incorporation incorporation share capital 2019 2018  activities
DREH AR X SAMRIAHE  ERORAFE ZE-hE ZB-N\F FEEE

BX/ % FERE iR

Indirectly held subsidiaries

BEEENELT
U Weddings Studio Limited ~ Hong Kong 26 April 2013 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Provision of
wedding
services
BERYARAR BB “Z-ZHPEA IREBR RALER RS
iy NS
Billion Treasure Property Hong Kong 24 October 2007 3,200,000 ordinary 100% 100%  Lease of
Development Limited shares investment
properties
EXWEERERRA FR ZERLETA 32000008 AR RENFRS
—+mAe
Wah Shuk Holdings Limited  Hong Kong 30 October 2015 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Securities
investment
ERERBBR AR BE ZZ-RFTA 10000 LA BrRE
=+H
Top Fortune Group Limited ~ Hong Kong 16 September 2014 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment
holding
WEEERNBERAR  BE ZE-WEAA 10000 ERK REER
17<H
Beijing Huashu Property, PRC 22 October 1999 RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Lease of
Development Limited investment
properties
EREREHERS hE —hANE AR ¥10000,0007C HEREME
BARRA +A=-+=H
BYL Property Holdings Group  British Virgin 25 November 2016 50,000 original shares of 51% 51%  Investment
Limited Islands USS1 each holding
ERREREREHE RERAFEE —T—A"F1+— A 0000REREE RERK
BRRA —+4A 1ETTE R IR D
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

MELRE (&)

Country/ Particulars Interest Interest
place of Date of of issued held held  Principal
Company name incorporation incorporation share capital 2019 2018 activities
NRAH ot fH B 3L SEMRIEHE  ERTRAFE ZB-nF ZB-N\§F IEXH
FEVS } s RS
Indirectly held subsidiaries
BESEMEAR
BYL Property Holdings Limited Hong Kong 26 October 2016 HK$10,000 51% 51%  Investment
holding
EERERERBRAR FR ZBRE 100003 7T REER
+A=+xA
Shenzhen Baorunlai Property  PRC 7 December 2016 RMB500,000 51% 51%  Investment
Company Limited holding
AYEBREXBRAR PH ZBRE AR 5000007 REER
+ZRtR
Chengdu Sanchuang PRC 22 October 2004  RMB60,000,000 51% 51%  Provision of
Cityscape Environment environmental
Management hygiene and
Company Limited cleaning
service
KHB=EITARE i —TTME AR 600000007 RERGHE
EBRAEREERR +A=-+=H RIEZRE

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the year or

formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.
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41 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41 HEBRF (&)
Note: H 5 :
Non-controlling interests (NCI) FEERERS (FEERER)
Set out below is summarised financial information for each subsidiary that has BRUASBEBER ZFERED 2 KB
non-controlling interests that are material to the Group. The amounts disclosed RAHBMTE AR T - gL E KB A R HE
for each subsidiary are before inter-company eliminations. ZEBNDRARANEHEA S
BYL Property Holdings

Group Limited
EEREEEREEERAT

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—N\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Summarised balance sheet EEEERBE

Current assets mENEE 98,873 47,109
Current liabilities mEaE 68,952 44,080
Current net assets REBEEEE 29,921 3,029
Non-current assets SEMEBEE 128,885 135,049
Non-current liabilities ERBARE 23,263 19,543
Non-current net assets ERBEEFEE 105,622 115,506
Net assets EEFE 135,543 118,535
Accumulated NCI St IR i 66,416 58,082
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Non-controlling interests (NCl) (Continued)

41

MEAR (&)

M (&)

FFERERD (FERER) (&)

From 22 October
2018 to
31 December
2019 2018
BE-Z—N\F
+A=+t=B=%
=T )\F
—Z-NA& +=-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT

Summarised statement 2HKERYUE

of comprehensive income
Revenue Wz 226,331 31,938
Profit for the year/period £ HRER 22,821 4112
Other comprehensive income Ef2mElas (2,041) 857
Total comprehensive income 2HENEEE 20,780 4,969
Profit allocated to NCI 2 BEE FE1E AR i 2 2 Ve A 11,182 2,015
Summarised cash flows HEeEREHRE

Cash flows from operating activities KEETHMERERE 32,858 30,427
Cash flows from investing activities KETHMERERE (14,326) (8,051)
Cash flows from financing activities MEETHMERERE 1,619 (89)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BHeRBESZSEYEMTH 20,151 22,288
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42

i © B 5 ¥ R Bid 5

BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 42 EARATREEEMERX
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\#F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets E(RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries (Note (b)) RETBRARIEZE (MiwEb)) 158,699 116,824
Property, plant and equipment ERY YN 611 1,092
159,310 117,916
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments Be RIBAFHIE 1,299 1,054
Amounts due from subsidiaries e Ft B 2 Bl 5k IR 20,744 13,195
Cash and cash equivalents He MR EEY 181,082 78,658
203,125 92,907
Total assets HWEE 362,435 210823
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RATREE AEERER
Share capital (Note 24) B (FftsE24) 5,880 5,580
Share premium B tn 18 285,420 236,120
Other reserve (Note (a)) Hi g (K@) 221,007 42394
Accumulated losses (Note (a)) ZEtEE (i@ ) (179,232) (166,508)
Total equity s 333,075 117,586
sSoemiripaRas 238 —T-hEER
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42 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

42 XQAFEEEEBR (&)

2019 2018
—E-NF “E-N\&F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FERT FET
LIABILITIES afE

Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and provisions fEETE A R Bt 8,336 4016
Amount due to subsidiary ST/ 2 B FE 1,568 1368
Loans from a shareholder BRRER 19,456 87,853
Total liabilities BafmE 29,360 93,237
Total equity and liabilities HEEREE 362,435 210823

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
directors on 31 March 2020 and was signed on its behalf

Sang Kanggiao
RED
Director

EF

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED

Xu Wenze
BF 30U
Director

EZ

ARRBEBBERER_ZE_ZF=
A=+—BEE=gitERANTR

REE
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Note (a):

i © B 5 ¥ R Bid 5

42 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued) 2 ARREEEER (&)
Reserve movement of the Company MizE@) : ARAEZHEEHE
Share-based
payment Other Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
MR 5
ERNARGEE Hitnf e ZitER @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TET TET TET
At 1January 2018 R=Z-NF-A-H 4478 33,598 (148,809) (110,733)
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEEE K
loss for the year 2ABERR = = (17,946) (17,946)
Transaction with ownersin ~ SEEBANEEE A
their capacity as owners: HERETHRS:
Share-based payment PARR R A EERE AR 3K 4,565 - - 4565
Lapse of share option AR (247) = 247 -
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\F
+=A=+-H 8,79 33598 (166,508) (124,114)
At 1January 2019 R=ZE-AF-A-AH
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEfE &8 R
loss for the year 2EBEEE - - (13,007) (13,007)
Transaction with ownersin ~ SEHEBANEEE AN
their capacity as owners: FRETHRS:
Share-based payment PARR R A ERERI R 3K 1,896 - - 1,896
Lapse of share option R (283) - 283 -
Shares to be issued (Note 25(ii)) 1 F 31T 1%
(Bt aE256) - 177,000 - 177,000
At 31 December 2019 R-E-IE
F=H=E=1H 10,409 210,598 (179,232) 41,775
Investments in subsidiaries MizE®) : RHEAREE

Note (b):

Due to the continued weakness in sales performance of restaurants
and wedding business segment, an impairment testing of
investment in subsidiaries was performed by the directors of the
Company. No impairment charge was recognised in the Company’s
income statement for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$956,000).
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